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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher
investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make
the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated
investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM
may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded
on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy
or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in
reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of China Innovationpay Group Limited (the “Company ”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the GEM
Listing Rules for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made
all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in
this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no
other matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FTEHRES

The board of directors (the “Board”) of China Innovationpay
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) is pleased to announce the audited results of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2015.

During the year under review, the Group continued to operate
the third party payment which includes the prepaid cards
and internet payments. The operating environment for the
year was complicated due to economic downturn and global
economic slowdown. In 2016, the global economic conditions
are expected to be lack luster, with operating pressure and
competition situation becoming more and more intense. In
facing such internal and external environment, the Group will
be more cautious and meet the challenges proactively, focus
its resources on core payment business, and strengthen the
horizontal cooperation with domestic third party payment
enterprises and vertical cooperation with key customers in the
industry, so as to address the complicated market situation
and competitive situation and continue to expand the operating
scale and market share.

During the year, the Group increased its efforts in research and
development and invested in payment technology and platform.
It upgraded the original internet payment system and prepaid
cards issuance and acceptance system to cater for more
sophisticated business demand as well as a larger demand in
transaction volume.

The Group has established three business systems based on
its core payment system, which includes the internet payment
system, virtual prepaid card operating system and integrated
invoicing system. It sets up four service systems incorporating
the virtual prepaid card operating platform service, internet
payment service, integrated invoicing service and cross-border
Renminbi payment service.

4 China Innovationpay Group Limited
Annual Report 2015

FERHZNEEAR AR (KARA]) RE
MEBAR (REAEE) 2EESMARMN
AEEBE-_FT-AFt-A=1T—HILLF

REEFA AEBEELLEEERANRR
BEM@EXNEANE = XNER - HRF
ERERBERKETT 2L RE M E
BHEEM R _T—RNF BHE2REE
BIRER  KEBENMBEFHEERER
I - AN &2 [ 7 AR T H A SN BB 2 BRI - T AR
MEEAE - BEENTRERETRIZOX
ER - hnog BB RINE = IS B E MR
RMEERITEEHEFPNMAEE YD
EEENTISRR SRR TEHEAK
LEREMHISERAER-

AREBARFERINKT A5 M & &
BRI BRENEBE S R RIEN
RETEIBRGET T AR AREER

AEEDKEZO N REOER K
TEBMBXNER ERBNRELRR-
RAERERREZARH RS ALK
TERBENRES T ERE  BEBE MR
% BPEERERS BEARBMR
BEOARBEE R



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ITR|ES

During the operation, the Group focused more on the
application of products and services in key industries, provided
industry customers professional payment services to realize its
service values.

During the coming year, by building on the three business
systems and four service systems, the Group will continue
to enhance industry promotion and application, and provide
professional and personalized comprehensive payment
solutions for more industry customers, so as to increase its
payment business market share and create more values for
shareholders.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express my gratitude to all shareholders, investors, customers
and business partners for their strong support to our Group.
| would also like to express our sincere appreciation to the
management team and staff of the Group for their dedicated
efforts and contributions.

Mr. Guan Guisen
Chairman
Hong Kong, 30 March 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEN W&

OVERVIEW

The Group consists of the Company, Shenzhen Innovationpay Co.,
Limited and its subsidiaries, Country Praise Enterprises Limited
("CPE") and its subsidiaries (collectively the “CPE Group”). The
Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are
principally engaged in four segments. Namely (i) General trading:
trading of watches, computers, communication equipments,
currency sorters and other goods; (ii) Prepaid card business:
provision of third party payment services and consultancy services;
and marketing and sale of consumer goods in form of prepaid gift
cards in the People’s Republic of China (“the PRC"); (iii) Travellers
related services: provision of airticketing services and related
customers services; and (iv) Onecomm — provision of third party
payment system solution and sales of integrated smart point of
sales (“POS") devices.

BACKGROUND

On 28 June 2012 Beijing Gaohuitong Commercial Management
Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Gaohuitong”), an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company obtained the Certificate for
Approval for Payment Business from PBOC pursuant to the
Administrative Measures of Payment Services for Non-Financial
Institutions (3E& LIS X [ ARTEE IR JX) and the Detailed
Rules for the Implementation of the Administrative Measures of
Payment Services for Non-Financial Institutions (3E% Bh# % %
NIRBEBRIEEmAMA) .

In July 2013, the PBOC further approved to Beijing Gaohuitong
to operate the business of “Online Payment (National)” and
“Issuance and Acceptance of Prepaid Cards”, covering Beijing,
Shanghai, Zhejiang, Guangdong and Liaoning Provinces.

On 26 November 2014, the payment and settlement division
of the operations office (&2 B2 &) of PBOC has released
a reply document to Beijing Gaohuitong for their approval to
Beijing Gaohuitong (the “Approval”). The Approval allowed
Beijing Gaohuitong permitted to operate the card of "= & o il
“44F-K" in China countrywide on a pilot basis. The card is to be
used for individuals, small value (single card amount not more
than RMB1,000), and is a convenience form of a virtual prepaid
cards. The Company and Beijing Gaohuitong will strictly comply
with the requirements of the Approval, positive, safe, and
orderly conduct of this new business under the management
guidance of PBOC.

6 China Innovationpay Group Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The third-party payment service business built on the prepaid
card business is the core business of the Group. It is also a
business segment that the Group has focused its investments.
To meet the needs of its future business development, during
the year, the Group increased the investments in the research
and development of the payment system, and upgraded both its
existing prepaid card issuing and handling system as well as the
internet payment system.

During the year, the Group had established three business
systems based on its core payment system, which includes
the internet payment system, virtual prepaid card operating
system and integrated invoicing service. We set up four
service systems incorporating the virtual prepaid card operating
platform service, internet payment service, merchant integrated
invoicing service and cross-border Renminbi payment service.

The financial and investment focus of the Group is to
concentrate on its payment business, and the general trading
and traveller related services, being non-key businesses,
have maintained their normal operation only without any key
investment.

In 2015, the competition of China payment industry was
particularly intense. With many different M&A and restructuring
activities, for industries that possess advantages, they will
become stronger and stronger and competition of industry
market segments was more and more fierce. The Group's
traditional prepaid cards business confronted a severe situation
and it was due to this situation that drove the Group to innovate,
expand and upgrade its original businesses. However, the new
businesses are subject to market testing and recognition.

The four payment service relationships operated by the Group
had already laid a good foundation and through the cooperation
with key customers in the industry, it will quickly form an
industrial demonstration norm to occupy the market and form a
sizable business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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VIRTUAL PREPAID CARD OPERATING PLATFORM

The virtual prepaid card operation is a product predominantly
operated by Moderntimes Payment Limited (“Moderntimes
Payment”), a subsidiary of the Group. Through the joint
confirmed cooperation with the parties, this platform
establishes an online and offline payment service platform
by a virtual prepaid card product to support the needs under
various payments and handling conditions, helping customers
to develop and operate their own clients. From this, through the
platform operation, the Group can expand its market size rapidly
by accumulating online flow, operating accounts and exploring
data usage. As at the end of the year, the number of clients on
the platform was over 5,700,000.

INTERNET PAYMENT SERVICE

The internet payment service is a payment service newly
launched by the Group during the year, which provides a speedy
B2C and B2B mobile payment gateway service to its clients.

CROSS-BORDER RENMINBI PAYMENT SERVICE

In September 2015, Beijing Gaohuitong, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, obtained the approval from PBOC
Guangzhou Branch permitting the Company to commence the
Renminbi settlement services for the cross-border goods and
services trading business for enterprises and individuals.

INTEGRATED INVOICING SERVICE

The business is developed based on the original business of
Onecomm, which provides merchants the POS invoicing and
POS entrusted collection systems and front-end hardware
equipment, and provides clients with POS-based offline
comprehensive business handling services for their bank
cards, prepaid cards and virtual card. The product can provide
merchants the all-round self-membership management, full-
channel invoicing and self-marketing services.

8 China Innovationpay Group Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group's turnover
was approximately HK$103,861,000 (2014: HK$81,222,000), a
28% increase as compared to last year. The Group recorded a
loss attributable to shareholders of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$153,818,000 (2014: loss HK$122,724,000). The
gross profit margin of the Group recorded 31% (2014: 43%). Of the
said loss, HK$4,641,000 (2014: HK$53,323,000) was attributable to
impairment of goodwill.

IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL

The performance and contribution of the Travellers related services
segment (Cash Generating Unit 3, “CGU 3") fell behind budget. As
a result, the re-assessment of relevant goodwill is affected and the
Board is of the view that an impairment of goodwill for CGU3 is
necessary.

SALES AND MARKETING

For the twelve months ended 31 December 2015, the Group
adopted more-client-oriented promotional strategies to promote the
products, sales and marketing expenses recorded HK$41,193,000
(2014: HK$31,181,000), representing a 32% increase over the
same period last year.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT AND
ACQUISITION

Acquisition of Moderntimes Payment

On 18 June 2015 (after trading hours), CPE and Moderntimes
Payment (the “Target Company”) entered into the Subscription
Agreement pursuant to which CPE has conditionally agreed to
subscribe for the Subscription Shares at an aggregate consideration
of HK$49,510,000.

Upon the Subscription Completion, the Group will hold
approximately 51% interest of the Target Group and thus the
financial results of the Target Company will be consolidated into the
financial statements of the Group.

On the same day, CPE, Essence Management Services Limited
(“Essence Management”) and ModernTimes Information Co.,
Ltd. (the “Vendor”) entered into the Loan Assignment pursuant
to which the Vendor has conditionally agreed to assign the
Shareholder’s Loan of HK$13,090,000 to CPE in consideration of
the sum of HK$13,090,000 payable by CPE to the Vendor on the
Subscription Completion Date.
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Also, the Company, the Vendor and Mr. JOONG Chi-Wei entered
into the Incentive Agreement pursuant to which the Company
shall reward the Vendor with an aggregate amount not exceeding
RMB200,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$250,000,000)
based on the number of Cumulative Virtual Prepaid Card Sold
and/or the amount of Cumulative Virtual Prepaid Card Reload for
the six months ending 31 December 2015 and each of the two
years ending 31 December 2017, by way of issue and allotment of
Incentive Shares.

For details of the above transactions please refer to the Company's
announcement dated 18 June 2015.

Possible subscription of convertible preference
shares (the “CPS"”) and issue of shares under
general mandate, strategic cooperation and
technology service agreement with a listed
company.

On 25 June 2015, the Company and National Agricultural Holdings
Limited (“National Agricultural”) entered into the CPS Subscription
Agreement and Share Subscription Agreement pursuant to which,
subject to the fulfilment of certain conditions, the parties have
agreed amongst other things as follows:

(1) the Proposed Subscription

The Company has conditionally agreed to subscribe for, and
National Agricultural has conditionally agreed to allot and
issue, a total of 49,140,000 National Agricultural Convertible
Preferred Shares at the CPS Subscription Price of HK$4.07
per National Agricultural Convertible Preferred Share. The
aggregate CPS Subscription Price amounts to approximately
HK$200 million.

Assuming full conversion of the National Agricultural
Convertible Preferred Shares and no adjustment to
the conversion price, 49,140,000 National Agricultural
Conversion Shares will be allotted and issued to the
Company. The 49,140,000 National Agricultural Conversion
Shares to be allotted and issued represent (i) approximately
2.34% of the number of National Agricultural Shares as at
25 June 2015; (i) approximately 2.29% of the number of
National Agricultural Shares as at enlarged by the allotment
and issue of the National Agricultural Conversion Shares.
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(1i)

(iif)

the Proposed Issue

The Company has conditionally agreed to issue 194,174,000
Subscription Shares at the Share Subscription Price
of HK$1.03 per Subscription Share, representing (i)
approximately 3.42% of the entire issued share capital of
the Company as at 25 June 2015; (ii) approximately 3.30%
of the entire issued share capital of the Company as
enlarged by the issue of the Subscription Shares, to National
Agricultural under the General Mandate. The aggregate
Share Subscription Price amounts to approximately HK$200
million.

The CPS Subscription Price and Share Subscription
Price shall be deemed to be paid in full by the issue and
allotment of the Subscription Shares by the Company to
National Agricultural pursuant to the Share Subscription
Agreement and the issue and allotment of the National
Agricultural Convertible Preferred Shares by National
Agricultural to the Company pursuant to the CPS
Subscription Agreement respectively.

Completion of the CPS Subscription Agreement and the
Share Subscription Agreement are interconditional and shall
take place simultaneously.

On the same date, the Company and National Agricultural
entered into the strategic Cooperation Framework Agreement
pursuant to which the parties shall act as the strategic
cooperation partner of each other.

Also, Beijing Gaohuitong and Beijing Guonong Taifeng
Agricultural Consultancy Co., Ltd, entered into the Technology
Service Agreement in relation to the development of mobile
application and internet payment system for National
Agricultural.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEN W&

Pursuant to the Strategic cooperation Framework Agreement,
amongst other things, (i) the Company shall provide all-rounded
software and hardware payment solutions plan to National
Agricultural for tis fund collection and clearance services; (ii)
the Company shall cooperation with National Agricultural in
relation to the development of mobile application for Agripay
system and the development of Agripay system pre-paid card
if required by National Agricultural in the future and consider to
invite the Company as its partner; (iii) the Company and National
Agricultural shall explore the opportunities for the development
of financial products and services in the agriculture product
chain; (iv) the Company and National Agricultural shall explore
the development of personal credit information system for
rural village; and (v) the Company and National Agricultural shall
develop online financial platform to fulfill the financial need of
the farmers (collectively, the “Proposed Cooperation”).

The Strategic Cooperation Framework Agreement does no
constitute any legally binding commitment in respect of the
Proposed Cooperation. The Proposed Cooperation is subject to
the negotiation and execution of the formal agreement between
the relevant parties, if any.

On 29 January 2016, the Company and National Agricultural
mutually agreed to terminate the CPS Subscription Agreement
and Share Subscription Agreement.

Whereas the strategic cooperation and technology service
agreement will be continued.

For details of the above termination agreement please refer to
the Company’s announcement dated 29 January 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SR EC S il

MAJOR EVENTS

Completion of Issue of Unlisted Warrants

On 6 February 2015, the Company and Greater China Select
Fund (“Subscriber”) entered into a Subscription Agreement
(“Agreement”). Pursuant to the Agreement, the Company
agreed to issue 530,000,000 unlisted warrants at an issue
price of HK$0.002 per warrant. Each warrant entitled the
Subscriber for one ordinary share of HK$0.01 each at an initial
subscription price of HK$0.72 per share at any time within 5
years commencing from the date of issue of warrants.

On 5 March 2015, the Company and the Subscriber entered
into a Supplemental Agreement (“Supplemental Agreement”),
pursuant to the which, completion of the Agreement shall be
subject to and conditional upon passing the resolution(s) at a
general meeting of the Company to approve the Agreement and
the long stop date for fulfillment of the conditions precedent
under the Agreement has been postponed to 31 May 2015.

Following obtaining the Shareholders’ approval of the Warrant
Subscription and issue of the Warrant Shares at the SGM held
on 29 June 2015, all conditions president became unconditional
and completion of the Warrant Subscription took place on
6 July 2015. Warrants of an aggregate amount of HK$381.6
million have been issued to the Subscriber at the Issue Price of
HK$0.002 per Warrant.

The Warrants entitle the Subscriber to subscribe for the Warrant
Shares at the initial Subscription Price of HK$0.72 each for a
period of five (b) years commencing from the date of issue of
the Warrants.
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Provision of Guarantee to a Subsidiary

On 4 August 2015, Beijing Tiantongsaibo Information Technology
Co., Ltd. ("TTSB", a subsidiary of the Group) provided a
guarantee in favor of Haier Finance Company Limited (“Haier
Finance"”) for the financing facility granted to Haier Consumer
Finance Co., Ltd. (“Haier Consumer Finance”). Pursuant to the
Credit Facility Agreement, Haier Finance will grant a financing
facility of RMB1.5 billion to Haier Consumer Finance, and Beijing
TTSB will provide a joint and several guarantee amounted
to RMB150 million (equivalent to approximately HK$187.2
million) on a pro rata basis for the 10% shareholdings in Haier
Consumer Finance held by it. The guarantee covers a period
of two years from the expiry of the term of the Credit Facility
Agreement (or the expiry of the extended term agreed by the
parties).

For details of the above transaction please refer to the
Company's announcement dated 10 August 2015.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$236,608,000 (2014:
HK$162,595,000).

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has bank borrowings of
HK$nil (2014: HK$625,000).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND PLEDGE OF
ASSETS

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has no material capital
commitments or substantial pledges on its assets.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has no material contingent
liabilities.

As at 31 December 2015, the total current assets over the total
current liabilities was 2.91 times (2014: 3.96 times). The ratio
of all debts to total assets was 0 (2014: 0). As most sales are
made in Renminbi, no hedging arrangement is made to offset
the exposures to fluctuations in exchange rates.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Since the Group's operations are mainly located in the PRC and
its transactions, monetary assets and liabilities are primarily
denominated in Renminbi, there is minimal exposure to foreign
currency risks. The Group monitors its foreign currency risks and
will consider hedging significant currency exposures should the
need arises.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had 24 trademarks (2014:
28) registered in China and Hong Kong, of which all trademarks
have been approved.

At the same time, the Group had 66 software copyrights (2014:
60) and 6 patents (2014: 5) in China.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has approximately 354
employees (2014: 332). Employees are remunerated according
to their performance and work experience. In addition to
basic salaries and retirement scheme, staff benefits include
performance bonus and employee share options. The Directors
believe that good quality of its employees is a company asset
which affects growth and improves profitability. The Group
recognizes the importance of staff training and thus regularly
provides internal and external training for its staff to enhance
their skills and knowledge.

LITIGATION

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has no material
outstanding litigation.
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FUTURE PLANS AND PROSPECTS

The Company completed the acquisition of CPE and its
subsidiaries on 28 February 2011. Beijing Gaohuitong obtained
the Certificates for Approval for Payment Business issued by
the People’s Bank of China on 28 June 2012 and was further
approved to add new geographical areas for the business of
online payment and the issuance and acceptance of prepaid
cards in July 2013.

Also in November 2014, Beijing Gaohuitong obtained the
approval from the payment and settlement division of the
operation department of PBOC. Such in-principle approval
permitted the operation of the virtual cards of "= [ i e f £ +f
<" in China countrywide on a pilot basis.

With the permission obtained by the Group and the businesses
that have developed through years, the Group has formed four
service systems, namely the virtual prepaid card operating
platform service, internet payment system, merchant integrated
invoicing service, and cross-border Renminbi payment service.

Under the macro environment that the online financial and
payment industry is undergoing robust development, the Group
strives to deliver more comprehensive payment services,
self-marketing and self-customer management services to
merchants based on the prepaid business with unremitted
innovations. Meanwhile, it will provide more convenient and
favorable payment services to consumers.

The Group will expand the market by means of delivering
integrated professional and personalized comprehensive
payment solutions for different industrial customers. With the
Group having the corresponding resolutions to tackle any issue
that cover hardware to software, online to offline, standard
businesses to personal businesses, we will promote our
services to benchmark enterprises in different industries, such
as mobile telephones, chain stores, e-commerce, insurance,
logistics, car networking, tourism and agriculture, and further
expand our business to customers of the whole industry by
leveraging on the demonstration effect of these benchmark
enterprises.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The payment business is the foundation of the Group's
businesses, and our future development will be oriented
towards the financial extended business. The number of
accounts and volume of business is increasing continuously as
a result of the accumulating payment business. The Group will
gradually launch its account operating business for the purpose
of delivering payment, financial and member management
services to all account holders in general. The Group has also
commenced setting its layout in this regard, such as investing
in consumer finance company, and intending to set up massive
data company.

With a business foothold in payment business and eyes on
developing the financial business, the Group will develop its
account clientele through payment business and operate the
financial business through its clientele. We are committed to
delivering more fruitful and convenient payment and financial
services to customers. With the on-going development and
consolidation of payment business, the Group will gradually put
more efforts on the research and development and promotion
of clientele operation and financial service products, provide
more innovative financial payment products to all customers.

In 2016, the global macro-economic situation is not optimistic.
A more challenging year is forthcoming for the China economy
after the upheavals in 2015. It is foreseeable that the payment
industry will face more severe challenges this year. The newly
released payment services and products of the Group will
also face harsh market evaluation and testing. However, at
the same time, it should also imply that competition brings
new market opportunities and survival of the fittest. The
Group has confidence in leveraging on its product and service
characteristics to achieve breakthroughs in the usual segmented
payment markets. It will take the breakthroughs to expand and
drive its business, then focus on its resources to form its core
competitive edge.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Guan Guisen, aged 52, joined the Company on 28 February
2011. Mr. Guan acts as an executive Director, Chairman of the
Company. Mr. Guan obtained his bachelor degree from China
Central University of Finance and Economics (7 5 Bf 4% X
) in 1984 and a master degree from Graduate School of the
People's Bank of China (R EI ARRITHHICAEL) in 1987 Mr.
Guan has over twenty years of senior management experience
in finance, property development and investment in the PRC.
Mr. Guan was a deputy president of Hainan Technology and
Industry Group (V8@ FI T&E ) from 1990 to 1994, a deputy
president of Taihe Holdings Co., Ltd. (K& AR A7) from
2001 to 2003 and a director of China Union Pay Data Services
Co., Ltd. (SREAEUE AR A A]) from 2002 to 2005. From August
2008, Mr. Guan became the chairman of Beijing Dongsen Jinbi
Investment Consultancy Co., Ltd. (It RERHFREBREHMAER
72 7)) and a director of China Union Loyalty Co., Ltd. ( /&R
BHAMR AT from August 2008 to October 2014. From April
2010 to March 2011, Mr. Guan became the chairman of Beijing
Shangyin Investment Consultancy Co., Ltd. (FiREb® (bR )&
BR#AMR AT . Mr. Guan owns the entire equity interest in
Beijing Dongsen Jinbi Investment Consultancy Co., Ltd. (1t
Hixe BIREZMAMRAT), an investment company, which in
turns ever owned 10.18% equity interest in China Union Loyalty
Co., Ltd. ( E/BREEABR A A]) . In October of 2014, Beijing
Dongsen Jinbi Investment Consultancy Co., Ltd. (it RE %S
B E AR A F) disposed 10.18% equity interest in China
Union Loyalty Co., Ltd. ( E)SIREEMNBRAR]) .
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERESREEE ZBEFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Cont'a)

Mr. Cao Chunmeng, aged 44, joined the Company in March
2011 and acted as Vice President of the Company. Mr. Cao was
appointed as executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company on 11 July 2012. Mr. Cao held a bachelor’'s degree
in Computer Science from Shandong University in 1994. And
he obtained a master’'s degree in business administration from
Peking University in 2006. He worked at Shandong Branch
of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited, acted
as General Manager in B EEFEHEAER AR (Jinan Xiande
Technology Limited), Senior Deputy President in £ Jt{z (P E)
BBRAF] (Fengyuanxin (China) Limited), General Manager in
Mg R (b)) BT AR AR (Zongheng Tiandi (Beijing)
Information Technology Limited) and as Vice President in 1t#%
5B (UL R)EFEEAR AR (Beikong Easycode (Beijing)
Electric Commerce Ltd). And from April of 2010, Mr. Cao acts as
Vice President of Beijing Shangyin Investment Consultancy Co.,
Limited (F3R A1 (bR ) IR EZMAR A A]) . From July 2012,
Mr. Cao acts as executive director of Kopu (Beijing) Technology
Co., Ltd. (FEER (L) BHEAMRAF]) . Mr. Cao has over
19 years of financial information technology Internet industry
management experience.

Mr. Yan Xiaotian, aged 56, joined the Company in April 2014
and acted as the chief strategy and investment officer of the
Company in April 2014; and acted as the chairman and legal
representative of Beijing ONECOMM Technology Company
Limited, an indirect subsidiary of the Company since December
2014. Mr. Yan has been appointed as an executive Director and
the chief investment officer of the Company with effect from
24 December 2014. Mr. Yan has obtained a master degree
in economics from Graduate School of the People’s Bank of
China (B A RIETTHIT A EB) (which was then merged with
Tsinghua University and known as PBC School of Finance,
Tsinghua University since 2012) and is a senior economist. Mr.,
Yan had worked consecutively as the president of the head
office of Bank of China Limited, vice president of Guangzhou
Branch of China CITIC Bank Corporation Limited (formerly
known as CITIC Industrial Bank Limited), general manager
of CITIC Securities Co., Ltd. (Guangzhou) and director and
executive president of South China International Leasing Co.,
Ltd.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Fong Chi Wah, aged 53, joined the Group in December
19, 2003. Dr. Fong is a Chartered Financial Analyst, a member
of Hong Kong Institute of CPAs and the Institute of Certified
Management Accountants, Australia, and the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors. Dr. Fong has over 25 years of experience
in various sectors of the financial industry, including direct
investment, project and structured finance and capital markets,
with a focus on the PRC and Hong Kong. Dr. Fong was a
director of Baring Capital (China) Management Limited and
held various management positions in ING Bank. He was
appointed as an executive director of National Investments
Fund Limited on November 1, 2005 and an independent non-
executive director of Real Nutriceutical Group Limited on March
28, 2008, and both companies are listed on the Stock Exchange.
Fong obtained a bachelor's degree in management science
(economics) from Lancaster University, United Kingdom, in
1984, a master’'s degree in business administration from
Warwick University, United Kingdom, in 1986, a master's
degree in investment management from the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology in 1999, a master's
degree in practising accounting from Monash University,
Australia, in 2001, a doctorate in business administration from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2007 and a juris
doctor’'s degree from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in
2013.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Cont'd)

Mr. Wang Zhongmin, aged 66, has a diploma in industrial
economic management from B AR KZKIZRER (The
Correspondence School of Renmin University of China*). Mr.
Wang has over 40 years of experience in the coal industry. Mr,
Wang worked as the deputy section head of /& ik T % 2 8 7% &)
(the Finance Department of the Ministry of Coal Industry*) from
1981 to 1988, the section head of H BI#t AL IE 48 N R B 7% 5
(the Finance Department in China National Coal Corporation*)
from1988 to 1993, the section head and the deputy head of /&
R ILEIE 4 E A (the Finance and Labor Department of
Ministry of Coal Industry*) from 1993 to 1995, the chairman
and the general manager of FE(EFEREBRE 2 F] (China
Coal Trust Co., Ltd. *) from 1995 to 2002, the chairman of A
FEFE AR E LA A (China Credit Trust Co., Ltd. *) from 2002
to 2010 and the chalrman of REASEEBMR AT (Harvest
Fund Management Co., Ltd.*) from 2003 to 2011. He was the
first chairman of FEI{ZFLZ %2 (China Trustee Association*).
He was also appointed as the independent director of &KX
e RAY 9 B BR A B (Shanghai Datun Energy Resources Co.,
Limited*) (stock code: 600508) and deputy chairman of A Bl £
% T213)& (China National Coal Association*). Mr. Wang joined
the Company in April 2011.

Mr. Gu Jiawang, aged 65, has accumulated profound
knowledge and valuable experience in the mass media industry.
Mr. Gu worked as a senior editor, commentator, person in
charge of the editing section and the head of the business
development department of AR H# (People's Daily*). He was
also appointed as the chief executive officer of A ZERILE

TRxBBR A7 (China Huawen Investment Holding Company
Limited*) Wh|ch is held by AR B} (Peoples Daily*), the
chairman of FHEEFEREEFREE AR (Zhongtai Trust and
Investment Co Ltd.*), the chairman of LEFEHR (&)
A E{EAF (Shanghai New Huang Pu (Group) Co., Ltd.¥)
and the cha|rman of FINFEH Kt BR AT (Shenzhen
Stock Times Media Limited*). Mr. Gu graduated from the
Philosophy Department of Nanjing University. He also obtained
a postgraduate diploma after studying two years at the Party
School of the Central Committee of C.RC. Mr. Gu joined the
Company in April 2011.
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HONORABLE CHAIRMAN

Mr. Liu Tinghuan, a famous banker, was appointed as
Honorable Chairman of the Company on 23 October 2011. Mr.
Liu was the former chairman of China Unionpay Co., Ltd. Mr.
Liu began his profession in the banking sector of China from
1960s. Since 1985, Mr. Liu had served as deputy president,
deputy Secretary of the Party, and then became the president
and the Party Secretary of Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China. In 2000, Mr. Liu was appointed to the deputy president
and deputy Secretary of the Party Committee of The People’s
Bank of China. Mr. Liu was a committee member of the
Standing Committee of the 10th National Committee of the
Chinese People's Political Consultative Conference in 2003.
He was deputy director of the Economic Commission, an
alternate committee member of the 15th Central Committee
of Communist Party of China and a representative of the
16th National Congress of Communist Party of China. Mr. Liu
served as chairman of China Unionpay Co., Ltd from 2004 to
2010. Mr. Liu served as independent non-executive director of
Bank of Communications since August 2013. Mr. Liu achieved
extraordinary contribution to the development of China
Unionpay and China’s payment industry.
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CHIEF ECONOMIC CONSULTANT

Mr. Xia Bin, a famous economist and financial expert in China,
was acted as the Chief Economic Consultant of the Company
on 8 June 2011. Mr. Xia Bin currently serves as an honorable
director of Research Institute of Finance under Development
Research Centre of the State Council, and Chief Consultant
of China International Futures Co., Ltd. He also acts as an
independent director of China Fortune Land Co., Limited and
Haitong Securities Co., Limited. Mr. Xia was ever a director of
Research Institute of Finance under Development Research
Centre of the State Council, a number of the Monetary Policy
Committee of the People's Bank of China, served as a vice
director of the Institute of Finance of the People’s Bank of
China, a manager of trading department of the CSRC, a general
manager of Shenzhen Stock Exchange, a person-in-charge
of Department of Policy Research of the People’s Bank of
China and a director of Regulatory of Non-Banking Financia
Organization of the People’s Bank of China. Mr. Xia Bin's
research primarily covers macro-economic condition; currency
policy; financial regulatory and the development of the capital
market in China. Mr. Xia wrote or edited a lot of books which
are very influential to the capital markets.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wu Hong, aged 44, was appointed as Vice President of
the Company and General Manager of a subsidiary, Yushun
Investment Consulting (Shanghai) Co., Ltd (¥ /B3% & &
(E8)BRAT) on 24 June 2015. He was graduated from
Zhongnan University majoring in Finance in 1992, and he
obtained a master's degree in business administration from
the Administration School, Wuhan University in 1999. He held
successively positions as Deputy General Manager of Retail
Department of China Minsheng Bank (in charge), Shenzhen
Branch, an assistant general manager of Risk and Management
Department of China Unionpay and Deputy General Manager
of Marketing Department and Internet Department of China
Unionpay. He has 24 years working experience in bank and
payment industry in Mainland China, and knows the finance
well, particularly payment and clearing industry. Meanwhile, he
has extensive experience in management.

Mr. Fung Kwok Leung, aged 50, is the qualified accountant
and company secretary of the Company. Mr. Fung holds
an Honours Degree in Accountancy from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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The Directors present their report together with the audited
financial statements of China Innovationpay Group Limited (“the
Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2015.

THE COMPANY

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda on 17 August
1999 as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended). Its shares
have been listed on The Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“GEM") since 14 April 2000.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in four segments. Namely (i)
General trading: trading of watches, computers, communication
equipments, currency sorters and other goods; (i) Prepaid
card business: provision of third party payment services and
consultancy services; and marketing and sale of consumer
goods in form of prepaid gift cards in the People's Republic of
China (“the PRC"); (iii) Travellers related services: provision of
airticketing services and related customers services; and (iv)
Onecomm — provision of third party payment system solution
and sales of integrated smart point of sales (“POS") devices.

An analysis of the Group’s turnover, segment result and
segment assets for the year ended 31 December 2015 are set
out in Note 8 and 10 respectively to the accompanying financial
statements.

CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the five largest
customers accounted for approximately 69% (2014: 43%) of
the Group's total turnover, while the five largest suppliers of
the Group accounted for approximately 92% (2014: 77%) of the
Group's total purchases. The largest customer accounted for
approximately 43% (2014: 15%) of the Group’s total turnover
while the largest supplier accounted for approximately 69%
(2014: 23%) of the Group's total purchases.

As far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors, their
associates, or any shareholders (which, to the knowledge of
the Directors, owned more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had a beneficial interest in the five largest customers
and suppliers of the Group.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

Details of the Group's results for the year ended 31 December
2015 are set out on pages 54 to 57 of this annual report.

DIVIDEND

The Directors did not recommend the payment of any dividend
(2014 Nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements share capital of the Company are set out
in Note 36 to the accompanying financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, based on information that is
publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the directors, the directors confirm that the Company
maintained a sufficient of public float as required under the
GEM Listing rules.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

As at 31 December 2015, there is no outstanding convertible
bonds.

WARRANTS

On 6 February 2015 (after trading hours), the Company and
Greater China Select Fund (the “Subscriber”) entered into the
Subscription Agreement. Following obtaining the Shareholders’
approval of the Warrant Subscription and issue of the Warrant
Shares at the SGM dated 29 June 2015, all conditions set out in
the Subscription Agreement have been fulfilled and completion
of the Warrant Subscription took place on 6 July 2015. Warrants
of an aggregate amount of HK$381.6 million have been issued
to the Subscriber at the Issue Price of HK$0.002 per Warrant.
The Warrants entitle the Subscriber to subscribe a maximum
of 530,000,000 Warrant Shares at the initial Subscription Price
of HK$0.72 per Warrant Share for a period of five (5) years
commencing from the date of issue of the Warrants.

As at this report date, there were still outstanding
530,000,000 Warrant Shares with an aggregate face value of
HK$381,600,000 to be subscribed.
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RESERVES AND RETAINED PROFITS

Movements in reserves of the Company during the year are set
out in Note 38 to the accompanying financial statements.

Movements in retained profits and other reserves of the Group
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 58 of this annual report.

As at 31 December 2015 the Company had no reserves
available for distribution to its shareholders. However, the
Company’'s share premium account, in the amount of
approximately HK$1,151,475,000, may be distributed in the
form of fully paid bonus shares.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company'’s listed shares during the
year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Byelaws and the laws in Bermuda in relation to the
issue of new shares by the Company.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries and associates are
set out in Notes 20 and 21 respectively to the accompanying
financial statements.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Details of the Group's share option schemes are set out in Note
39 to the accompanying financial statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions are set out in Note 44 to
the accompanying financial statements.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Guan Guisen (Chairman)
Dr. Lei Chunxiong (Resigned on 19 June 2015)

Mr. Cao Chunmeng (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Yan Xiaotian

Independent non-executive Directors
Dr. Fong Chi Wah

Mr. Wang Zhongmin

Mr. Gu Jiawang

In accordance with items 99 and 102A of the Bye-Laws of the
Company, Mr. Cao Chunmeng and Dr. Fong Chi Wah wiill retire
from office by rotation and being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Guan Guisen, the executive director, has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 28 February 2014.

Mr. Cao Chunmeng, the executive director, has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 11 July 2015.

Mr. Yan Xiaotian, the executive director, has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 24 December 2014.

Dr. Fong Chi Wah, the independent non-executive directors, has
entered the service agreement with the Company for a term of
three years commencing from 19 December 2015.
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Dr. Fong Chi Wah has served on the Board for more than 9
years but he has never held any executive or management
position in the Group nor has he throughout such period been
under the employment of any member of the Group. Dr. Fong
has demonstrated his ability to provide an independent view
to the Company’'s matters. The Directors noted the positive
contributions Dr. Fong made to the development of the
Company. Dr. Fong Chi Wah has given the confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of GEM Listing Rules to
the Company. The nomination committee of the Company has
assessed and is satisfied of the independence of Dr. Fong. The
Board considers that the long services of Dr. Fong would not
affect his exercises of independent judgments, notwithstanding
his years of service as an independent Non-executive Director
of the Company, the Board is of the view that Dr. Fong is able to
continue to fulfill his roles as required.

Mr. Wang Zhongmin, the independent non-executive director,
has entered into a service agreement with the Company for a
term of three years commencing from 28 April 2014.

Mr. Gu Jiawang, the independent non-executive director,has
entered into a service agreement with the Company for a term
of three years commencing from 28 April 2014.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors being proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has an unexpired service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the
Company to which the Company, its holding company or any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN SHARES

As at the date of this report, the interests or short positions of
the Directors in the Shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (i) were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred

EERRAER
RS BE - EBERARR T = H F AR5
FE(EERBHLBEGROIEXVED) 2’
f“ ARG REEBP - HE () IRIRE %&
HAE G M EXVER B 78D WA ME AR A
KB R Tz m ok B (BERIEE %&Hﬁ
BIEHE BIESCRIIESAR BT R 2 Emk
ié) (i) IR IR FE 5 & B E 150 553521558
AR AZGATME R R RAR 5
(iii) $ETFEIJ%$&L MR A 5E5.46 25671556 7

to therein; or (i) were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 EF#ETEFXH ZHRTEAME AN A] N HE
of the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions XFTZEmIOABLAT
by Directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follows:
Long position in Shares RBRBZHFE
Interest in
Interest in underlying Total interest %
Name of Directors shares shares in shares Shareholding
REBR G RR %
EEEB RRG 2 & 2R 2B BRER D
Mr. Guan Guisen (Note 1) 1,311,792,000 (L) - 1,311,792,000 (L) 21.81%
MERLE (M:E1) 1,140,000,000 (S) 1,140,000,000 (S) 18.95%
Mr. Cao Chunmeng 47620,000 55,800,000 103,420,000 1.72%
BERHELAE (Note 2)
(Hiz2)
Mr. Yan Xiaotian 21,640,000 25,000,000 46,640,000 0.78%
BERLTE (Note 2)
(Hf7t2)
Dr. Fong Chi Wah - 4,000,000 4,000,000 0.07%
AEEEFEL (Note 2)
(H7t2)
Mr. Wang Zhongmin 1,000,000 3,000,000 4,000,000 0.07%
THRREE (Note 2)
(Hiz2)
Mr. Gu Jiawang 1,000,000 3,000,000 4,000,000 0.07%
AEriE (Note 2)
(Hf7z2)
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Note 1: The shares are held by Mighty Advantage Enterprises Limited
(“Mighty Advantage”). Mighty Advantage is incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands and is beneficially owned by Mr. Guan
Guisen.

Note 2. The Company granted the share options under New Share
Option Scheme on 6 July 2012 and 11 June 2015.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, none
of the Directors of the Company had any interests or short
positions in any Shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which (i) were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) were required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered into the register referred
to therein; or (iii) were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions
by Directors to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

INTERESTS DISCLOSEABLE UNDERTHE SFO
AND SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed below, as at the date of this report, there was
no other person (other than a director or chief executive officer
of the Company) who had any interests and short positions in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO.

Hfat1 - 2 5 R ) B Mighty Advantage
Enterprises Limited ([Mighty
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Long position in Shares RRGOZHR

Interest in

Interest in underlying Total interest %

Name of Directors shares shares in shares Shareholding

REBER % R
EEEB R 2R 2R ZBRER REBSL
Mr. Guan Guisen (Note) 1,311,792,000 (L) - 1,311,792,000 (L) 21.81%
WMEREE (WiE) 1,140,000,000 (S) 1,140,000,000 (S) 18.95%
Note:  The shares are held by Mighty Advantage Enterprises Limited Mist: 2 55 B mMighty Advantage

(“Mighty Advantage"”). Mighty Advantage is incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands and is beneficially owned by Mr. Guan
Guisen.
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EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTIONS

New Share Option Scheme (“Share Option Scheme”) was
adopted at the annual general meeting held 3 May 2012 and is
valid for 5 years. After which period no further options will be
granted but the provisions of this scheme shall remain in full
force and effect in all other respects.

Share Option Scheme is set out below:

The purpose of Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives
or rewards to participants hereunder for their contribution to
the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit and retain high-
calibre employees and attract human resources that are valuable
to the Group and any entity in which the Group holds any equity
interest.

Pursuant to Share Option Scheme, the Company may grant
options to the participants of Share Option Scheme to subscribe
for ordinary shares of $0.01 each, subject to, when aggregated
under this scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company must not exceed 30% of the total number of
shares in issue from time to time. The subscription price will
be determined by the Company’'s Board of Directors, and
will not be less than the higher of (i) the nominal value of the
ordinary shares, (i) the average of the closing price of the
ordinary shares quoted on the GEM on the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant, and (iii) the closing
price of ordinary shares quoted on the GEM on the date of
grant, which must be a business day. An offer of an option
shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted when a
duplicate letter comprising acceptance of the option duly signed
by the participant, together with a remittance of HK$1 by way of
consideration for the grant thereof, is received by the Company
within a period of 28 days from the date of offer.

The Directors may, at their absolute discretion, invite any
person who has contributed to, or can contribute to the Group's
business value and/or technology from product development,
sales and marketing, manufacturing to enhancing efficiency of
operation to take up options to subscribe for ordinary shares of
the Company.
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No participant shall be granted an option which would result
in the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all the options granted and to be granted to such
person (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options)
in any 12-month period up to and including the date of such
grant representing in aggregate over 1 per cent. of the total
number of shares in issue.

On 11 June 2015, the Company granted certain share options
(the “Share Option”) to eligible persons of the Group (the
“Grantees”) which entitles the Grantees to subscribe for an
aggregate of 202,714,000 new ordinary share of HK$0.01 each
in the capital of the Company, subject to the acceptance by the
Grantees, under the New Share Option Scheme adopted by
the shareholders of the Company on 3 May 2012. The Exercise
Price of the Share Option is HK$1.25 per share.

Details of the options under New Share Option Scheme during
the year ended 31 December 2015 were as follows:

2 BERETEEESER G T ERD
PREBRE (BEDTE SEHERERTT
ER)REAHE ) M E 31T MA] T EITHRUD 2K
B -BRbZEEREZR (BERLEZA)
REEHER12E A HE A HBB e HTRN &
1% AN EEZEALRDERE-

RARRZE—RAFANA+—HZRBARQR]
BERERR-_ZT——F 0 8= BRNZHERE
TE AAEBAEEBRAL ([FARAD R
HTIEARE ([MEARE ) - WREAR AR
AN B R AR A $£202,714,0000% & A% E &
0.01B Tz LM WAFSEBRAESH
EHIEE -IBRETEEARERI2E T

REBEE-Z—RAFE+-_A=+—HIFER
BT IR AT B H M B AR S 1B E M 1A
T

At Granted Cancelled/ Exercised At
Exercise 1 January during  lapsed during during 31 December
Date of grant Exercise period price 2015 the year the year the year 2015
RZB-1F FREH/ R-Z-1%
BREAH 758 5 -A-8 FRERL 3 FRIE T=A=T+-H
New Share Option Scheme
FERETE
Directors and Chief Executives
ESREMRTRAER
6 July 2012 6 July 2013 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 6,240,000 - - - 6,240,000
ZE-ZHLARA ZE-CELAREE 0.25% 7T
“T—t45tAAA
6 July 2014 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 6,240,000 - - - 6,240,000
ZZ-MELAREE 0.25%7T
“Z2—t45tAAA
6 July 2015 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 9,120,000 - - (800,000) 8,320,000
“Z-REtARRE 0.25% 7T
“E—tF5tARA
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At Granted Cancelled/ Exercised At
Exercise 1 January during lapsed during during 31 December
Date of grant Exercise period price 2015 the year the year the year 2015
RZB-1F FRiEE/ R=Z2-1%
B A 758 I5fE -A-8H ERRL £ FRTE T=A=T+-H
New Share Option Scheme
HERE
Directors and Chief Executives
ESREHRTHAER
11 June 2015 1 February 2016 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 - 21,000,000 - - 21,000,000
“E-RFAA+-AH “E-XE-A-RBE% 125 TC
ZZZZERATH
1 February 2017 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 - 21,000,000 - - 21,000,000
“ET—+%-F-HZ 1.25/87C
ZTZTExA1H
1 February 2018 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 - 28,000,000 - - 28,000,000
“E-\¥-F—-HZ 125870
ZTZT5~ATH
Other employees
HitER
6 July 2012 6 July 2013 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 236,000 - (21,000) (215,000) -
“E-Z5tARAH I = ES 0.25% 7T
—E—tFtAAHE
6 July 2014 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 298,000 - (37,000) (261,000) -
ZT-MELAARE 0.25%7T
“2—t45tAnA
6 July 2015 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 67,556,000 - (524,000)  (28,984,000) 38,048,000
ZE-n§tARRE 0.25% 7T
—E—t5tARA
11 June 2015 1 February 2016 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 - 39,814,200 (1,022,400) - 38,791,800
ZZ-R%~A+-H “E-"¥-F—-HZ 125870
ZTZFF~ATH
1 February 2017 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 - 39,814,200 (1,022,400) - 38,791,800
“Z-t4¥-A-A% 12587
ZZ2ZERATH
1 February 2018 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 - 53,085,600 (1,363,200) - 51,722,400
“Z-\FZf—-HZ 125870
ZZZTFRATH
Total share options
BlREE 89,690,000 202,714,000 (3,990,000  (30,260,000) 258,154,000

If the options remain unexercised after a period of 5 years from
the date of grant, the options will expire. Options are forfeited if
the employee leaves the Group.
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Details of the options under New Share Option Scheme as at
the report date were as follows:

AR BRI BRIt IR
ERERILIT ¢

At Granted Cancelled/ Exercised At
Exercise 1 January during  lapsed during during report
Date of grant Exercise period price 2015 the year the period the period date
RZE-1% B/
BREAH (g EE -A-H FRRY %¥ BRIt RERERH
New Share Option Scheme
HERE
Directors and Chief Executives
ESREHRTRAER
6 July 2012 6 July 2013 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 6,240,000 - - - 6,240,000
ZE-ZHLARA ZE-CELAREE 0.25%7T
“Z—+FtARA
6 July 2014 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 6,240,000 - - - 6,240,000
ZZ-MELAREE 02587
“Z—tF5tARA
6 July 2015 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 9,120,000 - - (800,000) 8,320,000
i = E 0.25% 7T
“E—tF5tARA
11 June 2015 1 February 2016 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 - 21,000,000 - - 21,000,000
ZT-R%~A+-H “E-"¥-A—-HZ 125 7T
ZTZT5XATH
1 February 2017 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 - 21,000,000 - - 21,000,000
“T—t5-f-BZ 12587
—Z2ZERATH
1 February 2018 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 - 28,000,000 - - 28,000,000
“Z-N\FZR-RHZ% 125870
ZE-ZFERATH
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At Granted Cancelled/ Exercised At
Exercise 1 January during lapsed during during report
Date of grant Exercise period price 2015 the year the period the period date
R-ZB-1% HRE/
BB 758 I5fE -A-8H ERRL £ BATE REABRSEH
Other employees
HittfES
6 July 2012 6 July 2013 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 236,000 - (21,000) (215,900) -
—E-ZFtARHE ZT-=f5tAABE 0.25%7T
“2—t45tAnA
6 July 2014 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 298,000 - (37,000) (261,000) -
“E-NELAAAE 0.25%7T
—E—tF5tARA
6 July 2015 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 67,556,000 - (524,000) (29,984,000) 38,048,000
ik = E 0.25% 7T
—E—tFtAAHE
11 June 2015 1 February 2016 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 - 39,814,200 (1,022,400) - 38,791,800
“E-haF~A+-AH “E-XE-A-RBE% 125 TC
ZZ2ZERATH
1 February 2017 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 - 39,814,200 (1,022,400) - 38,791,800
“E—+F-F-HZ 125/ 7C
ZZZZFRATH
1 February 2018 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 - 53,085,600 (1,363,200) - 51,722,400
“E-\¥-F—-HZ 125870
ZTZT5~ATH
Total share options
BRigag 89,690,000 202,714,000 (3,990,000) (30,260,000) 258,154,000

If the options remain unexercised after a period of 5 years from
the date of grant, the options will expire. Options are forfeited if
the employee leaves the Group.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company was entered into or existed during the year.

CODE OF BEST PRACTICE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied
with the standards of good practice concerning the general
management responsibilities of the Board of Directors as set
out in Chapter 5 of the GEM Listing Rules throughout year
ended 31 December 2015.

FIVEYEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and consolidated statement of financial position of the
Group is set out on pages 183 and 184 of this annual report.

AUDITORS

At the Company's last Annual General Meeting, RSM Nelson
Wheeler was re-appointed as auditor of the Company. On 26
October 2015 our auditor changed the name under which it
practices to RSM Hong Kong and accordingly has signed its
report under its new name.

RSM Hong Kong retires, and, being eligible, offers themselves
for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
RSM Hong Kong will be put at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.

By Order of the Board
Mr. Guan Guisen

Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2016
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Pursuant to the Rule 18.44 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”), the Board is pleased to
present the corporate governance report for the year ended
31 December 2015. This report highlights the key corporate
governance practices of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance to protect the interests of the
shareholders of the Company. The Company's corporate
governance practices are based on principles and code
provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code
("Code”) in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. The
Company complied with the Code for the year ended 31
December 2015.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group adopted the required standard of dealings set out
in rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as the code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions in securities
of the Company. Upon the Company’s specific enquiry, each
director had confirmed that during the year ended 31 December
2015, they had fully complied with the required standard of
dealings and there was no event of non-compliance.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board is responsible for overall management and control
of the Company. Its main roles are to provide leadership and to
approve strategic policies and plans with a view to enhancing
shareholder value. All directors carry out their duties in good
faith and in compliance with applicable laws and regulations,
taking decisions objectively, and acting in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders at all times.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information as well as the advice and services of the Company
Secretary and senior management, with a view to ensuring that
Board procedures and all applicable laws and regulations are
followed. Any director may request independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense,
upon making reasonable request to the Board.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters of
the Company, including approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management systems, material transactions (in particular those
that may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of directors and other significant financial and
operational matters.

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management

As at 31 December 2015, the Board comprised three
Executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive
Directors. Details of biographical details of directors and senior
management are set out on page 18 to 24 of this annual report.

The Board complies with the minimum requirements of the
GEM Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors and one of them has the
appropriate professional qualifications required under Rule 5.05
of the GEM Listing Rules.
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Board Meetings

The Board has adopted good corporate governance practices
and procedures, formal notice of at least 14 days will be given
in respect of a regular meeting. For special board meeting,
reasonable notice will be given. Directors participated, either
in person or through other electronic means of communication
in the Board meetings. The Board meets regularly at least
four times every year. The directors participated in person or
through electronic means of communication. All notices of
board meetings were given to all directors, who were given an
opportunity to include matters in the agenda for discussion. The
finalised agenda and accompanying board papers were sent to
all directors at least 3 days prior to the meeting.

During regular meetings of the Board, the directors discuss
the overall strategy as well as the operation and financial
performance of the Group. The Board has reserved for its
decision or consideration matters covering overall Group
strategy, major acquisitions and disposals, annual budgets,
annual and interim results, approval of major capital transactions
and other significant operational and financial matters.

All directors are kept informed on a timely basis of major
changes that may affect the Group's businesses, including
relevant rules and regulations. Directors can also seek
independent professional advice in performing their duties at
the Company's expense, if necessary. The Company Secretary
records the proceedings of each board meeting in detail by
keeping detailed minutes, including all decisions by the Board
together with concerns raised and dissenting views expressed
(if any). All minutes are open for inspection at any reasonable
time on request by any director.
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The Board held four board meetings in 2015. Attendance of the
directors were as follows:

EEER T -AFHBTOAESE -2
ESHFEgRTHOT:

Name of Directors Attendance
BEEnE HE R E
Executive Directors

HITES

Mr. Guan Guisen 4/4
BAERLE

Dr. Lei Chunxiong (Resigned on 19 June 2015) 2/2
EaiE L (E-E—RAF AT NAHEIT)

Mr. Cao Chunmeng 4/4
BEHEE

Mr. Yan Xiaotian 4/4
EIBE 5t &

Independent non-executive Directors

BY¥HTES

Dr. Fong Chi Wah 4/4
FEEEL

Mr. Wang Zhongmin 4/4
FHERLA

Mr. Gu Jiawang 4/4
AR ST AE

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are separate
and not performed by the same individual to avoid power
being concentrated in any one individual. The Chairman of
the Company is primarily responsible for the leadership and
effective running of the Board and ensuring that all key and
appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a timely and
constructive manner, whereas the Chief Executive Officer is
primarily responsible for the running of the Group’s business
and implementation of the Group's strategies in achieving the
overall commercial objectives.

The Chairman also encourages all directors, including the
independent non-executive directors, to actively participate in all
board and committee meetings.
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Appointment and Re-Election of Directors

All directors are appointed for a specific term. All the executive
directors and independent non-executive directors of the
Company are engaged on a service contract of appointment
with the Company for a term of three years.

Besides, the procedures and process of appointment, re-
election and removal of directors are laid down in the
Company's Bye-laws. According to Bye-laws, all directors of
the Company are subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years and are eligible for re-election at annual
general meetings of the Company. Any new director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall submit himself for
re-election by shareholders at the first general meeting and any
new director appointed by the Board as an addition to the Board
shall submit himself/herself for re-election by shareholders at
the next following annual general meeting.

In accordance with Bye-laws, Mr. Cao Chunmeng and Dr.
Fong Chi Wah shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company. The Board recommends their re-appointment.
The Company'’s circular, sent together with this annual report,
contains detail information of the above two directors as
required by the GEM Listing Rules.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considers
that all the independent non-executive directors to be
independent.
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Directors’ Training

All directors should keep abreast of the responsibilities as
a director, and of the conduct and business activities of the
Company. The Company is responsible for arranging and funding
suitable training for its directors. Accordingly, the Company
has put in place a training and development programme for
the directors including: an on-going training and professional
development programme for directors.

The Company regularly organizes the seminars for the directors.
In addition, individual Directors also participated in other
courses relating to the roles, functions and duties of a listed
company director or further enhancement of their professional
development by way of online aids or reading relevant materials.

All executive and independent non-executive Directors had
provided the Company Secretary with their training records for
the year under review.

Directors’ Code of Ethics

The directors observe a code of ethics (the “Code of Ethics”)
which is formulated and adopted to enhance the standard of
corporate governance and corporate behaviour. The principles
on which the Code of Ethics relies are those that concern
transparency, integrity, accountability and corporate social
responsibility taking into account the relevant provisions and
requirements by the governing authorities.

Continuing Connected Transactions

The Company did not have material transactions which fell
under the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing
connected transaction” which required disclosure under the
GEM Listing Rule Chapter 20.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 30 June
2005. The Remuneration Committee is with the responsibility
of approving the remuneration policy for all Directors and senior
executives. The Remuneration Committee members include a
majority of independent non-executive Directors as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Guan Guisen
Mr. Cao Chunmeng
Dr. Lei Chunxiong
(Resigned on 19 June 2015)

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. Fong Chi Wah

Mr. Wang Zhongmin — Chairman of Remuneration Committee
Mr. Gu Jiawang

All Remuneration Committee members met at the end of the
year for the determination of the remuneration packages of
Directors and senior management of the Group. In addition, the
Remuneration Committee members also meet as and when
required to consider remuneration related matters. The works
carried out by the Remuneration Committee are set out below:

(a) to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company's policy and structure of remuneration of
Directors and the senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policy on such remuneration;

(b)  to determine the specific remuneration packages of
all executive Directors and the senior management,
including benefits in kind, provident/retirement
benefits and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their
office or appointment, and make recommendations to the
Board of the remuneration of independent non-executive
Directors;
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(c) to review and approve performance-based remuneration

by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved
by the Board from time to time;

to review and approve the compensation payable to
executive Directors, senior management in connection
with any loss or termination of their office or appointment
to ensure that such compensation is determined in
accordance with relevant contractual terms and that such
compensation is otherwise fair and not excessive for the
Company; and

to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for
misconduct to ensure that such arrangements are
determined in accordance with relevant contractual
terms and that any compensation payment is otherwise
reasonable and appropriate.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 30 June
2005. The Nomination Committee made recommendations
to the Board on the appointment of Directors and the senior
management personnel with reference to certain guidelines
as endorsed by the Nomination Committee members. The
Nomination Committee members include all directors as
follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Guan Guisen
Mr. Cao Chunmeng
Dr. Lei Chunxiong
(Resigned on 19 June 2015)

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. Fong Chi Wah

Mr. Wang Zhongmin

Mr. Gu Jiawang — Chairman of Nomination Committee

All Nomination Committee members met at the end of the year.
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The works carried out by the Nomination Committee members
are set out below:

(a) to review the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) and to make
recommendations to the Board after such review;

(b)  to assess the independence of independent non-
executive Directors, having regard to the requirements
under the GEM Listing Rules; and

(c) to make recommendations to the Board on relevant
matters relating to the appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors who possess the appropriate business
and financial experience and skills to understand financial
statements. The current Committee is chaired by Dr. Fong Chi
Wah, and the other Audit Committee members are Mr. Wang
Zhongmin and Mr. Gu Jiawang. Under its terms of reference
for audit committee passed under a directors’ resolution dated
30 June 2005, is required, amongst other things, to oversee
the relationship with the external auditors, to review the
Group's preliminary results, interim results and annual financial
statements and to monitor compliance with statutory and listing
requirements, to engage independent legal or other advisers as
it determines is necessary and to perform any investigations.
The Audit Committee members held four meetings in 2015.
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Name of Directors Attendance
BEEA HERE
Independent non-executive Dr Fong Chi Wah — Chairman of Audit Committee 4/4
Directors AEERT-—FHZTE2FE
BYIEMITES Mr. Wang Zhongmin 4/4
THERLSE
Mr. Gu Jiawang 4/4
PN :l:HE /j-IE IEE
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Financial Statements

The Audit Committee held meetings to discuss the Group's
quarterly results, interim results, preliminary results
announcement and Annual Report. The Audit Committee
reviews and discusses the management’s reports and
representations with a view to ensuring that the Group's
consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and compliance with the GEM Listing
Rules and other legal requirements.

The Audit Committee and the Company’'s external auditors
have reviewed the Company’s financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2015 and has provided advice and
comments thereon.

The Audit Committee also makes recommendations to the
Board on the appointment and retention of the external
auditors.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Group engaged RSM Hong Kong to provide services in
connection with the audit of the Company’'s consolidated
financial statements and other professional services.

Auditors’ Remuneration
During the year under review, the remuneration paid/payable to
the Company’s auditors, RSM Hong Kong, is set out as follows:

Bk

B RERBTERRNAREERE P
HIRE VP EEREUNRFR-BHEE
SEM L WEEERE MR ARERA
SEZEAMBHRRNVRELGTERNER
M HmEERNER BNAAIER LR
REAMEERE °

FHEAFRRRAR AL RBAEN
ANARBE-F-BFT=A=T+—AL
FEZIEHRE LRI IRE R RIS

B Z B MAZENMBE ESNEZEEDAE
ERRHHEEER -

SRR B
AEEERRIGEE (BB GHBEHH
BT A BB IRE R FERBRUR
T o

BB <
EEEA 2N/ BRNARR R IRE
(BB GMEHHMEMT :

Fees paid/payable

R KRB

HK$'000

Services rendered 2 ENER FERT
Audit services ZH AR 1,400
Non-audit services* FEAZ B AR 75 * 13
Total: 4G - 1,413
* The non-audit service fees paid/payable to the external auditors ~ * B EAINEZEBMB IEBREE - B

were for advice on taxation matters and for preparation, review
and submission of tax returns.
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DIRECTORS’ AND INDEPENDENT AUDITORS'
RESPONSIBILITY FORTHE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries, in accordance with
accounting principle generally accepted in Hong Kong. The
Directors’ responsibilities in the preparation of the financial
statements and the auditors’ responsibilities are set out in the
Independent Auditor's Report in this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

An internal control system, being an integral part of the
Company's operations, is a process effected by the Board and
management team to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the effectiveness and efficiency of operations in achieving
the established corporate objectives, safeguarding Company
assets, providing reliable financial reporting, and complying with
applicable laws and regulations.

The Board is responsible for making appropriate assertions on
the adequacy of internal controls over financial reporting and the
effectiveness of disclosure controls and procedures. Through
the Audit Committee, it regularly reviews the effectiveness of
the system.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company assists the Board by
ensuring good information flow within the Board and that Board
policy and procedures are followed. The company secretary is
also responsible for advising the Board on governance matters.
As an employee of the Company, Mr. Fung Kwok Leung, the
company secretary of the Company, has undertaken not less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training to update his
skills and knowledge in 2015.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND
SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Board is committed to providing clear and full information
about the Company’s performance to shareholders through
the publication of quarterly reports and annual report. In
addition to dispatching circulars, notices and financial reports
to shareholders, additional information is also available to
shareholders on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company, which is updated regularly. The annual general
meeting provides a useful forum for shareholders to raise
comments and exchange views with the Board. Shareholders
are encouraged to attend annual general meetings for which the
Company gives at least 21 days’ notice. The Chairman, Directors
and external auditors are available to answer questions on
the Company’s businesses at the meeting. The Company
values feedback from shareholders on its effort to promote
transparencies and foster investor relationships.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZBEREE

TO THE MEMBERS OF
CHINA INNOVATIONPAY GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Innovationpay Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 54 to 182 which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FORTHE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BUZHERES

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified
audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BUZHEARES

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

As set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements,
goodwill with carrying amounts of HK$694,919,000 and
HK$12,589,000 were allocated to the cash-generating units
(“CGUs") of Prepaid Card and Related Operations and
Onecomm, respectively, and the carrying amounts of both
CGUs were assessed for impairment by management. The
recoverable amounts of the CGUs were determined based
on value in use calculations. The Group prepared cash flow
forecasts for a five year period based on the assumption
that both CGUs would experience significant growth rates in
revenues during the forecast period. Management considered
that the forecast revenues would be achieved because, among
other factors, (i) the Group obtained the approval to operate
the card of =& e {24 1F K in the People’'s Republic of China
countrywide on a pilot basis in November 2014 and (i) the
Group newly acquired a group of subsidiaries with expertise
in prepaid card system, and finance and internet industries in
September 2015.

However, the historical performance of & [& i@ e i £ {
| business has not met the Group's forecast revenues. In
addition, we have not been provided with a comprehensive
business plan to demonstrate how the Group will achieve
the forecast revenues. Consequently, we were unable to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to assess the
appropriateness of the assumptions related to the growth
in revenues during the forecast period. Any adjustments
found to be necessary to the assumptions related to the
growth in revenues during the forecast period would have
a consequential effect on the recoverable amount of both
CGUs. Any impairment losses arising as a result of the revised
assumptions would have an effect on the Group's net assets as
at 31 December 2015, the net loss for the year then ended and
the disclosure related to impairment losses in the consolidated
financial statements.

52 China Innovationpay Group Limited
Annual Report 2015

REZREE

WnAR A B MEA W 19TE - BRE A
694,919,000/% 7T &.12,589,000% 7T 2 i &
EDRINEEETEN R REEEBIA L — B8
MzBReEAEN ([REELEM]) AR
CEAEMNERECREEBHMEED
FE-REEABNZAIKESEDIREE
REEAEET BSECERBRER
EEBENRTERM SR RS ANRIE &
REBEAFHASRBA -BEEERA
MR (EREeiE) () EEEeR-2—m4F
+—AMGIERFEARANBE S EHEE
W S B e N R EMK K (i) &
EBER T RAFNAFOKE—BHE
BAORENREG RS EBAITEZHE
NGRS e Gl R =

A REBeMBENFEB s AARERIL
KEH BEEEZEARZE N BED
REMEEERTEIAER E£EB0M
ERIEAW R B EEBEARFTENE
H 2 BIZE BTGB B e 78 R AR R 35
RZB&2@EE % - A5 B e 72 78 8] B
BB R 2 BREED 2 EMFARGSE it
M E 3R & FE A B < AT U B & BB A5 SR B FE 52
Z A BRREEAZERREBESS
Y BEEEN-_ZET—HF+-_A=1+—8Z
BEEFE HEZHLEFEZEBRFERE
REUBHmERNREEIEE R BRENF
@,



= R
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT S
BB RE E

QUALIFIED OPINION RESR

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter described ZEEFRA BRRBEREE-—BRMMEEZ
in the basis for qualified opinion paragraph, the consolidated F &M RIBFFEH KR EER e MK
financial statements give a true and fair view of the Group's MHMEXEEAQA VMR EEER T —HF
financial position as at 31 December 2015 and its financial TZA=+—BZHBRR Uk BEHHE
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in BEZRILFEZHBRELEEAE A
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and B RIEEE R RGDIZ KER T L EmE -
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

RSM Hong Kong PIGEE (BB ETMEBKAA
Certified Public Accountants HEEFED

Hong Kong BE

30 March 2016 —E-XH¥=HA=+H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

meiEmK
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 BHE_ZT—RAFt+-_A=+—HIFE
2015 2014
—E-HFE —T—OF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FHET
Turnover —E 3G 8 103,861 81,222
Cost of sales & AR (71,764) (46,173)
Gross profit EX 32,097 35,049
Other income H A A 9 15,027 4,461
Selling expenses HERX (41,193) (31,181)
Administrative expenses FTEFAX (114,897) (60,675)
Equity-settled share-based payments IRt EE IR 2 A (57,548) (4,463)
Loss from operations KeEBE (166,514) (56,809)
Finance costs Bl & B AR 11 (15) (9,714)
Gain on fair value change of contingent  FEf s ARE A FEE &)
consideration payables W &= 13,155 -
Impairment of goodwill EESNERE! 19 (4,641) (53,323)
Loss before tax BRBIBIEE (158,015) (119,846)
Income tax expense FrisiM = 12 (2,556) (3,740)
Loss for the year REEREE 13 (160,571) (123,586)
Attributable to: LT ALHER,:
Owners of the Company RRFHER A (153,818) (122,724)
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR (6,753) (862)
(160,571) (123,586)
HK cents HK cents
AL AL
Loss per share BRER 16
Basic R (2.71) (2.37)
Diluted e N/AREBA NATER
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meBmRkEMEEIRAK

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

HE-_T—RF+-A=T—HILFE

2015 2014
—E-HF —T—NNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Loss for the year REEFE (160,571) (123,586)
Other comprehensive income: Hh2EUBA:
Iltems that may be reclassified to AREERT 7 R B &
profit or loss: HE -
Exchange differences on translating BEBINEE 2
foreign operations MEH =5 (42,459) (20,387)
Other comprehensive income for the FREMZ2ERA
year, net of tax HRHE (42,459) (20,387)
Total comprehensive income for the year FAZEHKALTE (203,030) (143,973)
Attributable to: BT AL
Owners of the Company KRBER A (196,277) (143,111)
Non-controlling interests IR HE = (6,753) (862)
(203,030) (143,973)
PERIF XN EBER AR 55
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e IR R

AT 31 DECEMBER 2015

RZZE—RF+=A=1+—H

2015 2014
—E-HEE —T—@mF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHExT FHET
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M WE R&E 17 15,308 8,122
Intangible assets mEEE 18 9,758 16,450
Long term deposits RHZS 25 24,531 28,281
Goodwill B 19 707,508 686,451
Investment in an associate R—EBME AR ZIRE 21 - -
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESRERE 22 110,002 62,525
Deferred tax assets EEFIAEE 35 - 1,876
867,107 803,705
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 23 1,941 6,770
Trade receivables JE AR 3R 24 43,182 59,5693
Prepayments, deposits and other TAMRIE e RHEM
receivables eI R 25 31,994 72,873
Amount due from a non-controlling el —REMB AR —%
shareholder of a subsidiary FEIZ AR A% 3R FRIR 26 215 -
Bank and cash balances RTINS AR 27 236,608 162,595
313,940 301,831
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables FETER R 28 3,744 11,956
Accruals and other payables TR E A M HE M EN FRIE 29 38,787 49,870
Borrowings B 30 - 625
Amounts due to non-controlling FEAS B /B 2 ) FE4E IR AR 3R
shareholders of subsidiaries A 31 776 666
Amounts due to directors JEREEHIB 31 1,003 5
Current tax liabilities HAIEAE 2,639 2,904
Contingent consideration payables JERT SRR E 32 19,667 10,110
Financial guarantee B HEIR 34 41,365 -
107,981 76,136
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BRI R

AT 31 DECEMBER 2015

RZZ—hF+-A=+—H

2015 2014

—E-HF —T—NNF

Note HK$'000 HK$'000

B 3T TERT FAETT

Net current assets REBEEFE 205,959 225,695

Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAEE 1,073,066 1,029,400
Non-current liabilities eI h=Ki

Convertible bonds A MR ES 33 - -

Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIBAE 35 749 1,076

749 1,076

NET ASSETS EERE 1,072,317 1,028,324
Capital and reserves BXRK#E

Share capital &N 36 60,158 56,055

Reserves i 38 984,462 965,767

Equity attributable to owners of RARIHEE ANELER

the Company 1,044,620 1,021,822

Non-controlling interests FEIE IR R 27,697 6,502

TOTAL EQUITY FERBEE 1,072,317 1,028,324

Approved by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2016 and are

signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Guan Guisen

BMEARLE

ROIZE-—RE-A=tHRE=SHE I
HTNIESREARE:

Mr. Cao Chunmeng
EEHKLE
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* CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
meEREER

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015 HE_ZT-—RF+_A=1T—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ALAREAES
Convertible
Share Share bonds Retained Non-
Share  premium Capital ~ Statutory  Exchange option equity  Warant profits/ controlling Total
capital  account reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve (loss) Total interests equity
TER
BRE B3EE  ZRER REEA/ FER

Ba ROEEER EARE  AERE  ENRE it fife fif  (5R) ait B ERAE
HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HK§000
TEr TR AR TAR TAr TEr TEr TEr  TAr  TAr TEr TR

At 1 January 2014 RZE-RmE-A-H a0 640,060 (2,850) 8677 90,162 15,09% nmn 523 12,829 823,218 707 823,985
Total comprehensive income for the year  ER2 A\ 45 - - - - 20,387) - - -2 ) (862 (143,973)
Transfer to statutory reserve BRTITRE - - - 1,200 - - - - (1,200) - - -
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 40 (b))~ iEE—EMBAE

(Ffs400)) - - - - - - - - - - 6,657 6,657
Issued from placing RE%T 2000 125040 - - - - - - - 127040 - 12700
Conversion of convertible bonds JRMERES 3750 104271 - - - - (11,71 - - 96,310 - 96,310
Exercise of warrants ERRESR 2200 86,184 - - - - - (384) - 88,000 - 88,000
Exercise of share options 76 1,034 35,767 - - - (10,959) - - - 25,842 - 25,842
Share-hased payments ROTAZE - - - - - 4463 - - - 4463 - 4463
Release upon lapse of share options B REX MBS BRI - - - - - (197) - - 197 - - -
Changes in equity for the year EREREY 8984 351,62 - 1,200 (20387) (6,693) {11711 (384)  (123727) 198544 579 204339
At 31 December 2014 RZF-RETZA=1-B 56,05 991,322 (2,850) 9877 69,775 8402 - 139 (110,898 1,021,822 6502 1028324
At 1 January 2015 R-E2-1%-5-H 56,055 991,322 (2,850) 9877 69,775 8402 - 139 (110898 1,021,822 6502 1,028324
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - (42,459 - - - (153818 (196,277) (6,753)  {203,030)
Transfer to statutory reserve - - - 2N - - - - il _

Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 40(a)) - - - - - - - - - - 27732 27732

Acquisition of non-controlling interests

(Note 40(c) - - - - - - - - (228) (228) 216 (12)
Issued from placing 3,000 118,191 - - - - - - - 121,191 - 121191
[ssued from warrants - - - - - - - 1,000 - 1,000 - 1,000
Exercise of warrants 7 800 31339 - - - - - (139) - 32,000 - 32,000
Exercise of share options ke 303 10,623 - - - 3,362) - - - 7564 - 7564
Share-based payments ROTHAZE - - - - - 57548 - - - 57548 - 57548
Release upon lapse of share options ~~ INEREXMERE - - - - - 982) - - 92 - - -
Changes in equity for the year 4103 160,153 - 2 (42,459 53,204 - 861 (153,085 2798 211% 43993
At 31 December 2015 RZ5-RFT-A=1-8 60,158 1,161,475 (2,850) 9898 21316 61,606 - 1,000 (263,983 1,044,620 21697 1072317
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FEEETMERR

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

HE-_T—RF+-A=T—HILFE

2015 2014
—E-HF —T@mF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
ix=2 FHExT FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETBHEERE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax BrEi A AR (158,015) (119,846)
Adjustments for: AT ZIBFEE
Interest income ) B A 9 (7,163) (3,423)
Amortisation of financial MBERE Q8 H
guarantee contract 9 (6,762) -
Gain on deregistration of a branch R =Rl LI ES /NI P & 9 - (812)
Finance costs B & B AR 11 15 9,714
Gain on fair value change of JERTS AR ERTE
contingent consideration payables FHm (13,155) -
Depreciation e 17 3,181 2,359
Loss/(gain) on disposals of property, HEWE - BWEKEFE
plant and equipment BiE (W) 15 (201)
Amortisation of intangible assets BiEmEEE 18 4,195 2,464
Equity-settled share-based payments A% 4 45 & AR 1) 2 1~ 5108 57,548 4,463
Intangible assets written off WiHmEEE 18 308 1,095
Impairment of intangible assets mEEERE 18 1,635 —
Impairment of goodwill EESNERE 19 4,641 53,323
Impairment of inventories FERE 1,494 -
Impairment of trade receivables JE W BR FORLE 24 3,522 -
Reversal of impairment of JE W AR FUR (B [
trade receivables 9, 24 (226) -
Impairment of prepayment and TE AT 5RIA Ko H A E U
other receivables SIBRE 25 25,067 75
Operating loss before working LEERFHAIZ
capital changes KEEE (83,700) (50,789)
Decrease in inventories BFERLD 3,335 682
Decrease/(increase) in trade FE U BR SRR
receivables ($Zn) 13,115 (11,015)
Decrease in prepayments, deposits ENFIE ek
and other receivables H b pE W R IR R 13,754 10,120
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables — FERTBRERR (E4) /140 (8,212) 860
Decrease in accruals and TERERARHMERN
other payables KIER D (12,304) (16,237)
Cash used in operations KEMARSE (74,012) (66,379)
Interest received B F 8 1,685 2,673
Income tax paid ERHIE (1,025) (2,663)
Net cash used in operating activities KEEBAR e FRE (73,352) (66,369)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ERTRERE

FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

HE_ZT-—RF+_A=1T—HILFE

2015 2014
—E-EE —T—@mF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
hg=a FET FHETT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REEZBHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and BAYE BEK&EE
equipment \ 17 (10,873) (4,322)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEWE - HWEKEFE
plant and equipment IS 3RIA 6 1,095
Additions to intangible assets NEELEE ] 18 - (2,261)
Addition of available-for-sale REAHEETBEE
financial assets (2,453) (62,525)
Acquisition of subsidiaries W BB BT I8 7 40(a)&(b) (6,206) 1,700
Decrease/(increase) in long term deposits& Bz &5 4 (32 50) 3,750 (65)
Loans to third parties MYE=NER (15,402) (106,224)
Received from loans to third parties WEBGETE=ZFTER 24,027 63,483
Net cash used in investing activities KREESAR S FE (7,151) (109,119)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METRHHEERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest paid 2 ALE (15) -
Acquisition of non-controlling interests Y8 FF 2 B kg 25 40(c) (12) -
Advance from non-controlling FEEE A% A% SR E R
shareholders ) 110 -
Repayment of borrowings EEER ‘ (625) -
Net proceeds from unlisted warrant LT RIREEPTS
PEFRE 1,000 88,000
Net proceeds from placing Ao & 1S SO F R 121,191 127040
Net proceeds from exercise of warrants 1T{£ B AEE 2 P15
TRIEF R 32,000 -
Issue of shares upon the exercise of RITE IR R 1T AR D
share options 7564 25,842
Advance/(payment) from/(to) directors ~ EEZFK 7 (fF3k) 998 (9,248)
Net cash generated from BB RGNS TR
financing activities 162,211 231,634
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RERBASEEYWEM
CASH EQUIVALENTS HEE 81,708 56,146
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [ & & &) 5 & (7,695) (3,190)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—A—RBZBEEK
AT 1 JANUARY REZEEY 162,595 109,639
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R+=—B=+—H2
AT 31 DECEMBER RENKREZEEY 236,608 162,595
ANALYSIS OF THE CASH AND HERBEEEEMDN
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances RITRIR AR 236,608 162,595
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda with limited
liability. The address of its registered office is Canon's
Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda.
The address of its principal place of business is Unit
2708, 27/F The Center, 99 Queen'’s Road Central, Hong
Kong. The Company's shares are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the "“Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 20
to the consolidated financial statements.

Ordinance (Cap. 622).

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the "HKICPA"). HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"); Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“"HKAS"); and Interpretations. These
consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise
Market (the “GEM") of the Stock Exchange and with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

HE-_T—RF+-A=T—HILFE

—RER
RARRRBRETIMERIZBRA
a) o M= R AL Canon's Court,
22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 12,
Bermuda - HF 22X U N EFS
2/ KE 95 1 IR .0,27182708
E-RARAIRNETEBERIMAE
PRAR ([BEAIAT]) BIZER £ e

ARBRREZER AR EWNB QA
ZEBRBHNIEEMHRRME
20 °

AZERA MBI RRIIRIBE B GRTHD
RE ([EBGMA®])BM AR
BERBRBYBHREER ([FBMF

A REL - BEM T REER
BREEBMBHREER ([FBHBHR
FEA]) - FRGER ([FEF
R 2B ZFHEAMBERRIT
HEBZAMAIRR ([R1XR]) &5
EHRAIZEREBEEIRBAB AR
&P (56228 ) 2 WEMTE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015

3.

62

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS AND REQUIREMENTS

(a)

(b)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the
new and revised HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
that are relevant to its operations and effective for
its accounting year beginning on 1 January 2015:

Amendment to HKFRS 8 (Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle)

The amendment requires disclosure of the
judgements made by management in applying
the aggregation criteria to operating segments,
and clarifies that reconciliations of the total of
the reportable segments’ assets to the entity's
assets are required only if the segment assets are
reported regularly. These clarifications had no effect
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective

The Group has not early applied new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective for the financial year beginning on 1
January 2015. The directors anticipate that the new
and revised HKFRSs will be adopted in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements when they
become effective. The Group is in the process of
assessing, where applicable, the potential effect of
all new and revised HKFRSs that will be effective
in future periods but is not yet in a position to state
whether these new and revised HKFRSs would
have a material impact on its results of operations
and financial position.
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3. ERVIE KRBT ERMBR
HEARBRE

(a)

(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS AND REQUIREMENTS
(Cont'd)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (Cont'a)

List of new and revised HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective that are relevant to the Group's

operation
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers'
Amendments to  Disclosure Initiative?
HKAS 1

Amendments to  Clarification of Acceptable
HKAS 16 and Methods of Depreciation and
HKAS 38 Amortisation?

Amendments to  Equity Method in Separate

HKAS 27 Financial Statements?
Amendments to  Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018, with earlier application permitted.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2016, with earlier application permitted.

(c) New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622)
The requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit”
of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622) came into operation during the financial year.
As a result, there are changes to presentation
and disclosures of certain information in the
consolidated financial statements.

HE-_T—RF+-A=T—HILFE

3. AT RKEEIEBMER
HEBRBRE (&)

(b)

(c)

C BB s R AR R B
BT R BB REER
(%)

HI NS (B £ 1R < B AR 1A
AR LR FTRT RASIERT B
HEREER 2 EE

BBHBRE SRIA
ERIE9%:

BB BRE REEFPAHI M
EH|Z155% N

BheE THURE
F1HEFR

Serhpdl MEXMERE

£16% & BWhELER
B G ER
ERCACHEN

BheE BUBBRED
BUREIR  BRE
BBHBRE BEMBREER
3 ACEI “F-CEEC
T-NERH
FEHE?

RZZE-NF—A B NURFHR
ZFEEHELEN WA R R R -
R-Z—RF—A B NURFHA
ZFEEHEEN WA IR R -

HERQTAMRD (5622
)

A B R EERD (£6228) %
OB [BR B R BaT | ZMERA
BHRFREER B GFE Y
BHRENETERZZ2HTA
MEEERES-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015

3.

64

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS AND REQUIREMENTS
(Cont'd)

(d) Amendments to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the GEM on
the Stock Exchange
The Stock Exchange in April 2015 released
revised Appendix 18 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the GEM in relation
to disclosure of financial information in annual
reports that are applicable for accounting periods
ending on or after 31 December 2015, with earlier
application permitted. The Company has adopted
the amendments resulting in changes to the
presentation and disclosures of certain information
in the consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, unless
mentioned otherwise in the accounting policies below
(e.g. contingent consideration payables).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in note 5.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS AR Myt

=
e

For the year ended 31 December 2015

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

The significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below.

(a)

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries
are entities over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. The Group has
power over an entity when the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities, i.e. activities that significantly
affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential voting
rights held by other parties. A potential voting right
is considered only if the holder has the practical
ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary
that results in a loss of control represents the
difference between (i) the fair value of the
consideration of the sale plus the fair value of
any investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii)
the Company's share of the net assets of that
subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill and any
accumulated exchange reserve relating to that
subsidiary.
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. NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS ERAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE_ZT-—RF+_A=1T—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EREEER (#)
(Cont’d)

(a) Consolidation (Cont'a) (a) #HEEREB (&)

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised
profits are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity
in subsidiaries not attributable, directly or
indirectly, to the Company. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position and consolidated
statement of changes in equity within equity.
Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of profit
or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between the non-controlling shareholders and
owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
shareholders even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS AR Myt

=
ma

For the year ended 31 December 2015

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(a)

(b)

Consolidation (Conta)

Changes in the Company’'s ownership interest
in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of
control are accounted for as equity transactions
(i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to the owners of the Company.

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for
the acquisition of a subsidiary in a business
combination. The consideration transferred in
a business combination is measured at the
acquisition-date fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred and
any contingent consideration. Acquisition-related
costs are recognised as expenses in the periods in
which the costs are incurred and the services are
received. ldentifiable assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their
acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred over the Group’'s share of the net fair
value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and
liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any excess
of the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the sum
of the consideration transferred is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase which is attributed to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015

4,

68

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(b)

Business combination and goodwill
(Cont’d)

In a business combination achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest in the subsidiary
is remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value
and the resulting gain or loss is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss. The fair value is added
to the sum of the consideration transferred in a
business combination to calculate the goodwill.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary
are initially measured at the non-controlling
shareholders’ proportionate share of the net fair
value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and
liabilities at the acquisition date.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at
cost less accumulated impairment losses. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated to each
of the cash-generating units ("CGUs") or groups
of CGUs that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents
the lowest level within the Group at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill impairment reviews are
undertaken annually, or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate a
potential impairment. The carrying value of the
CGU containing the goodwill is compared to its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value
in use and the fair value less costs of disposal.
Any impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B BHRMEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(c)

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of an entity but is not control or
joint control over those policies. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible, including potential
voting rights held by other entities, are considered
when assessing whether the Group has significant
influence. In assessing whether a potential voting
right contributes to significant influence, the
holder’s intention and financial ability to exercise or
convert that right is not considered.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements by the
equity method and is initially recognised at cost.
Identifiable assets and liabilities of the associate
in an acquisition are measured at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The excess of the cost
of the investment over the Group’'s share of
the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The
goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the
investment and is tested for impairment together
with the investment at the end of each reporting
period when there is objective evidence that the
investment is impaired. Any excess of the Group's
share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE_ZT-—RF+_A=1T—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EREEER (#)
(Cont’d)

(c) Associates (Cont’d) () EEERQT(£E)

The Group's share of an associate’s post-acquisition
profits or losses and other comprehensive income
is recognised in consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income. When the
Group's share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless
it has incurred obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate. If the associate
subsequently reports profits, the Group resumes
recognising its share of those profits only after its
share of the profits equals the share of losses not
recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate
that results in a loss of significant influence
represents the difference between (i) the fair
value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair
value of any investment retained in that associate
and (i) the Group's entire carrying amount of that
associate (including goodwill) and any related
accumulated exchange reserve. If an investment
in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture, the Group continues to apply the equity
method and does not remeasure the retained
interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group's interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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=
ma

For the year ended 31 December 2015

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(d)

Foreign currency translation

(1)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group's entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company's
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity's
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency
on initial recognition using the exchange
rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange
rates at the end of each reporting period.
Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at
fair value in foreign currencies are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates when
the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary
item is recognised in other comprehensive
income, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a gain or
loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in profit or loss, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

4,

72

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

(d) Foreign currency translation (Cont'd)

(1) Translation on consolidation
The results and financial position of all
the Group entities that have a functional
currency different from the Company's
presentation currency are translated into
the Company’s presentation currency as
follows:

Assets and liabilities for each
statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing
rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

Income and expenses are translated
at average exchange rates for the
period (unless this average is not
a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are
translated at the exchange rates on
the transaction dates); and

All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the
exchange reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(d)

(e)

Foreign currency translation (Conta)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of monetary items that form
part of the net investment in foreign entities
are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the exchange reserve.
When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified to consolidated profit or
loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during
the period in which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

4,

74

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(e) Property, plant and equipment (Conta)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost
less their residual values over the estimated useful
lives on a straight-line basis. The principal annual

rates are as follows:
Leasehold Over the shorter of
improvements

and estimated useful

lives, being no more than
20 years after the date of

completion

Furniture and office  10% — 33%
equipment

Motor vehicles 20% - 25%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate,

at the end of each reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant

asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.

(f) Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the
Group all the risks and rewards of ownership of
assets are accounted for as operating leases.
Lease payments (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are recognised as an expense on a

straight-line basis over the lease term.

China Innovationpay Group Limited
Annual Report 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS AR Myt

=
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

(g) Other intangible assets

(1)

Internally-generated intangible assets —
research and development expenditure of
computer software

Expenditure on research activities is
recognised as an expense in the period in
which it is incurred. An internally generated
intangible asset arising from the Group's
e-business development is recognised only if
all of the following conditions are met:

- The technical feasibility of completing
the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale;

- Management intends to complete the
intangible asset and use or sell it;

- There is ability to use or sell the
intangible asset;

- [t can be demonstrated how the
intangible asset will generate probable
future economic benefits;

- Adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the
intangible asset are available; and

- The expenditure attributable to the
intangible asset during its development
can be reliably measured.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015

4,

76

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(9)

Other intangible assets (Conta)

(1)

(i)

(iif)

Internally-generated intangible assets —
research and development expenditure of
computer software (Contd)

Internally generated intangible assets are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses. Amortisation is
calculated on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives of 3 to 10 years.
Where no internally generated intangible
asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred.

Intangible assets acquired through
acquisition of a subsidiary — technology
know-how

Technology know-how is stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives of b years.

Intangible assets acquired through
acquisition of a subsidiary — customer
relationship

Customer relationship is stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives of 5 years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont’d)

(h)

(i)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using the
first-in, first-out basis. The cost of finished goods
and work in progress comprises raw materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
all production overhead expenditure, and where
appropriate, subcontracting charges. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.

Recognition and derecognition of
financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position when the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from the
assets expire; the Group transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
assets; or the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the assets but has not retained control on the
assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised
in other comprehensive income is recognised in
profit or loss.
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. NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS ERAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE_ZT-—RE+_A=1T—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EREIBER (#)
(Cont'd)

(i) Recognition and derecognition of (i) BWRARLKLEIREMIA

financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss.

Investments

Investments are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis where the purchase or sale of
an financial asset is under a contract whose terms
require delivery of the financial assets within the
timeframe established by the market concerned,
and are initially measured at fair value, plus directly
attributable transaction costs except in the case of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-forsale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets that are not classified as loans
and receivables, held-to-maturity investments or
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
Available-forsale financial assets are subsequently
measured at fair value. Gains or losses arising
from changes in fair value of these investments
are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the investment revaluation
reserve, until the investments are disposed of or
there is objective evidence that the investments
are impaired, at which time the cumulative
gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified from
equity to profit or loss. Interest calculated using
the effective interest method and dividends on
available-forsale equity investments are recognised
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS o
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE_Z-—RF+T-_R=1T—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. BREITHE &)
(Cont'd)
(j) Investments (Cont’d) G ®BEE

Available-for-sale financial assets (Cont'd)
Investments in equity instruments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be settled
by delivery of such unquoted equity instruments,
are measured at cost less impairment losses.

TR EEEE (&)
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ARz mGPRELREAFE
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ETHEAEBRINZEERE
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(k) Trade and other receivables (k) PEURERFR R H B UK
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers FEW AR RIE LA B B X5 iRiE
for merchandise sold or services performed in the SR oS E TR e
ordinary course of business. If collection of trade WEPFZHRB - BN —F=X
and other receivables is expected in one year AR (SR IE S T 48 & 1A HA
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the (ER) )Y el z fE U AR R &
business if longer), they are classified as current HMEWRBERRBEE -
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current BRIEZYRIERBEE -
assets.
Trade and other receivables are recognised initially JFE K BR R % B A FE MR )
at fair value and subsequently measured at NP EER HENEERRX
amortised cost using the effective interest method, TOERB KA E - Wk
less allowance for impairment. VERIEEE YK

(1) Cash and cash equivalents I RERREZEEY

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents represent cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term highly
liquid investments which are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

4,

80

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(m) Financial liabilities and equity

(n)

(o)

instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument
is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for
specific financial liabilities and equity instruments
are set out in notes (n) to (s) below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period.

Financial guarantee contract liabilities
Financial guarantee contract liabilities are
measured initially at their fair value and are
subsequently measured at the higher of:

- the amount of the obligations under the
contracts, as determined in accordance with
HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets”; and

- the amount initially recognised less
cumulative amortisation recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the terms
of the guarantee contracts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(p)

(q)

Convertible bonds

Convertible loans which entitle the holder to
convert the loans into a fixed number of equity
instruments at a fixed conversion price are
regarded as compound instruments consisting of
a liability and an equity component. At the date
of issue, the fair value of the liability component
is estimated using the prevailing market interest
rate for similar non-convertible debt. The difference
between the proceeds of issue of the convertible
loans and the fair value assigned to the liability
component, representing the embedded option
for the holder to convert the loans into equity of
the Group, is included in equity as convertible
loans reserve. The liability component is carried
as a liability at amortised cost using the effective
interest method until extinguished on conversion
or redemption.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the
liability and equity components of the convertible
loans based on their relative carrying amounts at
the date of issue. The portion related to the equity
component is charged directly to equity.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially
at their fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
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e MRS M

For the year ended 31 December 2015

4,

82

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(r)

(s)

(t)

Contingent consideration payable
Contingent consideration payable is classified
as a financial liability or equity according to the
definitions in HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation. The amount is initially measured
at fair value. Contingent consideration payable
classified as equity is not remeasured and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration payable classified
as a liability is measured at fair value at each
reporting date and changes in fair value are
recognised in profit or loss.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and is
recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably.

(i) Sales of goods
Revenues from the sales of finished goods
are recognised on the transfer of significant
risks and rewards of ownership, which
generally coincides with the time when the
goods are delivered and the title has passed
to the customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(t)

Revenue recognition (Cont'ad)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Card transaction levies represent service
fee charged by the Group to contracted
merchants at specific rates on the monetary
value of consumptions made by cardholder
seftled using the stored value cards in the
merchants’ stores. Card transaction levies
are recognised as these transactions occur.

Card handling and service charges consist
of monthly maintenance fees on expired
unused balances, new card handling
charges, net of discount or waivers, and
other customer services charges. The
monthly maintenance fees are recognised
when the fees are deducted from the
unused balances at each month end. The
new card handling charges are recognised
when a card buyer purchases a new card.
Other customer services are recognised
when the services are rendered.

Consultancy income is recognised when the
service is rendered and on the basis of stage
of completion of each individual project,
provided that the costs involved can be
measured reliably. The stage of completion
of a transaction is established by reference
to the costs incurred to date as compared
to the estimated total costs under the
transaction.

Commission income is recognised when the
service is rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(u)

Employee benefits

(1)

(i)

(i11)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined
contribution retirement schemes which are
available to all employees. Contributions
to the schemes by the Group and
employees are calculated as a percentage
of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement
benefit scheme cost charged to profit or
loss represents contributions payable by the
Group to the funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at
the earlier of the dates when the Group
can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the payment
of termination benefits.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(v)

(w)

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based
payments to certain directors and employees.
Equity-settled share-based payments are measured
at fair value (excluding the effect of non-market
based vesting conditions) of the equity instruments
at the date of grant. The fair value determined at
the grant date of the equity-settled share-based
payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate
of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for
the effect of non-market based vesting conditions.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally
and used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset, the amount of borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation is determined by applying a
capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that
asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted
average of the borrowing costs applicable to the
borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made
specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(x) Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to it and that the

grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred
and recognised in profit or loss over the period to
match them with the costs they are intended to

compensate.

(y) Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax

and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit
recognised in profit or loss because of items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group's liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the

reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(y)

Taxation (Cont’d)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or
unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
arrangements, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(y)

Taxation (Cont’d)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
when it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case the deferred tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and
liabilities reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle
its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(z)

Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related
to the Group.

(A)

(B)

A person or a close member of that person'’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the
Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Company.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(ii)

The entity and the Company are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other
entity is a member).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Cont’d)

(z) Related parties (Cont’d)
(B)  (Cont'd)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (A).

A person identified in (A)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(aa) Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are
reviewed at each reporting date for indications
of impairment and where an asset is impaired,
it is written down as an expense through the
consolidated statement of profit or loss to its
estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets. If this is the case,
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.
Recoverable amount is the higher of value in use
and the fair value less costs of disposal of the
individual asset or the cash-generating unit.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated
future cash flows of the asset/cash-generating
unit. Present values are computed using pre-tax
discount rates that reflect the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset/cash-generating
unit whose impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for cash-generating units are
allocated first against the goodwill of the unit
and then pro rata amongst the other assets of
the cash-generating unit. Subsequent increases
in the recoverable amount caused by changes
in estimates are credited to profit or loss to the
extent that they reverse the impairment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(bb) Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
assesses whether its financial assets (other than
those at fair value through profit or loss) are
impaired, based on objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition, the estimated future cash
flows of the (group of) financial asset(s) have been

affected.

For available-for-sale equity instruments, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
the investment below its cost is considered also to

be objective evidence of impairment.

In addition, for trade receivables that are assessed
not to be impaired individually, the Group assesses
them collectively for impairment, based on the
Group's past experience of collecting payments, an
increase in the delayed payments in the portfolio,
observable changes in economic conditions that

correlate with default on receivables, etc.

Only for trade receivables, the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account
and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against the allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.

For all other financial assets, the carrying amount is

directly reduced by the impairment loss.
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4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(bb) Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)
For financial assets measured at amortised cost,
if the amount of the impairment loss decreases
in a subsequent period and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed (either
directly or by adjusting the allowance account
for trade receivables) through profit or loss.
However, the reversal must not result in a carrying
amount that exceeds what the amortised cost
of the financial asset would have been had the
impairment not been recognised at the date the

impairment is reversed.

(cc) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the

expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of

outflow is remote.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Cont'd)

(dd) Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group's position
at the end of the reporting period or those
that indicate the going concern assumption is
not appropriate are adjusting events and are
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
Events after the reporting period that are not
adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements when material.

SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed

below.

(a)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives,
residual values and related depreciation charges
for the Group's property, plant and equipment.
This estimate is based on the historical experience
of the actual useful lives and residual values of
property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. The Group will revise the depreciation
charge where useful lives and residual values are
different to those previously estimated, or it will
write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned.

The carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment as at 31 December 2015 was
HK$15,308,000 (2014: HK$8,122,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

5.

SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Conta)

(b)

(c)

Intangible assets and amortisation

The Group determines the estimated useful
lives and related amortisation for the Group's
intangible assets. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be finite, based on the
expected usage and technical obsolescence from
the changes in the market demands or services
output from the assets. Intangible assets with
finite useful lives are amortised over the expected
useful economic lives and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible
assets may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for the intangible
assets with a finite useful life are reviewed by the
management at least at the end of each reporting
period.

The carrying amount of intangible assets as at 31
December 2015 was approximately HK$9,758,000
(2014: HK$16,450,000).

Income taxes

Significant estimates are required in determining
the provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made. During
the year, HK$2,556,000 (2014: HK$3,740,000) of
income tax was charged to profit or loss based on
the estimated profit.
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SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Conta)

(d)

(e)

Recoverability of internally-generated
intangible asset

During the vyear, the Group reconsidered the
recoverability of its internally-generated intangible
asset arising from the Group’'s e-business
development, which is included in its consolidated
statement of financial position at 31 December
2015 at HK$3,724,000 (2014: HK$8,527000). The
project continues to progress in a very satisfactory
manner, and customer reaction has reconfirmed
the Group's previous estimates of anticipated
revenues from the project. However, increased
competitor activity has caused the Group to
reconsider its assumptions regarding future
market shares and anticipated margins on these
products. This situation will be closely monitored,
and adjustments made in future periods, if future
market activity indicates that such adjustments are
appropriate.

Impairment loss for bad and doubtful
debts

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and
doubtful debts based on assessments of the
recoverability of the trade and other receivables,
including the current creditworthiness and the
past collection history of each debtor. Impairments
arise where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may not be collectible.
The identification of bad and doubtful debts,
in particular of a loss event, requires the use
of judgement and estimates. Where the actual
result is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of the
trade and other receivables and doubtful debt
expenses in the year in which such estimate has
been changed.
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(e)

ABEERIEE ZATRE
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REN AEBEHEEHR
EFEKERMSIBAIE
EEEEEZAIREN ZA
HELEEPEEZ JRE T
AREBR-_ZE—RHF+-A
=+ —BZEEMBRRE
/& %8 453,724,000 7T (=
T — P4 :8,527000/8 7T ) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE-_T—RF+-_A=T—HILFE

5. SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 5. M THEERZZRR (&)

UNCERTAINTY (conta)

(e) Impairment loss for bad and doubtful (e) FREZFERBEEE &)
debts (Cont'd)
As at 31 December 2015, impairment loss for bad RZFE—RF+-A=+—8"
and doubtful debts amounted to HK$28,577000 RIZ R B E5 18 A£28,577000
(2014: HK$1,070,000). 7T (ZZ—PH4 1,070,000

BIT) o

(f)  Allowance for slow-moving inventories () FHEEFEERE
Allowance for slow-moving inventories is made HIHTFERBREFERE R
based on the ageing and estimated net realisable et FE R SRR EEL o 57
value of inventories. The assessment of the LB E R R R hEte
allowance amount involves judgement and fin) B 18 B A R BRI ET R
estimates. Where the actual outcome in future is FIRR-BIBEAEZEETE L
different from the original estimate, such difference MEET IR EHHRATE 2R
will impact the carrying value of inventories and EERBEEHRS HE -
allowance charge/write-back in the period in which
such estimate has been changed.
As at 31 December 2015, accumulated allowance RZE-—RF+ZA=+—
for slow-moving inventories amounted to A RAFEFEFREER
HK$1,448,000 (2014: nil). 1,448,000/ 7T (ZF — Y4

/")
(g) Impairment of goodwill () BERE

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires
an estimation of the value in use of the CGU to
which goodwill has been allocated. The value in
use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the CGU
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value.

The total carrying amount of goodwill at the end
of the reporting period was HK$707508,000
(2014: HK$686,451,000) and an impairment
loss of HK$4,641,000 (2014: HK$53,323,000)
was recognised during the year. Details of the
impairment loss calculation are set out in note 19
to the consolidated financial statements.

ETREALREARMGED
B cReELEMZER
BE-EFEEREER X
SEAGGZREELSEMNE
HIREL 2 KRB RE I
EE 2R ERGFHEERE

RFERR mEZEREE
#707508,000/% 7T (—= & — 4
% 1 686,451,000/ 7T) R A F
X 52 R (B 5 184,641,000/%8
7t (== — Y 4 : 53,323,000
BIT) o  REEEFTE R AR
BHNERE B mRM 19 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

6.

98

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
interest rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group's financial performance.

(a)

(b)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign
currency risk as most of its business transactions,
assets and liabilities are principally denominated in
the functional currencies of the Group entities. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group
monitors its foreign currency exposure closely and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

At 31 December 2014 and 2015, the Group entities
had no significant assets or liabilities denominated
in currency other than respective functional
currencies.

Credit risk

The credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high
credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

(b)

Credit risk (Cont’d)

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to
its trade receivables. The largest four (2014: three)
trade receivables represent approximately 92%
(2014: 66%) of total trade receivables. In order to
minimise credit risk, the directors have delegated
senior management to be responsible for the
determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures. In addition,
the directors review the recoverable amount of
each individual trade debt regularly to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are recognised for
irrecoverable debts. In this regard, the directors
consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly
reduced.

Except for the financial guarantee given by a
subsidiary as set out in note 34, the Group does
not provide any other guarantees which would
expose the Group to credit risk. The maximum
exposure to credit risk in respect of these financial
guarantees at the end of the reporting period is
disclosed in note 34.

HE-_T—RF+-_A=T—HILFE

6.

MBEERER (&)
b) FERE#)

AEBZEERBREEREH
FEWER KO (ZF — O£ -
=) KB YRR SR 4G 48 FE AR 3R
#992% (ZZ—PF :66% ) °
AEEREEERR EECE
ZASHREBAE AEET
EEEE FEEMLREME
R ot EETHEE
EERE S EH < oW E ;R
B RBRBEATWE Z ETERE
REMZBEBE UM
T EERBAEEZZER
i A e PR A o

PR P TES4PTE 2 — EIFI B 2 7]
BT ZBERIN NEEX
BERHEBSAEEAREER
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6.

100

HE_ZT-—RE+_A=1T—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd) 6. MBERERBER#Z)

(c)

Liquidity risk () RBEZEMR
The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current REBCZHERTEREERE
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that LEBRSES TR BERE
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its HRARRERHE UIRER
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term. BHEEHRDES T K-
The maturity analysis based in contractual REEBZHMBRERES AR
undiscounted cash flows of the Group's financial RITRIRE M2 FHB ST
liabilities is as follows: N
Less than Between
1 year 2 to 5 years Total
PR-F MEERE a3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FET
At 31 December 2015 R=-ZB-4F
+=A=+-H
Trade payables ANE 3,744 - 3,744
Accruals and other payables EEtERRHEM
FERTR 37457 - 37457
Amounts due to non-controlling & B B 2 &1 FEIE AL
shareholders of subsidiaries IR R K 776 - 776
Amounts due to directors e EE IR 1,003 - 1,003
Financial guarantee liabilites B EREE 62,489 - 62,489
At 31 December 2014 RZT—F
+-A=+—H
Trade payables e BRK 11,956 - 11,956
Accruals and other payables JEATE R R EA
FERR 47271 - 47271
Borrowings Lo 625 - 625
Amounts due to non-controlling & Hi B2 &)
shareholders of subsidiaries FEPERR IR R 5K 666 - 666
Amounts due to directors e EEFIE 5 - 5
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ArE BTSRRI EE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Conta)

(c) Liquidity risk (Cont'd)
Note:

Financial guarantee liabilities and borrowings with
a repayment on demand clause are included in the
‘on demand or less than 1 year’ time band in the
above maturity analysis. As at 31 December 2015,
the aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of the
financial guarantee (2014: borrowings) amounted to
RMB50,000,000 (equivalent to HK$59,698,000) (2014:
HK$625,000) for the year ended 31 December 2015.
Taking into account the Group's financial position, the
directors do not believe that it is probable that the
lenders will exercise their discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment. The directors believe that such
borrowings will be repaid one year after the end of
the reporting period in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan agreement. At that
time, the aggregate principal and interest cash outflows
of financial guarantee (2014: borrowings) will amount to
RMB52,300,000 (equivalent to HK$62,489,000 (2014:
HK$638,000)) for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Borrowings included bank loans that were expected by
the Group management to be repayable twelve months
after the end of each reporting period. The maturity
analysis in respect of borrowings (with interest thereon)
provided by the Group management incorporating the
above expectation is as follows:

HE-_T—RF+-_A=T—HILFE

6.

BBEBER ()
) RBEZERE)

Mo

BRBREEGER U IERARE
REFREXHBEABITHHA
[REkef PR —F| 2B - R =
T-—RAFt+-A=+—H8 #HE=
E-RFE+-_A=+—HAILtEE>
PHER(ZE—MNF:EBR) 2k
AR IR A€ 48 %8 A A R 150,000,000
7T (#8'8 159,698,000/8 7T) (=&
—PU4F 1 625,000/ 70 ) &5t AR
B2 SR EEREBE TR
BETEERBEEERAER -BES
RE ZEERBRERERBETE
ZHETEFBHNREREEER
B—FERNEE-BE_T—RAFE+_
A=Z+—BLFE MBEER(ZZ
—OF ER) 2AERF BB R
AR A AR #52,300,0007T (48
E 162,489,000/ 0 (= F — P04 :
638,000/ 7T) ) °

EREEASEERERNANET
EREPEEERR+ @8 RE
BZRITER A EBERET ML
AIRHABE R (RIEREF L) 2]
ZEEB DT

Less than
1 year
DPR—F
HK$'000
T
At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—hF+-_RA=+—H
Financial guarantee liabilities PBEREE 62,489
At 31 December 2014 RZE—HFE+=ZA=+—H
Borrowings EEN 638
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Conta) 6.

(d) Interest rate risk
The Group's exposure to interest-rate risk arises
from its bank deposits and borrowings. These
deposits and borrowings bear interests at variable
rate varied with the then prevailing market
condition.

At 31 December 2015, if interest rates at that date
had been 100 basis points higher with all other
variables held constant, consolidated loss after
tax for the year would have been HK$381,000
lower (2014: HK$315,000 lower), arising mainly
as a result of higher interest income on deposits.
If interest rates had been 100 basis points lower,
with all other variables held constant, consolidated
loss after tax for the year would have been
HK$381,000 higher (2014: HK$315,000 higher),
arising mainly as a result of lower interest income
on deposits.

HE_ZT-—RE+_A=1T—HILFE

MRERBER (&)
d  FREE

AEEmE 2 XRERREE
RITERRER - ZEFFRLK
ERARERTRES 27 E)
%%%E\ ©

RZE—RAF+=ZA=+—
B 4% B2 F& EFA100EE
B MATA M BHEHRET
g AFELRERREEBIER
5,381,000/ 7T (—F—
R A315,0008 L) T B
EHRZEFR 2R EK
AP B8 o il 7 % P& (K 1001 &
B0 MATA B HHRET
g AFELRERREEBIER
©1211381,000/%8 7T (—T—
1 8 H0315,0008 L) T B
RBERZFFTRZBEFRN B
AFTECe

(e) Categories of financial instruments at () R=FB-HF+=A=+-—
31 December 2015 AzemIAEH
2015 2014
—E-REF —TNNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHETT
Financial assets: MKEE:
Loans and receivables (including cash ER N EWFIE (BIER 4
and cash equivalents) NIRE&EEY) 326,650 302,691
Available-for-sale financial assets AN ENKEEE 110,002 62,525
Financial liabilities: MBEE:
Financial liabilities measured at R HEKATTEZ
amortised cost YBasE 42,980 60,523
Financial guarantee I IEHER 41,365 -
Contingent consideration payables B} e XK (B 19,667 10,110
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE-_T—RF+-_A=T—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Conta) 6. MBERERBER#Z)

(f) Fair values n A~¥E
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial REEREGE M BIRR R R
assets and financial liabilities as reflected in ZHBEERMBEERAE
the consolidated statement of financial position HEZXGZAFEES-

approximate their respective fair values.

7. FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENTS 7 AR EREE

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an ANHERMIS2EEREE B HE—

asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction TEFR S HEEEMEEE

between market participants at the measurement date. BEMINEBE - TXEARTE

The following disclosures of fair value measurements use BRI EAFEIEE MAFER

a fair value hierarchy that categorises into three levels the BRI ORI 2 A FE AT G E I 2 &

inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value: AEBES B=RHKR:

Level 1 inputs:  quoted prices (unadjusted) in active TR ASE: ASEULAERESRN
markets for identical assets or B HERAEELEER
liabilities that the Group can access at ERMSCRE (KK
the measurement date. HAE) o

Level 2 inputs:  inputs other than quoted prices BRBASE: BB BEBAZE
included within level 1 that are NAERAEEER
observable for the asset or liability, BEZEEFZBRBA
either directly or indirectly. g&-

Level 3 inputs:  unobservable inputs for the asset or TRHAZE: BEXAGIIUEBER
liability. BABR-

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and REEZBERNEREHEHE

transfers out of any of the three levels as of the date of BEREEr B BREALE T

the event or change in circumstances that caused the A =& Rz —-

transfer.
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7.  FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENTS (Contd)

(a) Disclosures of level in fair value

HE_ZT-—RE+_A=1T—HILFE

7

NP EREE @)

(a) RE-B-HF+ZA=+-—

hierarchy at 31 December 2015: B A ERB Z &5 E
Fair value measurements using: Total
UAFEREE: a5t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2015
&5 & Hl2 A3 —FT-—HF
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TER TER FTET
Recurring fair value BRAFEMNEE:
measurements:
Financial liabilities I 3= R
Contingent consideration e ARE
payables - - 19,667 19,667
Fair value measurements using: Total
ARTFEREX: CE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2014
AR R A2 WA —T—mF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET FET FET
Recurring fair value BRRRAIFERE:
measurements:
Financial liabilities MBEE
Contingent consideration N HARE
payables - - 10,110 10,110
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

7

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Conta)

(b)

(c)

Reconciliation of liabilities measured at
fair value based on level 3:

HE-_T—RF+-_A=T—HILFE

7

DN EREE @)

(b) BEFBUEAFEZEE
R

Contingent consideration payables JEITBL A CIE
2015 2014
—E2-RF _—TOF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FAET
At 1 January n—HA—H (10,110) -
Fair value recognised from W B AR MR Z
acquisition of subsidiaries NS (22,861) (10,110)
Gain on fair value change RiEm AR
recognised in profit or loss NEEZ WS 13,155 -
Exchange difference ME N = 5E 149 -
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H (19,667) (10,110)

Disclosure of valuation process

used by the Group and valuation
techniques and inputs used in fair value
measurements at 31 December 2015:
The Group's directors are responsible for the
fair value measurements of assets and liabilities
required for financial reporting purposes, including
level 3 fair value measurements. The directors
report directly to the Board of Directors for these
fair value measurements. Discussions of valuation
processes and results are held between the
directors and the Board of Directors at least twice
a year.

For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group
engaged UniStand Appraisal Limited (2014: Grant
Sherman Appraisal Limited) with the recognised
professional qualifications and recent experience to
perform the valuations.

() FEER-F-HEF+=A
=t+—-HERZGEERFR
DFEBEFERZEER
MR ABE 2 HE:
AEEEFRRETHHRE
Bz BEENBBZ AHER
BX BEEHIBAFENE
FERERAEFEMEU
ERNFEABELE-EZNESR
g2 RRDBFa MR GE
ZRRFRAER-

HABRFSAFEANEEME -
REEIINEABRAFEEER
B HAB [ E & 5% < UniStand
Appraisal Limited (ZZ&—
F - hETEBERAF])ETE
F{h{E -
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7.  FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENTS (Contd)

(c) Disclosure of valuation process
used by the Group and valuation
techniques and inputs used in fair value
measurements at 31 December 2015:
(Cont'd)

Level 3 fair value measurements

HE_ZT-—RE+_A=1T—HILFE

7 2DVHEMNEE®E)

() AEER=-ZT—HF+=AH
=t+—HERAZEERRF
EAFEHERERA2ME
BEREMREABEZHE:
(&)

AR B3 F 18R 8%

Valuation Unobservable Possible Effect on fair value for Positive/(negative)
Description technique inputs change increase of inputs change on fair value
WABEE M AVEED
Bt BRI TABRRAHE THEH ATEZEE EE/ (&)
2015 2014
“Z-1§ C—ZT-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER
Contingent Discount cash Discount rate +-1% The higher the discount rate, N/A (97)/98
consideration flows the lower of fair value
payables
- Onecomm
ENSRRE BHBBRERE HBRE +-1% EREME DTELE TER (97)/98
—— &N
Stock price +-5% The higher the stock price, N/A 506/(506)
the higher of fair value
(& +-5% kESS rTELS TER 506/(506)
Profit after tax +/-700% The higher the profit after tax, 18,297/~  5,055/(5,055)
(2014:4/-20%) the higher of fair value
BB ER +-700% BREENES ATESS 18,297/~ 5,055/5,058)
(2014:4/-20%)
- Moderntimes Discount cash The number of +-50% The higher the cumulative 30,815/- N/A
flows cumulative virtual number of virtual prepaid

prepaid cards sold

- Moderntimes ERRESRE CEEERERFZHHE +50%

The amount of +/-100%
cumulative virtual
prepaid cards
reloaded

SHERENREESE +-100%

During the two years, there were no changes in
the valuation techniques used.
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cards sold, the higher of
fair value

EEERENREHHEY 30,815/~ TEA
5 ATEER

The higher the cumulative 16,539/ N/A
amount of virtual prepaid
cards reloaded, the higher
of fair value

FEERENRRFCEY 16,539/~ TEm
5 AVELS
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8.

B RS AR Myt

HE-_T—RF+-_A=T—HILFE

TURNOVER 8 EEH
An analysis of the Group's turnover for the year is as REBRFAZEEBEINAT:
follows:
2015 2014
—B-HF —ZT-WmF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Sale of goods HEEm 85,112 66,342
Rendering of services RHRSE 18,749 14,880
103,861 81,222
OTHER INCOME 9. HlkA
2015 2014
—E-RF —ZT—NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Amortisation of financial guarantee contract Bf f§#E1R & 49 #E 44 6,762 -
Exchange gain, net PE W e VR RR 599 -
Interest income FEWA 7163 3,423
Gain on deregistration of a branch —MoARFFHE WS - 812
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME BELEEZ
equipment W e - 201
Government grant B8 %8 B 259 -
Reversal of impairment of trade receivables & Ut B FR B # 2] 226 -
Others HAt 18 25
15,027 4,461

FEAHXNEEARATF
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

10.

108

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has four (2014: four) operating segments as
follows:

General — trading of watches, computers,
trading communication equipments, currency
operations sorters and other goods

Prepaid — provision of third party payment
card and services and consultancy services; and
related marketing and sale of consumer goods
operations in form of prepaid gift cards in the

People’s Republic of China (“the PRC")

Travellers — provision of airticketing services and
related related customer services
services

Onecomm — provision of third party payment

system solution and sales of integrated
smart point of sales ("POS") devices

The Group's reportable segments are strategic business
units that offer different products and services. They are
managed separately because each business requires
different technology and marketing strategies.

The Group's other reportable segment includes certain
inactive operations. None of the segments meets any
of the quantitative thresholds for determining reportable
segment. The information of the other operating
segments is included in the ‘others’ column.

The accounting policies of the operating segments
are the same as those described in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements. Segment profits
or losses do not include equity-settled share-based
payment, impairment of goodwill and imputed interest
on convertible bonds. Segment assets do not include
interest in an associate, deferred tax asset, goodwill and
available-for-sale financial assets and other corporate
assets. Segment non-current assets do not include
financial instruments, deferred tax assets and goodwill.
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10.

HE-_T—RF+-_A=T—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (conta) 10. 7EER (&)
The Group accounts for intersegment sales and transfers REBZRME=ZFUERTISERE
as if the sales or transfers were to third parties, i.e. at T2BE - BoBEEHEE REEAR
current market prices. BRiE o
Information about operating segment profit or loss, FHAREDERNNEE EERE
assets and liabilities: E2ERINT :
General Prepaid card Travellers
trading  and related related
operations  operations services  Onecomm Others Total
-RES BHFR RERE
% HEER R — 15 M Hit &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THT THR THR THT THT
Year ended 31 December 2015 BE-_Z-1%+=A
ZtT-HLEFE
Revenue from external customers TEINFRE 2 Wz 71127 14,277 6,793 5,646 18 103,861
Segment loss NEER (28,547) (37,958) (21,588) (10,770) (767) (99,630)
Interest income FIEHA 6,427 703 6 21 6 7163
Depreciation and amortisation nEREH (434) (2,506) (2,538) (1,818) (6) (7302)
Income tax (expense)/credit R (AX) /B8 - (2,843) - 287 - (2,556)
Other material items of HiEReBAEE:
non-cash items:
- Intangible assets written off -BHEEME (308) - - - - (308)
— Impairment of trade receivables —EAETRE (2,192) (683) (647) - - (3,522)
— Reversal of impairment of trade - ERERAERE
receivables 226 - - - - 226
— Impairment of prepayment and —TBHERE R
other receivables HIERE (24,752) (315) - - - (25,067)
- Impairment of inventories -FERE - - - (1,494) - (1,494)
- Impairment of intangible assets —BREERNE - - (1,635) - - (1,635)
Additions to segment non-current RENEIRDEE
assets 54 10,189 110 557 84 10,994
As at 31 December 2015 R-E-RFE+=R
=t+-H
Segment assets NEEE 72,968 173,821 9,043 11,641 3,080 270,553
FERAFEXNEEERAT 109

—T-nFFH




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRS M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE_ZT-—RE+_A=1T—HILFE
10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'a) 10. 7EER (&)
Information about operating segment profit or loss, EHANER RN ER EER
assets and liabilities: (Cont’d) BEZERNOT: (£)
General  Prepaid card Travellers
trading  and related related
operations operations services Onecomm Others Total
—RES BERR izl
%% HEES R — IS 38 Hith At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THEL T THEL THEL THEL
Year ended 31 December 2014 BHE-T-MF+=A
=+-RILFE
Revenue from external customers RENBEP 2 W= 51,160 22,911 7151 - - 81,222
Segment loss HEER (3,235) (16,346) (14,690) - (710) (34,981)
Interest income MEHA 2,332 1,054 7 - 30 3423
Depreciation and amortisation NEREHE (855) (1,513) (2,380) - - (4,748)
Income tax expense FrigRmAY (730) (3,010) - - - (3,740)
Other material items of HibEREEAER:
non-cash items:
- Intangible assets written off —-BREERMSE (928) (167) - - - (1,095)
Additions to segment non-current REDEIERDEE
assets 192 5,277 1,106 8,634 - 15,109
As at 31 December 2014 RZT—NE+=A
=+-8
Segment assets NEEE 137252 115,589 14,734 20,493 128 288,196
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS o
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE-_T—RF+-_A=T—HILFE

Geographical information:

No separate analysis of segment information by
geographical information is presented as the Group's
revenue and non-current assets are principally attributable
to a single geographical region, which is the PRC.

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'a) 10. 7EER (&)
Reconciliations of segment revenue and profit or loss: DEWE E N SEEZ HER:
2015 2014
—E-HF C—T-NOF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Revenue W =
Total revenue of reportable segments A Z2|HB W BEE 103,861 81,222
Loss EiE
Total profit or loss of reportable segments 7] £ ¥ £ 2 )% F =k E5 18
4= (99,630) (34,981)
Elimination of intersegment profits 1 35 5> 2B FEl & ) (32) -
Gain on fair value change of contingent ERNSIAREBRAFEE
consideration payables Weas 13,155 -
Equity-settled share-based payment HR e 48 B R 1 X 1 SR IE (57,548) (4,463)
Unallocated amounts: ROBLERE:
Corporate income and expenses, net TrERARRAS  F58 (16,081) (17.365)
Amortisation of financial guarantee M BERE Q8
contract 6,762 -
Impairment of goodwill EE R E (4,641) (63,323)
Imputed interest on convertible bonds AR E S E A - (9,714)
Consolidated loss before income tax BRETIS T RIAR & B 18 (158,015) (119,846)
Assets BE
Total assets of reportable segments AZ2Wo s EEBTE 270,553 288,196
Unallocated amounts: ROBLERE:
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHEMBEE 110,002 62,525
Deferred tax assets ERERIEE E - 1,876
Goodwill Bk 707,508 686,451
Other corporate assets HEmmprEEE 92,984 66,488
Consolidated total assets e B ERTE 1,181,047 1,105,536

@ E#

AR o

FEAHXNEEARATF

MAREEZ WA RIS EAELS
BENE—pBE (BRE) - Bt
I m 2 53t E RIS 2 BY S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ERAR P RE

)

For the year ended 31 December 2015

1.

12.

HE_ZT-—RE+_A=1T—HILFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont'a) 10. 2EER @)
Revenue from major customers: REBEFERP 2 M :
2015 2014
—E-HF% —FDOF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
General trading segment — KBS
Largest customer RAEP 44,701 12,026
Second largest customer FE_RRFP 14,616 9,656
FINANCE COSTS 1n. BERALK
2015 2014
—E-REF _—TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHET
Imputed interest on convertible bonds AR ESFEEFE
(Note 33) (HMF5E33) - 9,714
Interest on bank borrowings RITERAE 15 -
15 9,714
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. FiS¥iRxX
2015 2014
—E-HF —FT—WUF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THET
Current tax — the PRC BERFR IH — P
Provision for the year FARE 702 3,350
Underprovision in prior years BEFERETR 293 390
995 3,740
Deferred tax (Note 35) EFERIA (HM13E35) 1,561 -
2,556 3,740
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

12.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Contd)

PRC Enterprise Income Tax has been provided at a
rate of 25% (2014: 25%). However, one of the Group's
subsidiaries has been recognised as a “New and High
Technology Enterprise” in the PRC and was therefore
subject to a preferential tax are of 15% (2014: 15%) for
the year ended 31 December 2015.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is required since
the Group has no assessable profit for the year.

Tax charge on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates, based on existing legislation,
interpretation and practices in respect thereof.

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and
the product of loss before tax multiplied by the PRC
Enterprise Income Tax rate is as follows:

HE—

12.

T-AFT-A=+—HIEFE

et (®)
PEMEMEHREAE25% (ZFT—
F:26%) A AEEHEF —H
MEBRARIEERATE [ M
¥ A BE-_ZE—RAFE+_A
=T —HIEFEESEEMREIS%
(ZZ—PUF:15% ) °

AN 5 B R N A R AR B O
A I EAEHE BN IS B -

Hfth b [ &R B8 M) 2 FRIA S I A
SEEBAEERZRITRE  XR
BERMABER REBENEHFE-

RSB s SRR AR AT B R R DA P B 1
X HRREMSERZERNT

2015 2014
—E-HF —FT—UF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHTT
Loss before tax BT A& (158,015) (119,846)
Tax at the PRC Enterprise Income BB EMGRE X
Tax rate of 25% (2014: 25%) 25% (—Z— P04 :
25% )stE 2 A (39,504) (29,962)
Tax effect of expenses that are not AR 2 RS2
deductible 22,331 20,057
Tax effect of income that are not taxable BEARBWAZ B2 (3,313) -
Tax effect of temporary differences not RIERERERE 2
recognised IS (357) 607
Tax effect of unused tax losses not ABAREARTIEEBE
recognised M E 22,800 13,018
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not B A AR ERTIIAEE
previously recognised BB (208) -
Underprovision in prior years BEFERETR 293 390
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries B AR TRIF R 2 g2 £ 514 (370)
Income tax expense PS5t 2 2,556 3,740
FERIFZNEERRATR 113
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An e BTSRRI EE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

13. LOSS FORTHE YEAR

The Group's loss for the year is stated after charging/

HE_ZT-—RE+_A=1T—HILFE

13. AFEEE
AEBENBEBING (GHA)E

(crediting) the following: HESH
2015 2014
—B-HF —T-WF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FETT
Auditor's remuneration 1% BRI 3 B 1,400 1,155
Amortisation of intangible assets mEEHH 4,195 2,464
Cost of inventories sold EEFEXA 71,432 44,806
Impairment of inventories FERE 1,494 -
Depreciation of property, plant and VBB R EREBITE
equipment 3,181 2,359
Gain on deregistration of a branch —ME D ARz WS - (812)
Gain on fair value change of contingent ERSHARERFEEE
consideration payables W e (13,155) -
Loss/(gain) on disposals of property, HEWE - BEREZHEZ
plant and equipment BE, (W) 15 (201)
Operating leases charges KEEES N 10,605 8,678
Exchange (gain)/loss PE 5 (Wzs) 518 (599) 1,392
Impairment of prepayment and other TE A BRIE N H A FE YRR
receivables DEAIE] 25,067 75
Allowance of trade receivables JE WL AR SR A 3,522 -
Reversal of allowance for receivables JE WU A B A B B (226) -
Intangible assets written off | A EME 308 1,095
Impairment of intangible assets mEEERE 1,635 -
Impairment of goodwill EESNERE] 4,641 53,323
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015

HE-_T—RF+-_A=T—HILFE

14. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE 14. EEEFFEX
2015 2014
—E-HF —TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
Employee benefits expense: EERAMAX

Salaries, bonuses and allowances T& - TE4T FoRRL 53,321 36,390
Equity-settled share-based payments I i 45 E i 2 T R 57,548 4,463
Retirement benefit scheme contributions R (K48 A5t 214t & 12,069 9,567
122,938 50,420

Five highest paid individuals TEBRSHFMAL

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during
the year included five (2014: three) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in
note 15. The emoluments of the remaining individuals are
set out below:

FARAEELEZESFMALERER
#H(ZE-OF:ZR)EF HEflg
HNH ISP DM AR T AL Z
&k 5an T

2015 2014

—E-HFE —T—WUF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FETT

Basic salaries and allowances HEARTE MR - 1,266
Equity-settled share-based payments IR EE IR > IR - 116
Retirement benefits scheme contributions R A4E |51 2] 4 7% - 17
- 1,399

The emoluments fell within the following band:

NFTINERE M

Number of individuals

AE
2015 2014
—E-HF —FT—WUF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 2 %1,000,0007% 7T - 2

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any of the directors or the highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

FR-AKEREATINEFTARS
FMALNHE ER/MAXEE
K0 B2 R 2 AR ED sk RE R A (B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRS M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE_ZT-—RE+_A=1T—HILFE
15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF 15. EEENRF=Z
DIRECTORS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEEM2
The remuneration of every director is set out BEEFZHMeHIMT
below:

Equity-  Retirement

settled benefit
Salaries and Discretionary  share-based scheme
Fees  allowances bonus payments contributions Total

REEE RAEF
e IEREE BEEA ROXANE AHEIER EE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FRT TR FRT TR TR TR

Executive directors HIES
Guan Guisen HER - 1,800 150 - 18 1,968
Lei Chunxiong (Note (a)) EfE (M5 () - 563 100 - 9 672
Cao Chunmeng EE= - 1,380 100 10,579 18 12,077
Yan Xiaotian Bl - 1,080 68 7242 - 8,390
- 4,823 418 17,821 45 23,107
Independent non-executive BV IFHITEE
directors
Wang Zhongmin IRR 120 - - 877 - 997
Gu Jiawang AR 120 - - 877 - 997
Fong Chi Wah HEE 120 - - 877 - 997
360 - - 2,631 - 2,991
Total for 2015 “E-REREG 360 4,823 418 20,452 45 26,098
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ArE BTSRRI EE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (Conta)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Cont’d)

HE-_T—RF+-_A=T—HILFE

15. EEEMRFZ (&)

Salaries and

a) EZEME®

Equity-  Retirement
settled benefit
Discretionary  share-based scheme

=
L=

Fees  allowances bonus payments  contributions Total
R B iR D RIKEH
we IEREE Wi XA BE LG EEH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR
Executive directors HIESE
Guan Guisen BER - 1,800 - - 17 1817
Lei Chunxiong E - 1,200 - - 17 1,217
Cao Chunmeng S - 1,200 - 458 17 1,675
Yan Xiaotian (Note (b)) BER (M) - %0 - - - 90
- 4,290 - 458 51 4,799
Independent non-executive B FHITES
directors
Wang Zhongmin IRR 120 - - 23 - 143
Gu Jiawang ARE 120 - - 23 - 143
Fong ChiWah HEE 120 - - 23 - 143
360 - - 69 - 429
Total for 2014 e b 360 4,290 - 527 51 5,228
Note: Bt o -
(a) Resigned on 19 June 2015. (@) S RERNATNBEE-

(b) Appointed on 24 December 2014.

Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors
waived any emoluments during the year (2014: nil).

—EF—
(b) R-E—NME+_A-_+NAES

o

FNTTIARER M AT A S AL S B

S (ZE—UF:H|E) o

FEAHXNEEARATF
FiR

—ZT—hF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MRS M

For the year ended 31 December 2015

15. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF
DIRECTORS (Conta)

(b)

Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or contracts
No significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group's business to
which the Company was a party and in which
a director of the Company and the director’s
connected party had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.

16. LOSS PER SHARE

118

(a)

(b)

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share is based
on the loss for the year attributable to owners of
the Company of approximately HK$153,818,000
(2014: HK$122,724,000) and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 5,684,829,000 (2014:
5,172,440,000) in issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share

As exercise of the Group’'s outstanding share
options, warrants and contingent consideration
payables for the years ended 31 December 2014
and 2015 would be anti-dilutive, no diluted loss
per share was presented for the years ended 31
December 2014 and 2015.

China Innovationpay Group Limited
Annual Report 2015

HE_ZT-—RE+_A=1T—HILFE

15. EEEMRFZ (&)

(b)

EENRG  ZHREWTP
ZERER
AEBEBERERBITLAR
BAIREFRINATRARRES
AN EE 2 M B
BEERERMNFRRFAR
ERRHEDAFEZERAR
P RFEREH -

16. BREE

(a)

(b)

BREFREIER
EREAEBBEDIREAR
ABEAELEFEEBEY
153,818,000/ 7T ( =& — Y
% :122,724,000%8 L) R FEA
EETERR 2 MEFHH
5,684,829,000/% (= Z — Y
F:5,172,440,0000% ) M 5
ﬁo

FRBEER

AR TEESE T —NF R
T-AFTZA=1+—HILLF
B2 AREE 2 M RITER R
1 R RN SARE
B IR AR MR
TNFERZF-HFT=A
=T HLEFETEZIIER
BEER-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE-_T—RF+-_A=T—HILFE
17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17 YE- -BERSE
Group
S|
Furniture
Leasehold and office
improvements equipment Motor vehicles Total
HRAR
HEMERE BAERE RE a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THET THET
Cost B
At 1 January 2014 RZE-NE—A—H 3,147 9,346 520 13,013
Additions RNE 2 3,636 784 4,322
Acquisition of a subsidiary g Sl [Lo] =N - 797 - 797
Disposals/written off HE /i - (1,420) (127) (1,547)
Exchange differences EHER (69) (212) (14) (295)
At 31 December 2014 and RZE-ME+ZA=T—HRK
1 January 2015 —£-1%—A-H 3,080 12,047 1,163 16,290
Additions RE 2,850 8,023 - 10,873
Acquisition of subsidiaries hGIENG 5 116 - 121
Disposals/written off HE /i - (64) - (64)
Exchange differences BHER (228) (777) (63) (1,058)
At 31 December 2015 WZZ-AF+-A=1—H 5,707 19,345 1,110 26,162
Accumulated depreciation ZENE
At 1 January 2014 RZT—-ME—A—H 1,292 4,733 442 6,467
Charge for the year AEEREY 340 1,874 145 2,359
Disposalsfwritten off HE /s - (385) (122) (507)
Exchange differences BEHEE (30) (1) (10) (151)
At 31 December 2014 and RZE-ME+ZA=T—HRK
1 January 2015 —T-h¥—A—H 1,602 6,111 455 8,168
Charge for the year AEEREY 576 2,441 164 3,181
Disposals/written off HE /i - (41) - (41)
Exchange differences BEHEE 91) (337) (26) (454)
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-HAF+-_A=+—H 2,087 8,174 593 10,854
Carrying amount HRHEE
At 31 December 2015 RZZ-AF+-_A=+—H 3,620 11,171 517 15,308
At 31 December 2014 R_Z-MFE+_A=1—H 1,478 5,936 708 8,122
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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18.

+ e~
B SRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE-_T—RAF+-A=1+—HILFE
INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. EFEE
Group
PN |
Computer
Technology software
Customer know-how (internally
relationship (Note) generated) Total
BB B
EFBE (FisE) (RBEE) &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FTEL TAEL TEL
Cost B
At 1 January 2014 RZT—-mE—H—H 262 - 12,963 13,225
Acquisition of a subsidiary Y- B AR - 7757 - 7757
Additions RE - - 2,261 2,261
Written off i - - (1,325) (1,325)
Exchange differences ERER (6) - (292) (298)
At 31 December 2014 and RZE-NFE+ZA=+—-8K
1 January 2015 “E-hF—H—H 256 7757 13,607 21,620
Written off g - - (1,625) (1,625)
Exchange differences BEHEE (12) (351) (565) (928)
At 31 December 2015 R_E-—hETZA=1T—H 244 7406 11,417 19,067
Accumulated amortisation and ERBERAERR
impairment loss
At 1 January 2014 RZE-ME—HA—A 40 - 2,975 3,015
Charge for the year AEERX 51 - 2,413 2,464
Written off | - - (230) (230)
Exchange differences EHER (1) - (78) (79)
At 31 December 2014 and RZE-WE+-A=+—HEK
1 January 2015 —T-h¥—A—H 90 - 5,080 5,170
Charge for the year AEERX 50 1,529 2,616 4,195
Written off i - - (1,317) (1,317)
Impairment loss REEE - - 1,635 1,635
Exchange differences BHER (6) (47) (321) (374)
At 31 December 2015 RZE-hE+ZA=1+—8 134 1,482 7693 9,309
Carrying amount RHEE
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RF+T-A=1+—H 110 5,924 3724 9,758
At 31 December 2014 RZE—MF+-A=1+—H 166 7757 8,527 16,450

120

Note: Technology know-how was acquired on 31 December
2014 from acquisition of Onecomm (Note 40(b)).
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

18.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont )

The average remaining amortisation period of customer
relationship, technology know-how and computer
software are 3 years, 4 years and 7 years respectively
(2014: 4 years, b years and 8 years).

The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount
of its intangible assets in 2015, having regard to the
market conditions of the Group’s business. These assets
are used in the CGUs of Onecomm, travellers related
services and prepaid card and other related operations.
The review led to the recognition of an impairment loss
of HK$1,635,000 for computer software used in the
segment of travellers related services that have been
recognised in profit or loss. The recoverable amount of
HK$117.000 of the impaired assets has been determined
on the basis of its value in use using discounted cash
flow method. The discount rate used which assessed
together with impairment testing of this CGU was
32.48% (2014: 33.22%). Details of the impairment
testing of other intangible assets in other CGUs are set
out in note 19.

HE—

18.

T-AFT-A=+—HIEFE

B EE &)

BEEBZ BEM#MEMETZF
BRI F D R A3FE AFERTF
(ZZE O 45 5FEKBE) ©

REBEERRNEBEY 2 TRE

HER-_ZE—AFZEFEEZAR
EleEETEHN ZSEEARN—B
BNz REeEE BN IREABERSE
RIENRREMBEER- - KEEH-

ERMERFRBARE DI (EREREA
R ) M 2 BSR4 #5R 1,635,000
7B TL 2 B K518 o BB B E 117,000
Bzl EeEEFRARER
MEEEERAEBERET FTAZ
MEETANTERSELESEMNZ
SEER R B32.48% (—F— U4

33.22% ) cREMRESEABEN 2 H
fh A A 2 2 R BRI 2 S IE A RT
190
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE_ZT-—RE+_A=1T—HILFE
GOODWILL 19. BHE
Prepaid card
and related
General trading operations Travellers Onecomm
operations (Note 40(a)) related services (Note 40(b))
(“CGU 1) (“CGU 2) (“CGU 3") ("CGU 4") Total
AfRFR
BREHR —EEMN
-REZEH (Hiz*40(a)) B RRS (HizE40(b))
((REEEEW]) ((REEEEM2]) ([REEEEM]) ([REELEMW)) &3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THL TAL THL FHL
Cost ﬁﬂi
At 1 January 2014 T-mE-f-AH 219,330 914,612 4,817 - 1,138,759
Acquisition of a subsidiary W% Bl - - - 13,186 13,186
Exchange differences ERER (4,872) (20,310) (107) - (25,289)
At 31 December 2014 and RZE-RE+ZA=T-AR
1 January 2015 “Z-RF-A-AH 214,458 894,302 4,710 13,186 1,126,656
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHBAE 56,597 56,597
Exchange differences ERESR (9,698) (40,442) (213) (597) (50,950)
At 31 December 2015 WZE-RF+-A=1-H 204,760 910,457 4,497 12,589 1,132,303
Accumulated impairment losses ~ ZEFEFE
At 1 January 2014 “E-m¥-F—-H 164,794 230,873 - - 395,667
Impairment loss recognised TEERRLAERE
in the current year 53,323 - - - 53,323
Exchange differences ERER (3,659) (5,126) - - (8,785)
At 31 December 2014 and RZZ-EE+ZA=+-AEk
1 January 2015 “2-1%—-A-H 214,458 225,747 - - 440,205
Impairment loss recognised FEERRRESSE
in the current year - - 4,641 - 4,641
Exchange differences ERER (9,698) (10,209) (144) - (20,051)
At 31 December 2015 “E-RETZA=1-H 204,760 215,538 4,497 - 424,795
Carrying amount EHE
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RF+-A=1-H - 694,919 - 12,589 707508
At 31 December 2014 “E-mE+-A=1-H - 668,555 4710 13,186 686,451
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

19.

GOODWILL (Cont'a)

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated,
at acquisition, to the CGUs that are expected to benefit
from that business combination.

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs have been
determined on the basis of their value in use using
discounted cash flow method. The key assumptions
for the discounted cash flow method include those
regarding the discount rates, growth rates and budgeted
gross margin and turnover during the period. The Group
estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the CGUs. The growth rates
are based on long-term average economic growth rate
of the geographical area in which the businesses of the
CGUs operate. Budgeted gross margin and turnover are
based on past practices and expectations on market
development.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the
most recent financial budgets approved by the directors
for the next five years with the residual period using
the growth rate of 3% (2014: 3%). This rate does not
exceed the average long-term growth rate for the relevant
markets.

At 31 December 2015, the pre-tax rates used to discount
the forecast cash flows from the Group’s CGU 2, CGU 3
and CGU 4 are 24.20% (2014: 29.66%), 32.25% (2014:
33.22%) and 29.07% (2014: 29.95%) respectively.

At 31 December 2014, the pre-tax rate used to discount
the forecast cash flows from the Group's CGU 1 was
31.26%.

HE—

19.

T-AFT-A=+—HIEFE

BHE %)
RERAHIEES Y BRIk
SEREEEENZER AP ISEY
38 47 4 B AT o

ReEEE 2 el eI EER
MRREREBELTEEREERE
E-RBRRSREZEMEAZEER
REERAANER R E FRE.
BEEMEREERE - AKEHNAA
BB RIS H B R EZ &R
TELBENZFERRZBRHATL X
AR R - BRERARBSELE
&2 X R z REFIEEE
BERSGELE-AEEMERNEXR
B EENREHMSERAE

o

AREFEZRLREEN RS
BEFIR AR RFS R 2
REA3% (ZF—TUF 3% ) 2R
MR TR - S R TR B
52 FHRMERE .

R-E—RE+_A=+—H BN
BIRTERAEEIRSELEMN2 -]
CELBMNIRBCELEMNIRES TR
EZHRBAILES R B24.20% (=
T —PU4F 1 29.66% ) ~32.25% (==
— P4 133.22% ) &29.07% (=&
— P4 :29.95% ) °

R-E—NME+-_F=+—H Bl
BRI AREBRSELEMIEELZIR
eI 2 BRI R 531.26% °
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

19.

20.

124

GOODWILL (Cont'a)

At 31 December 2015, the Group has revised its
expectations about the future profitability of CGU 3
because the Group foresees difficulties in securing
business with major customers and suppliers. The
Group has revised its cash flow forecast for CGU 3. The
directors have consequently determined to impair the
goodwill allocated to CGU 3 amounting to HK$4,641,000.
No other impairment of the assets of CGU 3 is
considered necessary.

As CGU 2 and CGU 4 (2014: CGU 1 and 2) have been
reduced to the recoverable amounts, any adverse change
in the assumptions used in the calculation of recoverable
amounts would result in further impairment losses.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015
are as follows:

Place of incorporation/
registration and

HE

19.

20.

Z-RF+A=+—HILFE

[5E3€ )
R-ZE—FAE+-_A=+—H #HRL
NEEEREFBEEFRHER X
BEERS$ AEECETHEEEE
SEEBM3ZBIEnFge 2T -
AEBECDEBIHASEESEUINS
MEEAN EEERAETIEERS
EEBEAI EEREES641,000%8
TLo RS EEBMNIBE 2 HMRER
REWTEK -

REELEBMERRSELEENA(Z
T-NF BeEASMIRBEES
BA2)EFARETREISEE W E
A e 5 RE R A 2 B R 2 (R AT T
SPEYEERHRE—PRESE-

REBRRZRE
HERAR=B—EF+=A=+—
A2 HEmT

operation Issued and Percentage of
Name FEMRYL/ paid up capital ownership interest  Principal activities
a5 TR S B ERTREHMRE BEEEREAL FEER
Direct Indirect
HE Ek:4
Country Praise Enterprises Limited British Virgin Islands 769,231 ordinary shares of 100% - Investment holding
("Country Praise”) ("BVI") no par value BERR
EBRAHE 769,231 R EE B2 L@k
(IHERxHEE])
China Prepay Group Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Inactive
£ 10,000/ T EmEx
Gaohuitong Enterprise Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Not yet commence business
£ 10,0007 7 EENGEIGES S
Gaohuitong Consulting Co., Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Not yet commence business
£ 10,0007 7 EENGEIGES S
Splendid Win Enterprise Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Investment holding
BB 10,0007 7T REER
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20.

Place of incorporation/

registration and

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'a)

HE-_T—RF+-_A=T—HILFE

20. AMIBRARZ®RE (&)

operation Issued and Percentage of
Name HEmEL/ paid up capital ownership interest Principal activities
18 R E R BETREHRAE BEREZEIR TEEK
Direct Indirect
HE &
Bright Voyage Limited BVI US$50,000 - 100%  Investment holding
EERZEE 50,000 7T REER
Moderntimes Payment Limited BVI US$102,041 - 51%  Investment holding
EERZEE 102,041 7T REER
Essence Management Services Limited  Hong Kong HK$100,000 - 100%  Investment holding
A% 100,000/ 7T REER
Bright Voyage Global Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100% Inactive
A% 10,000/ T Emes
MEiREE (LR RELRNERAR The PRC RMB123,330,000 - 100%  Trading of watches and
Beijing Shangyin Investment H AR #123,330,0007T computer equipments
Consultancy Co., Ltd. BEFHREEMNZE
IRAABEREEREERAT The PRC RMB101,000,000 - 100%  Information system
Beijing Tiantongsaibo Information H AR #101,000,0007T maintenance and
Technology Co., Ltd. (“TTSB") development services
EERGHENAERE
TR ERAEERERLA The PRC RMB100,000,000 - 100%  Provision of prepaid card and
Beijing Gaohuitong Commercial H A K %100,000,0007T related customer services
Management Co., Ltd. REENRREBEEFRS
ELEEEREEREERAR The PRC RMB5,000,000 - 100%  Provision of prepaid card and
Shenyang Shanglian Huitong H AR™5,000,0007T related customer services

Commercial Services Co., Ltd.

FEAHXNEEARATF

RUEBNRREREPRYE
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE_ZT-—RE+_A=1T—HILFE

20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES cont)  20. RHIBATRZIRE (&)

Place of incorporation/
registration and

operation Issued and Percentage of
Name HEmEL/ paid up capital ownership interest Principal activities
E2 TMREEnE BETREHRAE EEREEREIL TEER
Direct Indirect
E#E &
mMERBRER DA (formerly known  The PRC RMB4,000,000 - 100%  Provision of prepaid card and
as MMNERHERRERLA) F AE#4,000,0007C related customer services
Hangzhou Saibo Information Technology REENRREBEEFRSE
Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Hangzhou
Qianbao Technology Co., Ltd.)
EERENEERERAA The PRC RMB5,000,000 - 100% Inactive
Shengyang Tonghui Technology F AR #5,000,0007T Emes
Development Co., Ltd.
IREAENHEBRAA The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100%  Prepaid gift card marketing
Beijing Zhixiang Chuangfu H AR™10,000,0007T and sales
Commercial Co., Ltd. BRENREBRIEE
FEREBHEARADF The PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100%  Prepaid gift card marketing
Shanghai Jinghui Commercial Co., Ltd. AK%1,000,0007T and sales
BRENREBRIEE
EEREREEERAR The PRC RMB1,000,000 - 100%  Inactive
Jinan Gaohuitong Commercial Co., Ltd. AK%1,000,0007T Emes
MNEEREERLA The PRC RMB2,000,000 - 100% Inactive
Hangzhou Gaohuitong F AE#2,000,0007T Emes

Commercial Co., Ltd.
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20.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'a)

Place of incorporation/
registration and

He—F

—RE+=AST—ALFE

20. AMIBRARZ®RE (&)

operation Issued and Percentage of
Name HEmEL/ paid up capital ownership interest Principal activities
£ R E R ERTREHRE REEREZEIN TEEHR
Direct Indirect
HE Gk
YA EREEEEARAR The PRC RMB3,000,000 - 100%  Prepaid phone card
Shenzhen Shanglian Huitong H AR™3,000,0007T distn’bution
Commercial Management Co., Ltd. BRNEERIH
SR (L) REERAR The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding
Kopu (Beijing) Technology Co., Ltd. H AR™10,000,0007T RERR
FEEREEBRE (ER)BRAF The PRC RMB1,500,000 - 100%  Online airticket agency
Kopu Ticket Agency Service H AR™1,500,0007C business
(Beijing) Co., Ltd. BLBEEABEY
FRERER (LR EFEBEEREMTRAT The PRC RMB4,000,000 - 95%  Travellers related services in
Kanghui Financial (Beijing) m AR #4,000,0007T the PRC
E-Commerce Co., Ltd. R B2 Ik AR R
ER—EHMBRERAR The PRC RMB23,000,000 - 51%  Provision of total solution
Beijing Onecomm Technology F AR 23,000,000 for third party payment
Company Limited (“Onecomm”) system and sales of
integrated smart point of
sa\es (“POS") dev'\ce
=H%M HEm
%RE%&%%a%%E
B (POS|)&E
RIEREZA(LB)ERAR The PRC US$1,340,000 - 100%  Provision of consultancy
Yu Shun Investment Consultancy H 1,340,000% 7T services, development,

(Shanghai) Company Limited

operation and promotion
of innovative products
and customer value
management

REERERS BE LER
REFRIFTEMREPERE
R
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Conta)  20.

Place of incorporation/
registration and

Z-RF+A=+—HILFE

RHBLRRZRE (#)

operation Issued and Percentage of
Name HEmEL/ paid up capital ownership interest Principal activities
£ TMREEnE ERTREHRE EEREEREIL TEEHR
Direct Indirect
HE Gk
RYEERAIER BB The PRC HK$10,000,000 100% - Inactive
SREBERAR Bl 10,000,000/ T Thax
Shenzhen Innovationpay Co., Limited
AYELEREIERAEE The PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Not yet commence business
SREBERAR Bl RMB10,000,000 HAREES
Shenzhen Innovationpay Big Data &R
Co., Limited AR #10,000,0007C
IRFENFHEERERATA The PRC RMB450,000 - 100%  Not yet commence business
Beijing Meichuang Commercial h AR %450,0007T ENGLEES

Management Co., Limited

The above list contains the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities
of the Group.

As at 31 December 2015, the bank and cash balances
of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC denominated
in Renminbi (“RMB") amounted to HK$87645,000
(2014: HK$97061,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to the PRC’'s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE-_T—RF+-_A=T—HILFE
21. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 21. R—EBEQIATRZRE
2015 2014
—EB-HFE —ZT0OF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FABIT
Unlisted investment in the PRC: R ZIEEMIRE -
Share of net assets [E(REEFE - -
Details of the Group's associate at 31 December 2015 AEEBEATAR_E—AF+=A
were as follows: =+—BZFBHT:
Percentage of
equity interest
Place of incorporation/ attributable to
Name registration and operation  Registered capital the Group Principal activities
KEEER
£ SMEY EREREERYE  HAMEX REBEALL FEER
LG eREERBBERAR The PRC RMB5,000,000 37% Micro business lending
Shanghai Yu Chang Financial F AR #5,000,0007C AR EER

Information Services Co., Limited

As at 31 December 2015, the bank and cash balances
of the Group’s associate in the PRC denominated in
RMB amounted to HK$119,000 (2014: nil). Conversion
of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC's
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations.

WZZE—RE+_A=1+—0 &&
B BB A RINARKEZIRIT
MR & &5 8r3%119,0008 T (—ZZ—Y
F:Em) AREHBBINKEBER
(R BISNE B IR IRHI) K& (KEEE &
ERMESERETE)
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22,

130

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS

HE_ZT-—RE+_A=1T—HILFE

22 AHHENKEE

2015 2014
—E-HF —FDOF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FETT

Unlisted equity securities FE L TIRAFE
At cost AR 110,002 62,525

Analysed as: DT

Current assets MENEE - -
Non-current assets ERBEE 110,002 62,525
110,002 62,525

Unlisted equity securities with carrying amount of
HK$110,002,000 (2014: HK$62,525,000) were carried
at cost as they do not have a quoted market price in
an active market and their fair value cannot be reliably
measured.

The carrying amounts of the Group's available-for-
sale financial assets are denominated in RMB as at 31
December 2014 and 2015.

None of these financial assets is either past due or
impaired.

China Innovationpay Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE-_T—RF+-_A=T—HILFE
23. INVENTORIES 23. &
2015 2014
—E-HF —T—WF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Finished goods LR 3,389 6,770
Impairment losses VEREY R (1,448) -
1,941 6,770
24. TRADE RECEIVABLES 24. FEUWBRFR
2015 2014
—E2-HF —ZT0OF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Trade receivables JE YRR R 47,398 60,663
Allowance for doubtful debts RERRE (4,216) (1,070)
43,182 59,593
The Group's trading terms with customers are mainly AEEREFPZ2ESBRAEERE
on credit. The credit terms generally range from 30 to 90 B EEH M FI0E0H - ¥R
days. For new customers, payment in advance is normally FEPME  —MEBNRIE A&
required. The Group seeks to maintain strict control B ¥ R U (B 2 P R A 15 BR A 4 1) o
over its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are EETHEROBEH

reviewed regularly by the directors.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Contd)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables based on the
invoice date, and net of allowance, is as follows:

HE_ZT-—RE+_A=1T—HILFE

24. FEWERFR (&)

EUWER (REZEHFE - FEM
BRI 2 BREEDHTII T

2015 2014

—B-HF —T-WF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTERT FHET

0 to 90 days 0Z90H 31,889 24,668
91 to 180 days 91HZ180H 2,807 4,224
181 to 365 days 181%365H 8,486 30,701
43,182 59,593

As at 31 December 2015, an allowance was made
for estimated irrecoverable trade receivables for
approximately HK$4,216,000 (2014: HK$1,070,000).

R-_E—RFE+_A=+—8B%
et~ A U B 2 fE Uk BR 3R 7B H B
% #94,216,0008 70 (—FE — W F:

1,070,0005 7T ) ©

Reconciliation of allowance for trade receivables: JE LA BR SR s 2 SRR
2015 2014
—E-HF —ZT—WUF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAETT
At 1 January n—A—H 1,070 1,094
Allowance for the year FARE 3,522 -
Reversal of allowance for the year FRBERED (226) -
Exchange difference ME N ERE (150) (24)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 4,216 1,070

132
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24.

25.

B RS AR Myt

HE-_T—RF+-_A=T—HILFE

TRADE RECEIVABLES (conta) 24, FEWBRFR (&)
As of 31 December 2015, trade receivables of RZE—RFE+ZA=+—08 EK
HK$11,421,000 (2014: HK$34,926,000) were past due but AR 5%11,421,0008 70 (ZF — U4 -
not impaired. These relate to a number of independent 34,926,000/ 7T ) B 8 BB RRE © 5%
customers for whom there is no recent history of default. ENIEEZ LN B Rk 2 B
The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as BEFPEM ZEFRYIRS Z R DT
follows: NN
2015 2014
—E-HF C—T-NOF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Up to 3 months =@AZA 2,931 5,186
3 to 6 months —EAZENREA 771 7334
Over 6 months 7 E A LA £ 7719 22,406
11,421 34,926
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade receivables R-ZE—NER_ZE—RF+-A
are denominated in RMB as at 31 December 2014 and =+—RH AEEEWERZEREE
2015. IAANR®EEHE -
PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 25. FENRE -RERHEMERR
RECEIVABLES
2015 2014
—2-HF —ZT-WF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Prepayments TR 9,880 20,651
Deposits birgoia 29,747 31,705
Loans to independent third parties (Note) MBI F = HiEH 2 EX
(M3E) 13,730 43,455
Other receivables H b & WK 3,168 5,343
56,525 101,154
Long term deposits classified as non-current D8 A IEREEE 2 K
assets o (24,531) (28,281)
31,994 72,873
PERIF XN EBERAR 133
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25.

134

HE

Z-RF+A=+—HILFE

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 25. FENRE ZReRkHEMERRK
RECEIVABLES (Cont'a) (#&)
Note: B EE -
The carrying amounts of loans to independent third parties are REZTE—mOFER_T—RAF+_A=+—
denominated in RMB as at 31 December 2014 and 2015. The H - MBIE=AFEHZERZREEN
loans are arranged at fixed interest rates between 1.25% per ARBFAE - ERUNTEA125%EEFF
month to 12% per annum (2014: 1% to 1.25% per month). 12% (ZF—MNF: FH1%%E1.25% ) 2 &
T Bk o
At 31 December 2015, the loans are secured by the following: RZE—RAF+ZA=+—8 BERIUT
5| B IRV
(a) Personal guarantees with unlimited amount given by the (a) BRR R BARRFRAEL 2 SR H
largest shareholder of the borrowing company; TRZEAER:
(b) Land located in the PRC owned by the borrowing (b) HEFRR AR 2 IR B2 i o
company.
As at 31 December 2015, an allowance was made for estimated RZE—RAFTZA=T—BHMETIAEK
irecoverable prepayment, deposits and other receivables of B2 TR FRIE - 12 & [o H h FE WK H s
approximately HK$24,361,000 (2014: HK$75,000). #924,361,0007% 7t ( = Z — IO 4 : 75,000/
TT) e
Reconciliation of allowance for prepayments, deposits YN FIE e N H b e W R s
and other receivables: HEE
2015 2014
—E-FHF —ZT—UF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
At 1 January R—HA—H 75 -
Allowance for the year FNEE 25,067 75
Exchange difference M N ERE (781) -
At 31 December R+—ZA=+—H 24,361 75
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE-_T—RF+-_A=T—HILFE

26. AMOUNT DUE FROM A NON- 26. BEW—EMBARZ—IEE
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER OF A i IR SR FKIE
SUBSIDIARY
Amount due from a non-controlling shareholder of a JE W — Fel BT /B8 & B 2 — iz FEFERR AR R
subsidiary is as follows: FIEAT
Maximum
Balance at amount
31 December Balance at outstanding
2015 1 January 2015 during the year
R=-Z-HF RZT—1LF
+=-B=+—H —H—H FN&m
Name HE 2R B REERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Mr. JOONG Chi-Wei mEREEE 215 - 215
The amount was unsecured, interest free and repayable ZHIARERR RO RARERE
on demand. o
27. BANK AND CASH BALANCES 27 MITRBESEER

As at 31 December 2015, the bank and cash balances
of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to
HK$87645,000 (2014: HK$97061,000). Conversion of
RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the PRC's
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations.

As at 31 December 2015, bank balances of
HK$11,639,000 (2014: HK$27504,000) were restricted for
the purpose of settlement obligation as set out in note
29.

RZE-—RE+_A=+—8 'K
SEUNARBHEZRITRRASE
#43%87645,000/8 70 (=T — W & :
97061,000/% 70 ) - AR KR BINE
BEE (PREINESIIEH) & (&
& -SERNESEBRE) °

RZE—RAF+_A=+—8 17
4 #211,639,0008 T (—ZF — 4 -
27,504,000 7T ) 40 MY 5E29FT it 2 R
SIRAREEET-
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28.

29.
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TRADE PAYABLES 28.

The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the date
of receipt of goods, is as follows:

—E-RAF+_A=F+—HILFE

FEAS BRFX

AEBZ BMER (RENERER
FHE) ZRREDMTNT :

2015 2014

—B-HF —T-WF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAET

0 to 90 days 0£90H 2,699 10,919
91 to 180 days 91H £180H 60 38
181 to 365 days 181 H £365H 37 785
Over 365 days 366H A = 948 214
3,744 11,956

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade payables are
denominated in RMB as at 31 December 2014 and 2015.

NZE—NMER_FT—RE+_A
—t+—H AEEEMNERZERE
AANREETE-

ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 29. FEIREARHMEMNR
2015 2014
—B-HF —ZT-WF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FETT
Settlement obligation (Note) HEEME (W) 11,639 27504
Receipt in advance TEU FRIA 1,330 2,599
Accruals EIRE A 5,793 4,246
Other payables H i JE ST 3K 20,025 15,521
38,787 49,870

Note: B 5

The settlement obligations are recognised upon issuance of
prepaid cards and receipt of respective funds. The amount
represents unused fund balances of the prepaid cards that the
Group obligates to remit to the contracted merchants when
cardholders make purchase transactions using the prepaid
cards. The settlement basis is normally the next business day
of the transaction date, except for certain merchants where
settlement term is negotiated on an individual basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE-_T—RAF+t-A=+—HLFE
BORROWINGS 30. &R
2015 2014
—E-HF —ZT—WUF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Bank loans RITER - 625
The carrying amounts of the Group's borrowings are RZZE-—NE+_A=+—H K&
denominated in RMB as at 31 December 2014. EEFZEMBEAAREE-
The average interest rate at 31 December 2014 was RZZE—NFE+A=+—H ¥
72%. FEET2% °
Bank loans of HK$625,000 were arranged at floating $R1TE 3625,000/8 LA F B A R %2
interest rates and exposed the Group to cash flow e AEEBEEAXR T —NF+=
interest rate risk as at 31 December 2014 and were A=1t—BzRE&RENERERIH
secured by personal guarantee of a non-controlling —(IIEIERR AR R A A B EAEER -
shareholder.
AMOUNTS DUETO DIRECTORS/NON- 3. EREE MEBLATZFER

31.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS OF
SUBSIDIARIES

The amounts were unsecured, interest free and
repayable on demand.

IRERFKIA

SR AREER R RARENRE
%o
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32.

138

CONTINGENT CONSIDERATION
PAYABLES

HE_ZT-—RF+_A=1T—HILFE

32. EAZARE

2015 2014

—E-REF —TNNF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

As at 1 January Rn—H—H 10,110 -

Fair value of contingent consideration WEEMTB AR 2

payables from acquisition of subsidiaries R SAREAFE 22,861 10,110
Gain on fair value change recognised for the F R 2 #E A F(E &

year W (13,155) -

Exchange differences ME N ERR (149) -

As at 31 December W+=—A=+—H 19,667 10,110

The contingent consideration payables as at year end
date represented the present value of the contingent
considerations for the acquisitions of subsidiaries, which
were estimated based on level 3 measurement. Details
of the above are set out in note 40 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ;

e R RMEE
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE-_T—RF+-A=T—HILFE
33. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 33. IRRES
The movement of convertible bonds during the year RBEZZT—NF+=-A=+—H1t
ended 31 December 2014 is set out below. FEAIRKRES 2E AT
Equity Liability
component component
EmED =R
HK$'000 HK$'000
AT FHET
At 1 January 2014 R-_T—mFE—HA—H 11,711 86,596
Conversion during the year FRNRIB (11,711 (96,310)
Imputed interest charged REFHENERAX
for the year (Note 11) (FgsE11) - 9,714
At 31 December 2014 RZZT—F
+=Z—A=+—H - _
During the year ended 31 December 2014, all outstanding RBE-_ZT—NF+-A=1+—H
convertible bonds were converted into 375,000,000 IEFE - ﬁﬁﬁr‘jiﬁfﬂiz—ﬁﬁﬂxfé%“
ordinary shares of the Company. 8 4 5 N A &) 2.375,000,000/% & 338
H&O
The interest charged for the year ended 31 December REZE_ZE—NF+=-A=+—H1
2014 is calculated by applying effective interest rates of FENERAIZTIRBE D ABRF
17.95% and zero coupon rate to the liability components. E1795% R ERMEHEKFTE -

rEAFEIEEERAT 139
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE_ZT-—RF+_A=1T—HILFE
34. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE 34. BIEER
2015 2014
—E-HFE —ZE-OF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Fair value of financial guarantee SR A A 41,365 -
During the year, the Group has issued a guarantee of FR AEERE T —HRKRELQF
RMB150,000,000 in respect of loans granted to an B 317 AR #150,000,0007T 2 #&
investee company. Under the guarantee, the Group is R BIBEER HMEREQRRER
liable for the maximum liability of RMB150,000,000 B REEE AAEEKEKE
(equivalent to HK$179,093,000) of the investee WRERRIZETERRFTBEAZE
company’s borrowings from the investee company's RERBERZEREBERARE
major equity holder upon failure of the investee company 150,000,0007T (48 & 179,093,000
making payments when due. BIT)BE-
The maximum liability of the Group at the end of the RBERR NEERZERET
reporting period under this guarantee is the aggregate ZEANBERRZAERZER
of borrowings drawn at that date of RMB50,000,000 58 A R #50,000,0007C (HE R
(equivalent to HK$59,698,000) and interest accrued up to 59,698,000 L) N EEZ H 1L 2
that date of RMB607000 (equivalent to HK$725,000). FESHA B A R¥6070007T (FHE R
725,000/ 7T ) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R R M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

35. DEFERRED TAX

The followings are the deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
recognised by the Group.

HE-_T—RAF+-_A=T—HILFE

35. EZERIE
NT AN EERR ELHBEE,
(BfE) -

Deferred tax
liabilities of fair
value gain on
intangible assets
by acquisition of

Tax losses a subsidiary Total
Wi — [
MEARZ
BREERNYE
W 28 2 IEFE
BEEE FeHiaE a3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET FET
At 1 January 2014 RZE—NF—H—H 1,918 - 1,918
Addition from acquisition of B4 BE — B A A
subsidiary NE - (1,076) (1,076)
Exchange differences BE 5 Z 5 (42) - (42)
At 31 December 2014 and RZZT—F
1 January 2015 +-A=+—8k
“E-HF—H—H 1,876 (1,076) 800
Charge for the year (Note 12) AEERX (KE12) (1,848) 287 (1,561)
Exchange differences bE N = (28) 40 12
At 31 December 2015 RZE—AF
+ZA=+—H - (749) (749)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of HK$137513,000 (2014: HK$104,640,000)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of such tax losses
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. All
unused tax losses will expire on or before 2020.

RREBRR NEBBARBATRIE
[E518137513,0008 7L (ZE — Y 4F :

104,640,000/ 7T ) + A] AR DA 88 7R 2K
a5 A o R R R A TR R AR & I SRR -

AT R B A A S S B RIEE IR
EE-FARDAREBBEBNR_-Z
ZTF R AIER

FEAFXNEEARAT
—Z-REFR

141



e

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A

B RS Ak Myt

For the year ended 31 December 2015

36.

HE_ZT-—RF+_A=1T—HILFE

35. DEFERRED TAX (Contd) 35. EEHIE (&)
At the end of the reporting period, the aggregate amount REEAR - B BERELETIES
of temporary differences associated with undistributed BB ARIARDIKREFIEE 2 G
earnings of subsidiaries for which deferred tax liabilities ZREAREE 4 526,666,0008 T (= F
have not been recognised is HK$26,666,000 (2014: —PU4F : 30,589,000/ 7T ) AN E
HK$30,589,000). No liability has been recognised in G ReERERE o RE BE
respect of these differences because the Group is in a BER Al e NG Al RARRED - i)
position to control the timing of reversal of the temporary TR ZEEZRERTMNEE.
differences and it is probable that such differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.
SHARE CAPITAL 36. BRA
2015 2014
—E-HF —T-NmF
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
RHEHE &8 Rin& 8 ke
Note ‘000 HK$'000 '000 HK$'000
k3 TR TER Tk TET
Authorised: ETE -
Ordinary shares of BREENOETZ
HK$0.01 each LEk 20,000,000 200,000 20,000,000 200,000
Ordinary, issued and EE-BBTR
fully paid: ar:
At 1 January n—HA—H 5,605,506 56,055 4,707139 47071
Share issued under placing B3 IR BB & 31T (a) 300,000 3,000 200,000 2,000
Share issued under RN IR EEE R
share option scheme IR 39 30,260 303 103,367 1,034
Share issued under R 1R 15 AT 2k
convertible bonds BHET 33 - - 375,000 3,750
Share issued under BRI RETE
exercise of warrants HBEEEZRTT  38(b)vii) 80,000 800 220,000 2,200
At 31 December RTZA=+—H 6,015,766 60,158 5,605,506 56,055
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

36.

SHARE CAPITAL (Cont'd)

Note:

(a) On 12 February 2014, the Company entered into a
placing agreement with CCB International Capital
Limited (the “Placing Agent”) pursuant to which the
Company has conditionally agreed to place, through
the Placing Agent, up to 200,000,000 placing shares at
a price of HK$0.64 per placing share. The placing was
completed on 20 February 2014 and the net proceeds
from placing were approximately HK$127040,000.

On 20 November 2015, the Company entered into a
placing agreement with Oriental Patron Asia Limited (the
“Placing Agent”) pursuant to which the Company has
conditionally agreed to place, through the Placing Agent,
up to 300,000,000 placing shares at a price of HK$0.406
per placing share. The placing was completed on 9
December 2015 and the net proceeds from placing were
approximately HK$121,191,000.

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern and to maximise the return to the shareholders
through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to
risk. The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the payment of dividends, issue
new shares, buy-back shares, raise new debts, redeem
existing debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

HE-_T—RF+-A=T—HILFE

36. BA(#)

GEE

(a) RZE—WNF-_A+=-H AQF
HERERSRBRAR ([RER
BV REHE KB NAF
EEKRHERERBRERERER
AL ERRD0.6AB T2 BRREERS
200,000,000/ FR & f& 0 - BB E R =
T—NE A+ HEKRKRERN
B RIEFEEA) 5127040,00078 It ©

REZE—RF+—A=Z+H £AQ7A
£ Oriental Patron Asia Limited ([
EREDITLRERZ B &
ARIEBRHRERBREENER
FIREEID0.40678 TT 2 BIRELE
% %300,000,000/% F2 & % {7 - Bd &
RIEBE—AFE+=-A LB &E
E B FIBFEREL A121,191,00078
Tre

AEBERNEEZ BIZREEAKE
ZIBKERS WEBELEEE
P M R R A 2R 8 R B 5 -

AEEZERLLPIREERSE A
SERBEERR 2B RABEEE
ZRBREC BEEANREILHNIA
B - SHERIFEERNRE ~&H
] B RS BB BATHRTA @B AR
N BENERK BEHRAEBEERHH
EEENRBEER -
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. NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B RS R M

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE_ZT-—RE+_A=1T—HILFE
36. SHARE CAPITAL (conta) 36. BRA& (&)
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to- AEEREBHERABER L REE
adjusted capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt BB B R o 2 L IR FETEBR AL
divided by adjusted capital. Net debt is calculated as total BENGE - FEBREEBREAR
debts less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital KRS EEMFTE - KCRABERBRE
comprises all components of equity (i.e. share capital, FrBE#EzmEnD (0 IRA - Brin s (E -
share premium, retained profits and other reserves). RE BN REMERE) -
2015 2014
—E2-HFE —ZT0OF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Debts (a) & (a) 82,566 59,852
Less: cash and cash equivalents BRekBEeFEEY (236,608) (162,595)
Net assets BEFE (154,042) (102,743)
Equity (b) #E 5 (b) 1,044,620 1,021,822
Net debts to equity ratio FEBE R FEA N iE
(a)  Debt is defined as trade payables, accruals, other (a) BEBWHTEREMNENR FEIR
payables, borrowings and financial guarantee BA AMEMNRK BREH
as detailed in notes 28, 29, 30 and 34 to the BHER FEREEMBRE
consolidated financial statements. Bff5E28 29 ~ 3034 -
(b)  Equity included all capital and reserves before non- (b) TS BEANEEIEERERA
controlling interests of the Group. ZERK#EE-
The only externally imposed capital requirement is INER B 4 1 EL RO A2 P _E T ML 2 ME
that for the Group to maintain its listing on the Stock — NN BEARER A NEEE
Exchange it has to have a public float of at least 25% of REFED2B5%RD /R RRFFRE -
the shares.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

HE-_T—RAF+-A=T—HIFE

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 37 ARTZHBRRARRREES
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE 3

COMPANY
(a) Statement of financial position of the (a)
Company

RAT 2 HBARRE

As at 31 December

R+=—BA=+—H
2015 2014
—E-HF —FDOF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 3T FHET FETT
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment %1% - [ E & & 32 107
Investments in subsidiaries KB QR ZIRE 564,088 677088
Amounts due from JE Uk BT BB A R 3R TE
subsidiaries 261,701 152,400
825,821 829,595
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and ~ FEFIE - & &
other receivables H b fE W R IE 832 794
Amounts due from JE Uk BT BB A R 3R TE
subsidiaries 146,088 146,068
Bank and cash balances RITNIR 28 75,649 48,263
222,569 195,125
Current liabilities REAE
Accruals and other payables  FE#E & F & E b JiE (< 30 IB 1,783 1,906
Amounts due to subsidiaries &K B A & 1B 1,068 1,058
Amounts due to directors Bt E B FKIA 31 1,000 1
3,851 2,965

FEAHXNEEARATF
—Z-REFR
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37 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE
COMPANY (Contd)

(a) Statement of financial position of the
Company (Cont'd)

HE_ZT-—RF+_A=1T—HILFE

37 ERRFRZMBRRERHEE
B (&)

(a) ZADFZHBIRIRE (&)

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+—H

2015 2014

—E-HF —FDOF

Note HK$'000 HK$'000

MIEE FET FETT

Net current assets MEBEEFE 218,718 192,160

NET ASSETS EEFE 1,044,539 1,021,755
Capital and reserves EXRR#HE

Share capital &N 36 60,158 56,055

Reserves i 38 984,381 965,700

TOTAL EQUITY XA 1,044,539 1,021,755

Approved by the Board of Directors on 30 March
2016 and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Guan Guisen

FEREE

146 China Innovationpay Group Limited
Annual Report 2015

RIBE-—RFZR=1THKE
EeifE WA TIESEAE
R®E:

Mr. Cao Chunmeng
BHRBALE



For the year ended 31 December 2015

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R AR

HE-_T—RF+-A=T—HILFE

37 ERR{FZHBRRRR SR

—T-nAFFH

AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE Bz
COMPANY (cont'd)
Reserve movement of the Company (b) ERATRZHEEEE
Convertible
Share Share bonds Retained
premium Contributed option equity Warrant profits/
account surplus reserve reserve reserve (loss) Total
TEKRES RREE REEN/
ROGEE SARG BRERE ERRFE & (F#]) &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THET FTET THT THET FTET THT
At 1 January 2014 RZZ2—mF—F—H 640,060 70,121 15,095 1,711 523 37061 774,571
Total comprehensive FRZARAEE
income for the year - - - - - (141,542) (141,542
Issued from placing FlE81T 125,040 - - - - - 125,040
Conversion of RETREES
convertible bonds 104,271 - - (1,711 - - 92,560
Exercise of warrants TR R EE 86,184 - - - (384) - 85,800
Exercise of share options 1T IR 35,767 - (10,959) - - - 24,808
Share-based payments Bt AR - - 4,463 - - - 4,463
Release upon lapse of PR AR R AR B
share options - - (197) - - 197 -
Changes in equity FRERED
for the year 351,262 - (6,693) (11,71 (384) (141,345) 191,129
At 31 December 2014 RZT—mF
+-A=+—H 991,322 70,121 8,402 - 139 (104,284) 965,700
At 1 January 2015 RZE—RF—F—H 991,322 70,121 8,402 - 139 (104,284) 965,700
Total comprehensive FREZEBALE
income for the year - - - - - (196,519)  (196,519)
Issued from placing EET 118,191 - - - - - 118,191
Issued from warrants RRIEEET - - - - 1,000 - 1,000
Exercise of warrants TR IEE 31,339 - - - (139) - 31,200
Exercise of share options 1T 1 10,623 - (3,362) - - - 7261
Share-based payments 17 2 14 708 - - 57548 - - - 57548
Release upon lapse of B AR R R B
share options - - (982) - - 982 -
Changes in equity FRERE
for the year 160,153 - 53,204 - 861 (195,537) 18,681
At 31 December 2015 RZE—RF
+-A=+-H 1,151,475 70,121 61,606 - 1,000 (299,821) 984,381
PERIF XN EBER AR 147
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

38. RESERVES

148

(a)

(b)

Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and
movements therein are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

Nature and purpose of reserves

(1)

(ii)

Share premium account

Share premium represents premium arising
from the issue of shares at a price in excess
of their par value per share and is not
distributable but may be utilised in paying
up unissued shares of the Company to be
issued to the shareholders of the Company
as fully paid bonus shares or in providing
for the premiums payable on repurchase of
shares.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group arose
as a result of the Group reorganisation
implemented in preparation for the
listing of the Company's shares in 2000
and represented the excess of the then
consolidated net assets of the subsidiaries
acquired, over the nominal value of the share
capital of the Company issued in exchange
therefore.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

38. RESERVES (contd)

(b)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Cont’d)

(i11)

(iv)

(v)

Share option reserve

The share option reserve represents the
fair value of the actual or estimated number
of unexercised share options granted to
employees of the Group recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for equity-settled share-based
payments in note 4(v) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the excess
of the fair value of the Group's share of net
assets over the purchase price. The amount
is retained in the consolidated statement
of financial position until the disposal of the
subsidiaries.

Statutory reserve

The statutory reserve, which is non-
distributable, is appropriated from the
profit after taxation of the Group's PRC
subsidiaries under the applicable laws and
regulations in the PRC.

HE-_T—RF+-A=T—HILFE

38. f@iE &)

(b)

REEEREN ®)

(i) ARG

BRERBERERA

B 75 S R I R4 (v

AR IR SN FRIE T

lise

RMETHRR BRE
FREEA R T ASER
Bz R1TTEBRESA

2 RFE-

iv) EXGEE

CRNCHEEERN e
BEFEZ A FEBL
BEEzZR 28RN
HEMBARERRE -
BEEMBRARALER

_u:o

v) — EEE

AERBERTADIK
THEES B ARG B B
JBRRIRIEFBEERA

SR
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

38. RESERVES (contd)

150

(b)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Cont’d)

(vi)

(vii)

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with accounting policies set
out in note 4(d) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Convertible bonds equity reserve
Convertible bonds have an option
component that enables the holder to
convert them into ordinary shares of the
Company, and the value of such option at
inception is credited to convertible bonds
equity reserve. Upon conversion, the
balance will be transferred to share capital
and share premium account.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

38. RESERVES (contd)

(b)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Cont’d)

(viii)

Warrant reserve

Warrant reserve represents the net
proceeds received from the issue of
warrants of the Company. The reserve will
be transferred to share capital and share
premium accounts upon the exercise of the
warrants.

On 16 July 2012, the Company issued
300,000,000 unlisted warrants at an issue
price of HK$0.001743 per warrant pursuant
to a subscription agreement. Each warrant
entitles the holder to subscribe for one
ordinary share of HK$0.01 each at an initial
subscription price of HK$0.40 per share at
any time within 5 years commencing from
the date of issue of the warrants.

During the year ended 31 December 2015,
the remaining 80,000,000 unlisted warrants
at HK$0.001743 per warrant were converted.

On 6 February 2015, the Company issued
530,000,000 unlisted warrants at an issue
price of HK$0.002 per warrant pursuant to
a subscription agreement. Each warrant
entitles the holder to subscribe for one
ordinary share of HK$0.01 each at an initial
subscription price of HK$0.72 per share at
any time within 5 years commencing from
the date of issue of the warrants.

HE-_T—RF+-A=T—HILFE

38. f@iE &)

(b)

HEEERBE/R (&)
(vifi) w/]x s
RREFTEBEITAR
uuHX*gnyiLlyHXZFﬁfﬁ‘

FEAHZNEEARATF

RIEFR - ZEHEER
TERBREFRERS
f&% AR B B 15 m B BR o

R-ZE——F+ A+
B AR AIRIERE %
FORBTESMRR
W FE0.00174378 T B
5?300 000,0001% 3E
MRREFE - FHRK
BERTRAEAEN:
Al R R 31T B B
BErRAFAN - B ZPR
BESRAE TRE
—BREENNB T ZE

A

REBEE-_T—AF+=
A=1+—HLEFE &1
80,000,0001% & 15 R W&
#EF50.0017437%8 7T 2 3F
TR SR -

RZE—RF=Z AN
B AR AIRIERE %
EmOERBETESHRR
EFE0.0027 T B 1T
530,000,00013 3 £
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

38. RESERVES (contd)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Contd)

(viii)  Warrant reserve (Cont'd)
Movements in number of underlying shares

BE-T-AFt-A=t-BLFE
38. f#fE (&)

(b) fREEHEERBENE)

(i) B AEE A ()
R RE AR R A0 BB

of the warrants: el
2015 2014
—E-HF —T—WF
‘000 ‘000
TR T
At 1 January n—HA—H 80,000 300,000
Issued during the year 530,000 -
Converted during the year (80,000) (220,000)
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 530,000 80,000

Terms of unexpired and unexercised
warrants at the end of the reporting periods:

N|EPRGEER R
B HA B R AT 18 SR A A
& EHIT

Number of underlying
shares of the warrants

wREZEERGHE
Date of issue Exercisable period 2015 2014
BH1THH —E-REF —E-mF
16 July 2012 16 July 2012 to 15 July 2017 - 80,000,000
“T-ZFtA+AH ZE—FtA+A BE
“E—+FtATHA
6 February 2015 6 February 2015 to 5 February 2020 530,000,000 -

—E-HF-ANH
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

39.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on
3 May 2012, shareholders of the Company approved the
adoption of a New Share Option Scheme.

Concerning New Share Option Scheme, the Company
operates it for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group's operations. Eligible participants
include the full-time and part-time employees, executives,
officers, directors, business consultants, agents,
legal and financial advisers of the Company and the
Company's subsidiaries. The Scheme became effective
on 3 May 2012 and, unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain in force for 5 years from that date.

Pursuant to the New Share Option Scheme, the
Company may grant options to the participants to
subscribe for ordinary share of HK$0.01 each, subject to,
when aggregated under this scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company must not exceed 30%
of the total number of shares in issue from time to time.
The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible participant in the Scheme within
any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant
of shares options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

HE—

39.

T-AFT-A=+—HIEFE

B KB
R-T——FHA=ABRFTZAAR
BEBEFAE L AR AREIER
WA B

ARRRRLF BB 2 B BA
BAKBEEBRDERNELERZE
BER2RERHEDNEE -AER
S2EEBBARTLARAMME R
AZEREFBER TTHRAR B
REE BEF EHAEAERE RE
AREMBER-HEER T =
FRAA=ZBAER BRIFERTEUERE
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39.

154

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (cont )

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a connected person, in excess
of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time or with an aggregate value (based on the price
of the Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in
excess of HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of the offer, upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the
grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted
is determinable by the directors, and commences after
a certain vesting period and ends on a date which is not
later than five years from the date of the offer of the
share options or the expiry date of the New Share Option
Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable
by the directors, but may not be less than the highest
of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company's
shares on the date of the offer of the share options;
(i) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company's shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the nominal value
of the Company's shares on the date of the offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

China Innovationpay Group Limited
Annual Report 2015
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39.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (cont )

The fair value of share options granted is recognised
in profit or loss taking into account the probability that
the options will vest over the vesting period. Upon the
exercise of the options the resulting shares issued are
recorded as additional share capital at the nominal value
of the shares, and the excess of the exercise price per
share over the nominal value of the shares is recorded
in the share premium account. At the time when the
share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve is transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve is transferred to
retained profits. Lapsed options, prior to their exercise
date, are deleted from the outstanding options. All equity-
settled share-based compensation expense is settled in
equity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation
to repurchase or settle the options in cash.

The grantees may exercise the options in whole or in
part by giving exercise notice to the grantor at any time
during the option period provided that the grantees shall
exercise the options to acquire the option shares in
accordance with the following vesting schedule:

Vesting schedule

One year after the grant date 30%
Two years after the grant date 30%
Three years after the grant date 40%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE_ZT-—RE+_A=1T—HILFE

39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (conta) 39. BROZAAFRIE#)
The following table discloses out details of the TRIFENEREAZIIETARRE
Company’s share options under New Share Option BEZHS REREE-Z—0F
Scheme and the movements during the year ended 31 TZA=t+—RIEFEZEE:

December 2014:

Number of share options
BREHE
At Expired/ Exercised At
Exercise 1January  lapsed during during 31 December
Date of grant Exercise period price 2014 the year the year 2014
R=Z-m%
R-2-m%F FREH/ T=A
B AH gL T8 -A-H 3 FRTE =t-H
New Share Option Scheme
HEREE
Directors and Chief Executives
EZRARITBAR
6 July 2012 6 July 2013 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 6,840,000 - (600,000) 6,240,000
“E-—FtARAH “E-=FtLARBEZT-t4tARA 02587
6 July 2014 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 6,840,000 - (600,000) 6,240,000
“E-NELANAEZE—tFLARRA 0.25% 7T
6 July 2015 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 9,120,000 - - 9,120,000
“E-AFtA~HBEZZ—tFtAAA 0.25%7T
Other employees
Hitlg g
6 July 2012 6 July 2013 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 52,224,000 (482,000) (51,506,000) 236,000
“E-—FtARAH “E-=FtLARBEZT-tHtARA 02587
6 July 2014 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 51,441,000 (482,000) (50,661,000) 298,000
ZE-NELANAEZE—tFLARRA 0.25% 7T
6 July 2015 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 68,688,000 (1,032,000) - 67,556,000
“E-AFtA~HBEZZ—tFtAAA 0.25%7T
Total share options BiREes 195,053,000 (1,996,000) (103,367000) 89,690,000

156 China Innovationpay Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE-ZT—RAF+-A=+—HLFE
39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (cont ) 39. ROXAARIE &)
The following table discloses details of the Company's TREBFERETSIETAREE
share options under New Share Option Scheme and the RiEgEzZFHE REREBE_T—h1F
movements during the year ended 31 December 2015: TZA=T—HLEFEZEH:
Number of share options
BREHE
At Granted Expired/ Exercised At
Exercise 1 January during  lapsed during during 31 December
Date of grant Exercise period price 2015 the year the year the year 2015
R-8-1%
RZB-1% EnEE/ T8
BHBH g 1@ -A-H ERRY %% ERTE =t+-A
New Share Option Scheme
FRRETE
Directors and Chief Executives
BEEZRARITBAG
6 July 2012 6 July 2013 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 6,240,000 - - - 6,240,000
I = “ET-Zf+AXBE_Z—+EtARA 0.25%7C
6 July 2014 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 6,240,000 - - - 6,240,000
ZE-RECRAHEZS—tELARA 02587
6 July 2015 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 9,120,000 - - (800,000) 8,320,000
“T-RftANBE_T—+EtARA 0.25%7C
11 June 2015 February 2016 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 - 21,000,000 - - 21,000,000
“Z-1%F~A+-A “E-R"¥-A-BE-Z-F5,:A+H 1265871
1 February 2017 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 - 21,000,000 - - 21,000,000
“E—+%-fA-RE-T-F%5/A+H 1265871
1 February 2018 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 - 28,000,000 - - 28,000,000
—Z-\f-ZR-HAEZZ=-FF/ ATAH 12587
Other employees
EfbER
6 July 2012 6 July 2013 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 236,000 - (21,000) (215,000) -
I o ! “E-Z#+tAXBE_T—+EtARA 0.25%7C
6 July 2014 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 298,000 - (37000) (261,000) -
“ET-NE+ARNBE_E—+EtARA 0.25%7C
6 July 2015 to 5 July 2017 HK$0.25 67,556,000 - (524,000) (28,984,000) 38,048,000
ZZ-RFtRAAET-tFLARA 02587
11 June 2015 February 2016 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 - 39,814,200 (1,022,400 - 38,791,800
—Z-R§~AT—H T2 RFEZR-AEZZRC-FE ATA 125% 7T
1 February 2017 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 - 39,814,200 (1,022,400 - 38,791,800
“E—+%-f-RE-T-F5,A+H 1265871
1 February 2018 to 10 June 2020 HK$1.25 - 53,085,600 (1,363,200 - 51,722,400
ZZ-/\fZR-REZZ-TEXATH 125% 7T
Total share options e et 89,690,000 202,714,000 (3,990,000) (30,260,000) 258,154,000

If the options remain unexercised after a period of 5 years
from the date of grant, the options will expire. Options

are forfeited if the employee leaves the Group.
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39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Contd)

Details of the share options outstanding during the year
are as follows:

HE_ZT-—RE+_A=1T—HILFE

39. R FE 2

FARMRITEBEEFEOT

2015 2014
—E-HF —ET-mF
Weighted Weighted
Number of average Number of average
share exercise share exercise
options price options price
¥ IR
BREZE THE BREZE TEE
HK$ HK$
B BT
Outstanding at the beginning of ~ F A KT

the year 89,690,000 0.250 195,053,000 0.250
Granted during the year FREM 202,714,000 1.250 = =
Exercised during the year FRTRE (30,260,000) 0.250  (103,367,000) 0.250
Lapsed during the year FARH (3,990,000) 1104  (1,996,000) 0.250
Outstanding at the end of the year F &K AR 1T{E 258,154,000 1.022 89,690,000 0.250

Exercisable at the end of the year F XA F17{F 58,848,000 13,014,000

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise
for share option exercised during the year ended 31
December 2015 was HK$0.732 (2014: HK$0.703).
30,260,000 (2014: 103,367000) share options have been
exercised during the year ended 31 December 2015.
The options outstanding at the end of the year have a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 3.80 years
(2014: 2.51 years) and the exercise price of HK$1.022
(2014: HK$0.250).

158 China Innovationpay Group Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE-_T—RF+-_A=T—HILFE
39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (contd) 39. BROZAAFRIE#)
Options under New Option Scheme were granted on EREAESICEREN_Z—RF
11 June 2015. The estimated fair value of the options NAT—BERE Rz B ERE
granted on that date is HK$129,751,000. The fair value 2 hEHAF{E A129,751,000/8 7T ° A
was calculated using the Binomial Option pricing model. FEEZ_EAAETCERAFE R
The inputs into the model are as follows: AR ZEBAT -

2015
—E-HEF
Applicable share price HARMDER HK$1.23
1.2378 T
Exercise price per share BR1TEE HK$1.25
1.257%8 T
Expected volatility TEE R I8 72.26%
Expected life TE T B 5 years
5
Risk free rate 422 [ o S B 1.348%
Expected dividend yield TEHEPR B & 0%
Expected volatility was determined by calculating the FEEHRIERARGROHERNBER
historical volatility of the Company's share price over the FrzRELKETE - EXNPTAES

previous 5 years. The expected life used in the model was FHABREZEHFH-

the contractual life of the options.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

40. NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

160

(a)

Acquisition of Moderntimes and its
subsidiaries

On 30 September 2015 (“Completion Date”),
the Group obtained 51% of equity interest of
Moderntimes Payment Limited (“Moderntimes”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
“Moderntimes Group”). Moderntimes Group is
principally engaged in (i) provision of consultancy
services in strategy and implementation in the
traditional finance industry and the internet finance
industry; (i) development, operation and promotion
of innovative products in the internet and finance
fields; and (iii) customer value management.

According to the subscription agreement,
assignment of shareholder’s loan and incentive
agreement dated 18 June 2015 entered into
between the Group and the shareholders of
Moderntimes, the consideration of the acquisition
of 51% equity interest of Moderntimes will be
settled by way of:

(i) injection of HK$49,510,000 to Moderntimes
by way of cash on Completion Date as
registered capital;

(ii) settlement of outstanding amount of
HK$13,090,000 due to a former shareholder
of Moderntimes Group;

China Innovationpay Group Limited
Annual Report 2015
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40.

GEBEENEHMRME
(a) UWEEModemtimesz H Fft
BT

RZZE—RAFNLA=+H
([ BH])  AEER
BModerntimes Payment
Limited ([Moderntimes ] )
REKEBAR (KB A
[Moderntimes® & |) 251%
% A #E 25 - Moderntimes®:
FERZONERERITENRN
RS RE K B e BE R AR 7%
(NN EEAER S RERER -
HERMEAFER: R(iE
FEEERE-

1B 15 7K 5 B EE Moderntimesfi%
BAEIMASA-ZT—RHFEX
A+ N\BEI 2R s R
ERRE RSB B
Moderntimes 251 % I 1 15 15
BUATHAEN:

i M=K B 8 1M
Moderntimes;T &
49,510,000 T 1E &
FEfEA:

iy  EfTFER Moderntimes
SEFIRRZMAREE
4 %E13,090,000/% 7T
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(a)

HE-_ZT—RF+-_A=T—HIFE

40. NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED 40. HMERERERERME 2
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (contd)

Acquisition of Moderntimes and its (a) UiEModemtimesk H

subsidiaries (Cont'd) BATR (&)

(i)  allotting and issuing up to 231,481,481 (i) H|WIERZTE—RHFL
ordinary shares of the Company to the A—BE-ZT—+t%F
vendor, ModernTimes Information Co., +TZA=+—HHHA
Limited, depending on the number of EEREEREMNFT
cumulative virtual prepaid card sold for the HFEAERRZZTE—RF
period from 1 July 2015 to 31 December —HA—HEZ-ZE—+
2017 and the amount of cumulative virtual F+ZHA=1T—HH
prepaid card reloaded for the period from MEFERBENFR
1 January 2016 to 31 December 2017 TESEE BB &E
(“Guaranteed Period”). The number of T8 %231,481,481
ordinary shares to be issued (“Contingent ALARIEBR T
Shares”) is subject to the adjustments & 77 Moderntimes
below: Information

Co.,Limited ° #§ 3 17
L@ (TR ])
BRI ATIE R :

RE-F—HFE+AS+—ALA
B

For the six months ended 31 December 2015

Scenario 1: in the event that the number of cumulative virtual prepaid card sold for
the period is less than 3,500,000, the Contingent Shares to be issued
for the period shall be zero;

B —: BN E & R T RE B 4 543,500,000 - REAAH T & #1750
RARR
Scenario 2: in the event that the number of cumulative virtual prepaid card sold for

the period is 3,500,000 or more, the Contingent Shares to be issued
for the period shall be 46,296,296.

BR=: M IR E & REtE#FE (T R BB /&3,600,0008k A L - REIRS#TTZ
SRR 19 16 /346,296,296 ©
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HE_ZT-—RE+_A=1T—HILFE

40. NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED 4. FEREREBMKRME 2)

162

STATEMENT OF CASH

FLOWS (cont'a)

(a) Acquisition of Moderntimes and its (a) WEEModemtimes H fff

subsidiaries (Cont'd)

For the year ending 31 December 2016

BLw (&)

Br —F—ANF+-_H=+4+—

HiFF&
() Cumulative virtual prepaid card sold () BEERFERENF

Scenario 1: in the event that the number of cumulative virtual prepaid card sold
for the period from 1 July 2015 to 31 December 2016 is less than
30,000,000, the Contingent Shares to be issued for the year ending 31
December 2016 shall be zero;

BR—: WRBE _ZE—AF+tHA-—RE_T-—REFT_A=1+—HILHME
BE R EREMN RSB 2 530,000,000 - REZE-T— A F+=A
=t —BHIEFEB IS EITRARN

Scenario 2: in the event that the number of cumulative virtual prepaid card sold
for the period from 1 July 2015 to 31 December 2016 is 30,000,000
or more, the Contingent Shares to be issued for the year ending
31 December 2016 shall be 115,740,740 less the number of any
Contingent Shares issued for the six months ended 31 December
2015.

BR=: WRBE—T—hAFtA—HEZZT—R"F+A=+—HIHHAR

China Innovationpay Group Limited
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HE-_T—RF+-_A=T—HILFE

40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 40. FERESREBRRMT 2
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (cont’a)
(a) Acquisition of Moderntimes and its (a) UWEEModemtimes Hff
subsidiaries (Cont'd) BATR (&)
(i) Cumulative virtual prepaid card reloaded (i)  REEHRENR~7TE
Scenario 1: in the event that the amount of cumulative virtual prepaid card
reloaded for the period from 1 July 2015 to 31 December 2016 is less
than RMB30,000,000,000, the Contingent Shares to be issued for the
year ending 31 December 2016 shall be zero;
B — WRBEBZE_E—AF+tA—HE-_FT—R"F+A=T—HLHHEZ
FHEEEN FRED N AR30,000,000,0007T  REEZT—RF
TZAZ=+T—BILEFEHISEITRARD
Scenario 2: in the event that the amount of cumulative virtual prepaid card
reloaded for the period from 1 July 2015 to 31 December 2016 is
RMB30,000,000,000 or more, the Contingent Shares to be issued for
the year ending 31 December 2016 shall be 23,148,148.
B WRBE-—ZS—hAFtA—BE-T—R"F+t-A=T—HILHHEZ

SHEBRIEN R RE A AR30,000,000,00070 3 A £ @ SRR 15 A
23,148,148(% °
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HE_ZT-—RE+_A=1T—HILFE

40. NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED 4. FEREREBMRME 2)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont'd)

164

(a) Acquisition of Moderntimes and its (a) UWEEModemtimes HFff

subsidiaries (Cont'd)

For the year ending 31 December 2017

BLw (&)

BEZF—tF1T-A=4—
Hit &

() Cumulative virtual prepaid card sold () EERFELENTF

Scenario 1:

R

Scenario 2:

Bhh=:

China Innovationpay Group Limited
Annual Report 2015

in the event that the number of cumulative virtual prepaid card sold
for the period from 1 July 2015 to 31 December 2017 is less than
43,750,000, the Contingent Shares to be issued for the year ending 31
December 2017 shall be zero;
WREBE-—E—AFtA—HE-_ZT—+tF+-_A=+—HIHHE
BERTEREN REHE 543,750,000  REE-T—tF+ = A
=T —BHIEFEBHTEEITHARD

in the event that the number of cumulative virtual prepaid card sold
for the period from 1 July 2015 to 31 December 2017 is 43,750,000 or
more but less than 70,000,000, the Contingent Shares to be issued
for the year ending 31 December 2017 shall be 86,805,555 less the
number of any Contingent Shares issued for the period from 1 July
2015 to 31 December 2016 under the scenarios of cumulative virtual
prepaid card sold mentioned above;
WREBE_E—AF+tA—HEZEZE—+tF+_A=+—HIHHEE
& R EETEN REE A43,750,0008 LA _E 14 5470,000,000 - A E;
EE—+F+-A=1+—HIEFEKET786,805,5550 3 A7 -
PR EXMZAEEERENRBEATEHE_ZE—H1FEtA—RBZE
TE-RETZA=T—HIEHEE BT 2EAIARGOEE
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HE-_ZT—RF+-_A=T—HIFE

40. NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED 4. FEREREBMRME 2)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont'd)

(a)

Acquisition of Moderntimes and its (a) UWEEModemtimes HFff

subsidiaries (Cont'd)

For the year ending 31 December 2017(Cont’d)

(1)

BLw (&)

Br—F—+F+—-H=+4+—

HIFFE (&)
Cumulative virtual prepaid card sold (Cont'd) () EERFELENTF
(#)

Scenario 3:

o=

Scenario 4:

AL

in the event that the number of cumulative virtual prepaid card sold
for the period from 1 July 2015 to 31 December 2017 is 70,000,000
or more but less than 87500,000, the Contingent Shares to be issued
for the year ending 31 December 2017 shall be 104,166,666 less the
number of any Contingent Shares issued for the period from 1 July
2015 to 31 December 2016 under the scenarios of cumulative virtual
prepaid card sold mentioned above'
WREBE—ET—hAFtA—HEZ2_E—+tF+-_A=+—HIHHEE
R ERENRHE z%7o,ooo,ooojut M 4$287500,000 ' REE
—tF T - A=1+—HILFERHHETT104,166,666fX K AR {0 »
REXFHtRAEEERENRBELATEE_E—RAF+A—BEZ
E-RF+ZA=T—HILHEE BT 2 EMRARDEE

in the event that the number of cumulative virtual prepaid card sold
for the period from 1 July 2015 to 31 December 2017 is 87,500,000
or more, the Contingent Shares to be issued for the year ending
31 December 2017 shall be 173,611,111 less the number of any
Contingent Shares issued for the period from 1 July 2015 to 31
December 2016 under the scenarios of cumulative virtual prepaid card
sold mentioned above.
WREBZE_ET—AF+tA—BE-FT—+tF+A=T—HILLHHEE
& R EBTEN REE A87500,0005 A - REE=ZT—+F+=
A=Z+—BIEFEBET173,61, 1M RRARD - DR LAt Rt
EEEHBENRBATHEZE-ZE—AFEtA—HE-Z—RE+=A
=t+—RIEHREBE BT 2 E RS ARGNHEE -
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HE_ZT-—RE+_A=1T—HILFE

40. NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED 4. FEREREBMKRME 2)

166

STATEMENT OF CASH

FLOWS (cont'a)

(a) Acquisition of Moderntimes and its (a) UWEEModemtimes Hff

subsidiaries (Cont'd)

For the year ending 31 December 2017 (Cont’d)

BLw (&)

Br—F—+F+—-H=+4+—
HitF/Z (&)

(i) Cumulative virtual prepaid card reloaded (i)  REEHRENR~7TE

Scenario 1:

R —

Scenario 2:

1B

China Innovationpay Group Limited
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in the event that the amount of cumulative virtual prepaid card
reloaded for the period from 1 July 2015 to 31 December 2017 is less
than RMB43,750,000,000, the Contingent Shares to be issued for the
year ending 31 December 2017 shall be zero;

WREBE_Z—RAF+tA—BE=T—+tF+-_A=1+—HILHHER
FHEBTEN RREE DN ARK43,750,000,0007T REE=ZT—+tF
TZA=+T—BILEFEHIEETRARD

in the event that the amount of cumulative virtual prepaid card
reloaded for the period from 1 July 2015 to 31 December 2017 is
RMBA43,750,000,000 or more but less than RMB70,000,000,000, the
Contingent Shares to be issued for the year ending 31 December
2017 shall be 28,935,185 less the number of any Contingent Shares
issued for the year ending 31 December 2016 under the scenarios of
cumulative virtual prepaid card reloaded mentioned above;
WREE-_T—AF+tA—HE-_ZE—+F+_A=+—HItHHEZ
FTE#TE R E%E A A R #43,750,000,0007T 3% LA E DR AR
70,000,000,0007 REBE_E—t+tF+_A=+—HILFEKET
28,935,1858 s AR - DR E X PRt REtEB AN RFAE BN T
BT —RF+A=ZT—HLEFEEBITZEMSIARMNEE :



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS :
e ISR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE-_T—RF+-_A=T—HILFE
40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 40. HMERERERRMTE 2
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (cont )
(a) Acquisition of Moderntimes and its (a) UWEEModemtimes Hff
subsidiaries (Cont'a) B2rsE (&)
For the year ending 31 December 2017 (Contd) AE—F—+F+=—H=4—
HIFFEZ (&)
(i) Cumulative virtual prepaid card reloaded (i)  REEHRENR~7TE
(Cont’d) (%)
Scenario 3: in the event that the amount of cumulative virtual prepaid card

reloaded for the period from 1 July 2015 to 31 December 2017 is
RMB70,000,000,000 or more but less than RMB87,500,000,000, the
Contingent Shares to be issued for the year ending 31 December
2017 shall be 34,722,222 less the number of any Contingent Shares
issued for the year ending 31 December 2016 under the scenarios of
cumulative virtual prepaid card reloaded mentioned above;

ER=": WREBE—T—hAF+tA—HBEZE_E—+tF+-_A=+—HILHHEZ
STERTER R EF A A K70,000,000,0007T 5 A EHE DR AR
87,500,000,0007 REIZE—_ZE—+F+ - A=+—HILFEKEIT
34,722,222 AR AD - DR E X Pt REHEBEN RAEBR T E
E_E-RF+A=T—HILFEDLBITZ2EMKARMNEE

Scenario 4: in the event that the amount of cumulative virtual prepaid card
reloaded for the period from 1 July 2015 to 31 December 2017 is
RMB87500,000,000 or more, the Contingent Shares to be issued
for the year ending 31 December 2017 shall be 57870,370 less the
number of any Contingent Shares issued for the year ending 31
December 2016 under the scenarios of cumulative virtual prepaid card
reloaded mentioned above.

ERLE WREBZEZE_ET—AF+tHA—BE-_T—+tF+A=T—HLLHHEZ
FTE#TEN R EEE A A R%S87500,000,0008 LA - REBE=F—+
F+ZA=+—RHILFEHEIT57870,3700 AR - DR Pt
RHERBNFREBATBEEZS—R"FTA=T—RHLFER
BT 2 EMSARBNDEE ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

40. NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont'd)

168

(a)

Acquisition of Moderntimes and its
subsidiaries (Cont'd)

Details of the Group's acquisition of Moderntimes
Group were set out in the Company's
announcements dated 18 June 2015 and 8 July
2015.

For the six months ended 31 December 2015, the
number of cumulative virtual prepaid card sold for
the period from 1 July 2015 to 31 December 2015
is more than 3,500,000, therefore the Contingent
Shares shall be 46,296,296. The outstanding
Contingent Shares as at 31 December 2015 was
185,185,185.

The acquisition is for the purpose of strengthening
the Group's prepaid card business in the PRC.

China Innovationpay Group Limited
Annual Report 2015

HE_ZT-—RE+_A=1T—HILFE

40.

RERTREBHRKRME 2

(a)

Uz B Modemtimes 5 £ ff}
BAT (&)

A& B U BEModerntimess
ZHBENARR ZE—RF
NATN\BEZZE—RFtHA
NBZRE-

HE—_ZT—RF+_-_A=+—
HIENEA B S R E#
BRNFHEREBEE=Z—H
F+A-—HBHE-_ZT—AF
+-A=Zt+—HILHEBB
3,500,000 -+ & it - SRR 17 #5
546,296,296 - N —F — h
F+-—A=+—8 k%7
Z S IRPEAD /185,185, 1850% °

Wi e MR ARERFE
BN RER-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS o
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE-_ZT—RF+-_A=T—HIFE
40. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 40. FEBEEREBRME &)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (cont )
(a) Acquisition of Moderntimes and its (a) UWEEModemtimes HFff
subsidiaries (Contd) BT (%)
The fair value of the identifiable assets and AEBERWEARD B KE
liabilities of Moderntimes Group acquired as at its Moderntimes$s & A] & 5| & &=
date of acquisition is as follows: raEsAFERAT:
HK$'000
Net assets acquired: PR iE & = )FE FHETT
Property, plant and equipment RN 121
Interest in an associate NN R -
Prepayments, deposit and other receivables 81 I8 « 1% & N H b fE U 3% 1,087
Amount due from a non-controlling e — % FE1E AR AR R IR
shareholder 215
Bank and cash balances RIT RIS LR 56,394
Accruals and other payables TEIRE R K HEMERK (1,221)
56,596
Non-controlling interests AR M = (27732)
28,864
Goodwill allocated to prepaid card and SEZEENREERERE
related operations CGU (Note 19) EXBM2EE (MFE19) 56,597
85,461
Satisfied by: AT5) A ER
Cash consideration paid: ENBEeRE:
— Capital injection —FE 49,510
— Settlement of loan —EBRERK 13,090
62,600
Contingent consideration payable (Note 32)  JE{F ek SR (B (BI5E32) 22,861
85,461
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: WHEEE RS ROFE:
Cash consideration ReERE (62,600)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FriiE e IR EEY 56,394
(6,206)

rEAFEIEEERAT 169
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

40. NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont'd)

170

(a)

Acquisition of Moderntimes and its
subsidiaries (Cont'd)

Non-controlling interests are measured at their
proportionate share in the recognised amounts of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of
Moderntimes Group is attributable to strengthen
the prepaid card and related operations of
the Group. Moderntimes Group contributed
HK$25,000 and HK$3,402,000 to the Group's
revenue and loss respectively for the period
between the date of acquisition and 31 December
2015.

The fair value of contingent consideration payable
at the Completion Date represents the present
values of the Contingent Shares expected to be
issued during the Guaranteed Period, which was
estimated based on the expected cumulative
virtual prepaid card sold and virtual prepaid card
reload during the Guaranteed Period. The valuation
was prepared by an independent valuer, UniStand
Appraisal Limited.

China Innovationpay Group Limited
Annual Report 2015

HE_ZT-—RE+_A=1T—HILFE

40.

RERTREBRKRME 2

(a)

i B Modemtimes 2 EL Kt
BAT &)

TR RIEE N E A
BRI EEFECCHEREE L
FEIR L BIET & -

I B Moderntimes® B & 4
ZEETHRERAEE
ZIENRRBEEBRAS-
Moderntimes£s B 7 g & B 23
EZT—RF+ZA=+—
HIEE M2 5l & A& & B K
7 & §518 & 25,0007 T &
3,402,000/ 7T, °

RIER B BN S AREBEZ R
TEEEDENREEEZ
TZHABRMIERE HREE
ZEEREN R & R E #
BRNRRERREHHERNZ
TR AL T o (H 1B BB L (G ERD
UniStand Appraisal LimitedfE
H o
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE-_T—RF+-_A=T—HILFE

40. NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED

40.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont'd)

(a)

Acquisition of Moderntimes and its
subsidiaries (Contd)

Key inputs used in the fair value measurement
of the contingent consideration payable are as
follows:

Unobservable inputs

RERTREBRKRME 2

(a)

I B Modemtimes 2 E fft
BrwE (&)
JERSAREBAFETEFA
BABIBET

As at Completion Date

R ES PN ¢ R B
Expected number of cumulative virtual prepaid card sold

as at 31 December 2017 (Note i) 30,533,248
R-ZE—+tF+ZA=+—HEHEERFERBEN REE

(M3ED) 30,533,248

Expected amount of cumulative virtual prepaid card reloaded
as at 31 December 2017 (Note ii)

R-E—t+tF+ZA=+—HEHRFEREN FRERE
(B =Eii)

RMB23,534,728,767

ANE#023,534,728,767 7T

Discount rate applied (Note iii) 5.02%

P& AR 2 RRER & (B Eiii) 5.02%

Average simulated share price under Monte Carlo Method

(Note iv) HK$0.50

SEREFERBEEHRE (Mixiv) 0.50/%8 7T

Noteii  Expected number of cumulative virtual ki EE%H&T%ZT‘EE@E%
prepaid card sold for Contingent Shares is Rt ERENREE
based on the Directors’ best estimate and TJ@TJ%%%Z%E%
weighted probability analysis. @&bﬂ*&ﬁ%ﬁﬁf’ﬁ

Note ii:  Expected amount of cumulative virtual prepaid MoeEii - skARRMG 2 TEEAR T
card reloaded for Contingent Shares is based ERFANRRIERAT
on the Directors’ best estimate and weighted RIZE R 2 HAE M
probability analysis. NN wEBE & o 4T 1E

H o

Note iii:  Discount rate is derived by applying a risk-free BaEii :  BAREISBBIRAE

interest rate plus the credit spread. R MEREZE
ER/E-

Note iv:  Average simulated share price are estimated etiv . BEFHRERAR
based on the historical volatility of the share AIE B P T
price of the Company’s ordinary shares listed B2 8 1 AR (B B
on the Stock Exchange. ikt e

sEAFENEEERAT 171
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

40. NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont'd)

172

(a)

(b)

Acquisition of Moderntimes and its
subsidiaries (Conta)

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January
2015, total Group revenue for the year would
have been HK$104,134,000 and loss for the year
would have been HK$173,505,000. The proforma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is
not necessarily an indication of the revenue and
results of operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition been
completed on 1 January 2015, nor is intended to
be a projection of future results.

Acquisition of Onecomm

On 31 December 2014 (“Completion Date”),
the Group obtained control of Beijing Onecomm
Technology Company Limited (“Onecomm”) by
acquiring 51% of its equity interest and voting
rights. Onecomm is principally engaged in
provision of third party payment system solution
and sales of POS devices.

According to the capital contribution agreement
and incentive agreement dated 10 October 2014
entered into between the Group and the then
shareholders of Onecomm, the consideration of
the acquisition of Onecomm will be settled by way
of:

(i) injecting RMB8,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$10,004,000) to Onecomm before
Completion Date as registered capital,

China Innovationpay Group Limited
Annual Report 2015

HE_ZT-—RE+_A=1T—HILFE

40.

RERTREBRKRME 2

(a)

(b)

Y B Modemtimes % H
BAT (&)

HEEBER —_E—RF—A—
B AEBEFANREE
15 104,134,000 7T MF A
E518 811 £173,505,000/8 7T ° &
ZERMEIEHRPAR S WIEH
PAAEETEREER - —H
F-A—BTHKZBERATAE
BRERS W am R EEXEE TP
TRRERARREZ 2 TEA -

W fE — IS M
R-T-OF+-_A=+—H
([5Ep BHE)) AR E R
RSN RBRAR] ([—
USRI 1) B1% AR AN #E 2 Ko H
FORTE - REULERE — IS M 2
THIE IR E R ER
RETIXNEGHTREREE
POSK & -

IRIE 7R & B B — S 46 M & 5 AR
RAEIEHA-ZT—MFE+
A+ BRI & s & 2R
ek W — IS 2 KB
BB T ES

() M5k BEam-—
IS i 0 E AR
8,000,0007T (fH&E H
10,004,000 7T ) tE &
AfEA:



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HEz—

40. NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED 40.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont'd)

(b) Acquisition of Onecomm (Contd)

(ii) allotting and issuing up to 41,234,166
ordinary shares of the Company to one
of the then substantial shareholder, Mr.
Sun Jiangning, depending on the financial
performance of Onecomm for the period
from 1 July 2014 to 31 December 2016
("Guaranteed Period”). The number of
ordinary shares to be issued (“Contingent
Shares”) is subject to the adjustments
below:

For the six months ended 31 December 2014

T-AFT-A=+—HIEFE

RERTREBRKRME 2

(b) WEE—BIM (&)

(i) B\WFE—BBHAR=Z
—OF+H—\AzE_%
—R"F+ZA=+—H
HM ([REHBE) Z
B RIE - Bo 8 BT
& %41,234,1660% AN A
AEERTEP—UE
REZRRFEIEL
Ao BT @R (I3
AN BB R TIE
SRR

BE_F—WFL+_H

=+ —HIiENEA
Scenario 1: in the event that the profit of Onecomm for the period is less than
RMB3,000,000, the Contingent Shares to be issued for the period
shall be zero;
B — i) — IS 4 ] ER A8 1 2 5 A R #53,000,0007T - IR ER A & 25 1T () 2k
AR
Scenario 2: in the event that the profit of Onecomm for the period is

RMB3,000,000 or more, the Contingent Shares to be issued for the

period shall be 8,006,634.

‘= fied — 15 420 )M HA P90 A1) A A R #53,000,0007T 31 A F - BRI A 377

8,006,634/% S A B 17
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

HE_ZT-—RE+_A=1T—HILFE

40. NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED 4. FEREREBMKRME 2)

174

STATEMENT OF CASH

FLOWS (cont'a)

(b) Acquisition of Onecomm (Contd) (b) WE—IREWM(£E)

For the year ended 31 December 2015

Scenario 1:

R —

Scenario 2:

B =:

Scenario 3:

BR=:

Scenario 4:

R

Scenario b:

BRE:

China Innovationpay Group Limited
Annual Report 2015

BE-F—AFE+ A
SF—AEE

in the event that the profit of Onecomm for the year is less than
RMB3,000,000, the Contingent Shares to be issued for the year shall
be zero;
fie) — IS 48 ] 45 A8 F 2 P A R #53,000,0007T * IREF A& 21T 2
SARRAD

in the event that the profit of Onecomm for the year is RMB3,000,000
or more but less than RMB5,000,000, the Contingent Shares to be
issued for the year shall be 8,306,833;

i) — W& 48 M F R F & A R #3,000,0007T 3 A E1E DR AR
5,000,0007T * F A #5 8% 178,306,833A% Sk A B 17

in the event that the profit of Onecomm for the year is RMB5,000,000
or more but less than RMB7000,000, the Contingent Shares to be
issued for the year shall be 16,613,766;

fied — 15 4 )N GF 0% 1) & A R #55,000,0007T 3 A E B DR AR
7.000,0007T * & A 3 1716,613, 766A% S AR 7

in the event that the profit of Onecomm for the year is RMB7000,000
or more but less than RMB9,000,000, the Contingent Shares to be
issued for the year shall be 24,920,649;

i — S 4 N F % ) 2 A R #57000,0007T 3k BA E1B D AR
9,000,0007T * FF N5 81724,920,6490% S A B 17

in the event that the profit of Onecomm for the year is RMB9,000,000
or more, the Contingent Shares to be issued for the year shall be the
remaining of 41,234,166.

fid — IS 48 N F s M) A A R #9,000,0007T 3 A £ - FINAFEEITER T
41,234,166% sk AR 7 °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R SRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

40. NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont'd)

(b) Acquisition of Onecomm (Contd)
For the year ending 31 December 2016

TE-RAFE+-A=+—HILFE

RERTREBRKRME 2

W B — IS AN (42)
BE—F—NF1T=A

=F—HIFE
Scenario 1: in the event that the profit of Onecomm for the year is less than
RMB20,000,000, the Contingent Shares to be issued for the year shall
be zero;
B — i) — IS 48 N F R A1) D 7 A R #520,000,0007T - IR A& 31T (1R
S RBR D
Scenario 2: in the event that the profit of Onecomm for the year is

RMB20,000,000 or more, the Contingent Shares to be issued for the
year shall be the remaining of 41,234,166.
ER i) — IS 48 M F R F A& A R #20,000,0007T 3k BA - F AR TR T

41,234,166 3% A% 15 ©

Details of the Group’'s acquisition of Onecomm
were set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 10 October 2014.

For the years ended 31 December 2015 and
2014, the profit of the Onecomm was less than
RMB3,000,000, therefore no Contingent Shares
shall be allotted. The outstanding Contingent
Shares as at 31 December 2015 was 41,234,166
(2014: 41,234,166).

REEWRE BN FEH
RARB ZZE—NFE+A+AH

Z/‘\/_'l: °

HE_Z—RHAFEK_F—N@
F+-ZA=+—HLEFE"
— BN 2 EF DR AR
3,000,000t * A It - /A B 3%
HARBD R -_EBE—HE+ =
A=+—H #WRETZX
SR 1 /341,234,1668% ( —
—PU%F : 41,234,166/%) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

40. NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont'd)

(b)

Acquisition of Onecomm (Contd)

The acquisition is for the purpose of strengthening
the Group's third party payment system business

in the PRC.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of Onecomm acquired as at its date of

HE_ZT-—RE+_A=1T—HILFE

40. GLEBEREHRKRMT (&)

(b) WEE—IRHIM (&)
Wi e MR ARERFE
FEAXNEGER -

AEBRKEBRKE L 5
NP EERBEAFE

acquisition is as follows: LN
HK$'000
Net assets acquired: PR & = )9E - FHET
Property, plant and equipment Y ER NS 797
Intangible assets — technology know-how
(Note 18) mILEE B AE (HEE18) 7757
Inventories rE 5,531
Trade receivables FEURBR 3K 8
Prepayments, deposit and other receivables 81 I8 « 1% & N H b fE Ut 3% 2,546
Bank and cash balances RIT RN B MR 11,704
Trade payables JERTBR K (6,135)
Accruals and other payables TEREB R R HMER K (6,256)
Due to a non-controlling shareholder JE T — & FE AR IR 3R FIE (666)
Borrowings B (625)
Deferred tax liabilities BIERIARE (1,076)
13,585
Non-controlling interests AR = (6,657)
6,928
Goodwill allocated to Onecomm CGU SEZE—ISWMNEBESESE
(Note 19) Bz & (Fzk19) 13,186
20,114
Satisfied by: AR5 BT
Cash consideration injected as capital mBARNEFEEREARLZ
to the subsidiary ReaRE 10,004
Contingent consideration payable (Note 32)  JEfF sk A (B (BI5E32) 10,110
20,114
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: WEEAZHSMAERE:
Cash consideration ReERE (10,004)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FrikiE v Re RIS EFEY 11,704
1,700
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015

40. NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont'd)

(b)

Acquisition of Onecomm (Cont'd)

The goodwill arising on the acquisition of
Onecomm s attributable to have better control
over the sale of POS devices and related services.
Onecomm did not contribute revenue and loss to
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014.

The fair value of contingent consideration payable
at the Completion Date represents the present
values of the Contingent Shares expected to be
issued during the Guaranteed Period, which was
estimated based on the expected net profit of
Onecomm during the Guaranteed Period. The
valuation was prepared by an independent valuer,
Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited.

Key inputs used in the fair value measurement
of the contingent consideration payable are as
follows:

Unobservable inputs

TUBERABE

HE-_T—RF+-_A=T—HILFE

RERTREBRKRME 2

(b) WEE—BIM (&)
WE—BeMNEEZHERE
HPOSKEHE REMARE 2
B R 4% ) o — N A1 IF 4 D
HE-_ZT—NF+=-A=+—
HIEFEAREE SR AAK
mREBE-

REK A HARNIAREZR
FEEERS R REEET
Z AR IE - THIR — 1548
N R 38 HA T 2 TR ER A R
e ER B EER (FE
AHEARAE)EL -

EN AR E R EAERR
BWABELT :

As at Completion Date
R5EAL B

Expected net profit (Note i)
TEERAE A (P EEi)

Discount rate applied (Note ii)

P& 2 R IR R (B &Eii)

Average simulated share price under
Monte Carlo Method (Note iii)
SERER AR T HRE (METii)

RMB6,005,653
A K #6,005,6537T

3.75%
3.75%

HK$0.62
0.62/8 7T

rEA A EEERAT 177
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

40. NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont'd)

178

(b)

Acquisition of Onecomm (Cont'd)

Note i: Expected net profit for Contingent Shares is
based on the Directors’ best estimate and
weighted probability analysis for Onecomm.

Note ii:  Discount rate is derived by applying a risk-free

interest rate plus the credit spread.

Note iii: Average simulated share price are estimated
based on the historical volatility of the share
price of the Company's ordinary shares listed
on the Stock Exchange.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1 January
2014, total Group revenue for the year would
have been HK$85,492,000 and loss for the year
would have been HK$162,329,000. The proforma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is
not necessarily an indication of the revenue and
results of operations of the Group that actually
would have been achieved had the acquisition been
completed on 1 January 2014, nor is intended to
be a projection of future results.

China Innovationpay Group Limited
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B R SRR D 2 TSR AL T AR 18
EE Y B R
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B Eil - BEIR R 1B B R A AR
EMERESEHESH -

B ATl - REEF AR ERARF R

B S A B A B AR
ERE 45t e

WEEBEN T —NF—A—
HER ANEBEFRNKEBE
1% £85,492,000/ Jt. * M F A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR AR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HEz—

40. NOTESTO THE CONSOLIDATED 40.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont'd)

(c) Acquisition of interest in a subsidiary
without change of control
During the year, the Group acquired 20%
equity interests in a 80% subsidiary at a cash
consideration of HK$12,000. The effect of the
acquisition on the equity attributable to the owners

T-AFT-A=+—HIEFE

HRERERBERMTE (2)

(c) WE—BEHEBARZER
(Y=l REEE))
FR AEEUBRRE
12,0007 7T 4 % — B B80%
A 2 Bt B A R 2 20% AR 4 o
RATER AEGWEER

of the Company is as follows: FEWT:
HK$'000
FHETT

Carrying amount of non-controlling Pt 2 e iR es 2 BRE B
interests acquired (216)

Consideration paid for non-controlling TIEIERRE S T 2 (B

interests (12)

Loss on acquisition recognised EERETABRRWESE
directly in equity (228)

41. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 41. FREE

As at 31 December 2015, the Group and the Company
did not have any significant contingent liabilities (2014:
nil).

42. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 42.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group and the Company
did not have any significant capital commitments (2014:
nil).

R-_E—RAFE+=-_RA=+—H &&
EEANRWETAEARAREE
(ZZE—UF ) o

BEREIE
R-EBE—RE+-_A=+—0 &&
B & ARRIWEEREKNE ARIE
(ZE—HF &) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

)

43.

B SRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE_ZT-—RE+_A=1T—HILFE
LEASE COMMITMENTS 43. FEEIE
At 31 December 2015, the total future minimum lease RZZE-—hFE+A=+—0 RIE
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are TRAIHGE R S S R 2 R R &M
payable as follows: EFIRBTEIT
Group
rEE
2015 2014
—B-HF —T-WF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Within one year —F A 12,381 9,125
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_FEFERF
(BREEEMSF) 28,949 30,381
Over five years BiBEAF 2,277 6,636
43,607 46,142

180

Operating lease payments represent rental payable by
the Group for certain of its offices. Leases are negotiated
for terms of one to nine years and rentals are fixed over
the lease terms and do not include contingent rentals.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS o
e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2015 HE-_T—RF+-_A=T—HILFE
44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 4. BEALIRS
(a)  In addition to those related party transactions and (@) KRESHBHRREMEEHHRE
balances disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated ZEBEBNTR G REBRIN K
financial statements, the Group had the following EERFANEMEANATE T
transactions and balances with its related parties RGN tEeh o

during the year.

2015 2014
—E-HF C—T-NOF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Card transaction levies received REREERZ—FE
by a related company on behalf of FERRWE
the Group RR5EBE - 133
Service charge paid to ST —HEBEEAFZ
a related company AR 7% & - (276)
Settlement funds paid to the —MEEAARE
contracted merchants REBEXNTEIAOEP
by a related company on LEREES
behalf of the Group - (48,482)
Due from a related company included J&U — BRI E A 7 5008
in prepayments and deposits AR RIBRIZE - 250
Due from a related company included &4 —fEE8E A =) 5108 -
in trade receivables T AR U AR 7K - 240
A director, Mr. Guan has significant influence over EFHEEHZAELRAE
the related company. N7V
(b)  The key management personnel are the directors. b)) FEEBABREZ -BENZE
The details of the remuneration paid to them are 2B AB ZHUFBHNE
set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial B I HREMFES -
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

45.

182

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

The Company entered into Convertible Preference Shares
Agreement (“CPS agreement”) and Share Subscription
Agreement with National Agricultural Holdings Limited on
25 June 2015. The Company has conditionally agreed to
subscribe for a total of 49,140,000 National Agricultural
Convertible Preference Shares (“NACPS”) at subscription
price of HK$4.07 per NACPS. The Company has
conditionally agreed to issue 194,174,000 subscription
shares at HK$1.03 per subscription share to National
Agricultural Holdings Limited. The aggregate subscription
price amounts to approximately HK$200 million.
However, the Company and National Agricultural Holdings
Limited mutually agreed to terminate the CPS agreement
and Share Subscription Agreement on 29 January 2016.

China Innovationpay Group Limited

Annual Report 2015

HE—

45,

Z-RF+A=+—HILFE

MEPREH
R-ZE—RFEXA-+HHB  ARQF
EAF Z 1A% AR A AET M Al SR ARE 4

i (AT RRELERBZE]) KR
NREHZ - ARR BB RERER
SRERER TSR E LR ([EE
TR AT AR B AR ] )4.07E T 2 REE
B R BE 4 $£49,140,0000% Bl £ 42 A% 7]
BRELR - AQRBEERERER
BRRBERMI.OIBTAELIERE
RN B)2517194,174,000 0% 32 BE I 17 o
A HRIEE1E4200,000,000/8 T  2A
e AR FEERERERARANS
E-RNE—HAZ+NAHHBAERELL
AJRAR B S AR 17 e SR AR 10 SR IB 17 a%



FIVEYEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

FFBEHE

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-HA=t—-HLEE

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
“E-Rf TN —T-=f T T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FEL FEL TAL AT
RESULT ES-
CONTINUING OPERATIONS RECEEY
Revenue lhen 103,861 81,222 142,896 212,805 263,095
Cost of sales HEMAR (71,764) (46,173) (93173)  (131,374) (177992)
Gross profit EM 32,097 35,049 49,723 81,431 85,103
Other income Hi A 15,027 4,461 3,943 7031 3,136
Selling expenses HEER (41,193) (31,181) (19,911) (5,353) (8,469)
Administrative expenses THRX (114,897 (60,675) (52,025) (45,681) (42,912)
Other operating expenses Hig g% - - - (6,000) (43)
Impairment of amount due from an [ — R E R R FIERE
associate - - (4,733) - -
Impairment of investment in an associate 7 — R & N B MR ERE - - - (822) -
Impairment of goodwill HERE (4,641) (53,323)  (228,787)  (160,499) -
Impairment of intangible assets EWEERE - - (933) - -
Equity-settled share-based payment REEE RN X B (57,548) (4,463) (9,173) (6,022) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB LRz E - - - - 2,727
Gain on fair value change of R—HBERRENTE
investment in an associate el e - - 1,273 - -
Gain on revaluation of previous held BEMREREHERAEE
interest in jointly controlled entity Bz e - - - - 8,451
Gain on fair value change of ERIARELATE
contingent consideration payables SEN 13,155 - - 252,640 230,986
Gain on bargain purchase on business £ A 5 BB IS
combination - - - - 3,423
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HENB NEZER - - - - (315)
FREAFZNEBERAT 183
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

hFBEEE

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-HA=t—-HLEE

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
“E-1f —T-QNF 2= —T-—-F —T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET FET TET TET
Share of losses of: DEUATERZEE !
Associates /NG - - - - (100)
Jointly controlled entity HREHIEBE - - - - (1,117)
Finance costs BERA (15) (9,714) (13,187) (12,371) (1,186)
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX BBAT (E18) &7 (158,015) (119,846) (273,810) 104,354 279,684
Tax IR (2,556) (3,740) (4,927) (12,757) (15,760)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FORTHE YEAR FROM  KREBERLEK I ER
CONTINUING OPERATIONS (B#8),/ &7 (160,571)  (123586)  (278,737) 91,597 263,924
DISCONTINUED OPERATION DRIEEEER
Profit for the year from BRIEEER
a discontinued operation FREF - - - - 14,926
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FR(ER) /& (160,571) - - - 278,850
Attributable to: IATALEESD:
Owners of the Company AREHEBA (153,818) (122,724) (279,352) 91,362 283,071
Non-controlling interests R (6,753) (862) 615 235 (4,221)
(160,571)  (123586)  (278,737) 91,597 278,850
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND BE SERFERER
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
TOTAL ASSETS BRE 1,181,047 1,105,536 987578 1,251,850 1,408,008
TOTAL LIABILITIES BaE (108,730) (77212)  (163,593) {190,100) (617710)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS S (27,697) (6,502) (707) (88) 147
(1,044,620) 1,021,822 823,278 1,061,662 790,445
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